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Forward-Looking Statements

Matters discussed in this Annual Report on FormKl@lating to future events or our future perforncanincluding any
discussion, express or implied, of our anticipagedwth, operating results, future earnings per shanarket opportunity, plar
and objectives, are “forward-looking statements’tin the meaning of Section 27A of the SecuritdsoA1933,as amended,
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Ac®841as amended. These statements are often iddriif the words “may,”
“will,” “expect,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “intend, ” “could,” “estimate,” or “continue,” and similar expressions or variations.
Such forward-looking statements are subject tosiskcertainties and other factors that could caastlal results and the
timing of certain events to differ materially frdoture results expressed or implied by such forwlanking statements. Facto
that could cause or contribute to such differenoetude, but are not limited to, those discussethsection titled “Risk
Factors” set forth in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Rof.0-K and elsewhere in this Report. The forwaaking statement
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K represent o@aws as of the date of this Annual Report on ForaK1®/e anticipate that
subsequent events and developments will causdeus ¥o change. However, while we may elect to tgthese forward-
looking statements at some point in the futurehaxee no current intention of doing so except toekient required by
applicable law. You should, therefore, not relytbese forward-looking statements as representingriws as of any date
subsequent to the date of this Annual Report omFbl-K.

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

LogMeln provides SaaS-based, on-demand, remoteectinity, collaboration and support solutions toadinand medium-
sized businesses, or SMBs, IT service providerdjilmaarriers, and consumers. We believe our smistare used to connect
more Internet-enabled devices worldwide than ahgotonnectivity service. Businesses and IT septogiders use our
solutions to deliver remote, end-user support arettess and manage computers and other Interableendevices more
effectively and efficiently from a remote locatiar, remotely. Consumers and mobile workers use@mupnte connectivity
solutions to access computer resources remotelycacallaborate with other users, thereby facilitgttheir mobility and
increasing their productivity. Our solutions, whiate deployed and accessed from anywhere throwgbadrowser, or on-
demand, are secure, scalable and easy for oumsagstdo try, purchase and use.

In February 2003, we incorporated under the lanBeymuda. In August 2004, we completed a domestican the State
of Delaware under the name 3am Labs, Inc. We clthagename to LogMeln, Inc. in March 2006. Our pijral executive
offices are located at 500 Unicorn Park Drive, Wiohiassachusetts 01801, and our telephone numslfégdl) 638-9050. Our
website address isww.LogMeln.comWe have included our website address in thisrtegmdely as an inactive textual
reference.

In 2004, we introduced LogMeln Free, a service #ilatvs users to access computer resources rembtepelieve
LogMeln Free, LogMeln HamacBiand join.me, our popular free services, providedemand remote access, or remote-
connectivity, to computing resources for more usieas any other on-demand connectivity serviceingius access to a large
and diverse group of users and increasing awarariess fee-based, or premium, services. As of Demer 31, 2010, our users
have connected over 127 million computers and dtiternet-enabled devices to a LogMeln service.

We complement our free services with nine premiemises, some sold on a subscription basis, inolyiogMeln
Rescue and LogMeln Central, our flagship remotesttpand management services, and LogMeln?Pmur premium remote
access service, and others that are sold for dieefee, including LogMeln Ignition for iPhone,a& and Android and
RemotelyAnywhere. Sales of our premium servicegarerated through word-of-mouth referrals, webedavertising,
expiring free trials that we convert to paid sulg@ns and direct marketing to new and existingtomers.

All of our free and premium solutions are deliveesdhosted services, which means that the techyelogbling the use of
our solutions primarily resides on our servers Anhdardware, rather than those of our




users. We call the software, hardware and netwgrténhnology used to deliver our solutions Gravitiye Gravity proprietary
platform consists of software applications, custmedidatabases and web servers. Gravity estabBsicese connections over
the Internet between remote computers and otherret-enabled devices and manages the direct tisgsiemof data between
remotely connected devices. This robust and saalfalbtform connects over 15 million computers to ervices each day.

We believe that our sales model of a high volumeext and renewed subscriptions at low transactimeg increases the
predictability of our revenues compared to perpdicensed-based software businesses. During sitalfiyears ended
December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, we generateduesef $51.7 million, $74.4 million and $101.1 linih respectively.

Periodic reports, proxy statements and other inftion are available to the public, free of chaaepur website,
www.LogMeln.com as soon as reasonably practicable after they bese filed with the SEC and through the SEC’s wteps
www.sec.gov Such reports, proxy statements and other infaonahay be obtained by visiting the Public RefeeeRoom of
the SEC at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, DC 2@54%/ calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

Our Solutions

Our solutions allow our users to remotely accaggpsrt and manage computers and other Internetiezhdbvices on
demand, as well as to collaborate with other us#esbelieve our solutions benefit users in theofelhg ways:

« Reducecset-up, support and management cos®ur services enable IT staff to administer, naméind support
computers and other Internet-enabled devices enate location. Businesses easily set up our oraddraervices with
little or no modification to the remote locatiemetwork or security systems and without the feedpfront technolog
or software investment. In addition, our custormeveer their support and management costs by penfgym
managemerrelated tasks remotely, reducing or eliminatingabsts ofon-site support and manageme

 Increased mobile worker productivii Our remote-access services allow non-technicaisus access and control
remote computers and other Internet-enabled devimer®asing their mobility and allowing them taorr&in productive
while away from the office

 Increased en-user satisfaction. Our customers rely on our on-demand servicesipmave the efficiency and
effectiveness of end-user support. Satisfactioh sitpport services is primarily measured by cafieiag time and
whether or not the problem is resolved on the iedk Our services enable helpdesk techniciamgiickly and easily
gain control of a remote user’s computer. Once eoted, the technician can diagnose and resolvdgimsbwhile
interacting with and possibly training the end usar using our solutions to support remote useus,costomers have
reported increased user satisfaction while reducaiighandling time by as much as 50% over pl-only support

« Reliable, fast and secure servir Our service possesses built-in redundancy ofessrand other infrastructure in four
data centers, three located in the United Staté®aa located in Europe. Our proprietary platformatdes our services
to connect and manage devices at enhanced spegdse®@ices implement industry-standard securibtqaols and
authenticate and authorize users of our servicd#woui storing password

« Easy to try, buy and us Our services are simple to install, which allaws prospective customers to use our services
within minutes of registering for a trial. Our costers can use our services to manage their rergstenss from any
Web browser. In addition, our low servidelivery costs and hosted delivery model allowasfter each of our servic
at competitive prices and to offer flexible paymenptions.




Our Competitive Strengths

We believe that the following competitive strengtliiferentiate us from our competitors and are tegur success:

Large established user commun As of December 31, 2010, over 33 million registeusers have connected over
million Internet-enabled devices to a LogMeln seeviThese users drive awareness of our servicesghmpersonal
recommendations, blogs, social media and othenemommunication methods and provide us with aifsigmt
audience to which we can market and sell premiuvices.

Efficient customer acquisition mod We believe our free products and our large itesfaliser base help to generate
word-of-mouth referrals, which in turn increases é&ificiency of our paid marketing activities, thege majority of
which are focused on pay-per-click search engirveriding. Sales of our premium services are geedrénrough
word-of-mouth referrals, Web-based advertisinglioié advertising expiring free trials that we centvto paying
customers and marketing to our existing customdruser base. We believe this direct approach taigng new
customers generates an attractive and predictatlenron our sales and marketing expenditt

Technology-enabled cost advantag®ur service delivery platform, Gravity, estabéistsecure connections over the
Internet between remote computing devices and nemnihg direct transmission of data between thers. Jatented
platform reduces our bandwidth and other infrastmecrequirements, which we believe makes our sesviaster and
less expensive to deliver as compared to compegmngces. We believe this cost advantage allows oéfer free
services and serve a broader user community thacooopetitors

On-demand delivery.Delivering our services on-demand allows us tees@dditional customers with little incremental
expense and to deploy new applications and upgiaiekly and efficiently to our existing custome

High recurring revenue and high transaction volun We sell our services on a monthly or annual supisan basis,
which provides greater levels of recurring revenared predictability compared to traditional perpétlicense-based
business models. Approximately 95% of our subsiomigthave a one-year term. We believe that oussatalel of a
high volume of new and renewed subscriptions attlawsaction prices increases the predictabilitgwofrevenues
compared to perpetual licen-based software business

Growth Strategy

Our objective is to extend our position as a legdgirovider of on-demand, remote-connectivity solusi. To accomplish
this, we intend to:

Acquire new customer We acquire new customers through word-of-moutérrals from our existing user community
and from paid, online advertising designed to attvésitors to our website. We also encourage oeipsite visitors to
register for free trials of our premium servicese ¥ipplement our online efforts with email, newsleand other
traditional marketing campaigns and by participgaiimtrade events and Web-based seminars. To sem@ar sales, we
plan to continue aggressively marketing our sohgiand encouraging trials of our services whileagxjing our sales
force.

Increase sales to existing custome We upsell and cross-sell our broad portfolio@fv&ces to our existing premium
subscriber customer base. In the first twelve meafter their initial purchase, these subscrib@nsaverage, subscribe
to additional services worth approximately 40%lwit initial purchase. To further penetrate thisdgave plan to
continue actively marketing our portfolio of sem#cthrougte-commerceand by expanding our sales for

Continue to build our user communitytVe grow our community of users by marketing emies through paid
advertising that targets prospective customers arkseeking remotesnnectivity solutions and by offering our popt
free services, LogMeln Free, join.me and LogMelmrtdahi2. This strategy improves the effectiveness of auine
advertising by increasing our response rates v




people seeking remote-connectivity solutions cab@dnline searches. In addition, our large anavgrg community of
users drives awareness of our services and in@eefarals of potential customers and us

Expand internationally We believe there is a significant opportunityrtorease our sales internationally. We offer
solutions in 12 different languages and our sohgiare used in more than 200 countries. We intercpand our
international sales and marketing staff and ina@eas international marketing expenditures to @atteantage of this
opportunity.

Continue to expand our service portfolidVe intend to continue to invest in the develophtémew on-demand,
remote-connectivity solutions for businesses, IT servioevjlers and consumel

Pursue strategic acquisition We plan to pursue acquisitions that complementeaisting business, represent a strong
strategic fit and are consistent with our overativgth strategy. We may also target future acquisgtito expand or add
functionality and capabilities to our existing golio of services, as well as add new solutionsuo portfolio.

Services and Technology

Our services are accessed on the Web and delieareémand via our service delivery platform, Gnavdur services
generally fall into one of three categories:

Remote user access servic These services allow users to access computdrsthar Interneenabled devices in orc
to continue working while away from the office ordccess personal systems while away from homeseTservices
include free remote access offerings and premiursioes that include additional featur

Remote support and management serv. These services are used by internal IT deparsramd by external service
and support organizations to deliver support andagament of IT resources remote

Remote collaboratior These services are used by business users asdngers to conduct online meetings and share
documents, images and their desktop with othersuseenable fast, affordable and secure onlin@bohation

Remote User Access Services

LogMeln Freeis our free remote access service. It providesrseatress to a remote computer or other Interredtted
device. Once installed on a device, a user carkiyuind easily access that device’'s desktop, fapglications and network
resources.

LogMeln Pro2is our premium remote access service. It can bilyaimstalled without IT expertise. Users typigall
engage in a trial prior to purchase.

LogMeln Pro2offers several premium features not available thhouogMeln Free, including:

File transfer. Files and folders can be moved easily betweerpadens using drag-and-drop or dual-pane file trensf
capabilities

Remote sounc¢ A user can hear on his local computer e-maiifications, music and podcasts originating framemot:
PC.

File share. Large files can be distributed by sending a timkt permits remote third parties to download & diirectly
from a LogMeln subscrib’s computer

Remote to local printin¢ Files from a remote PC are automatically prirtted local printer without downloading
drivers or manually configuring printer settin

Desktop sharing A remote third-party user can be invited to viewcontrol a LogMeln user’s desktop for online
meetings and collaboratio




 File sync. Files and folders can be synchronized betweemtermnd local computer
« Drive mapping Drives on a remote PC can be accessed as ifiteelpcal.

* Wake On Lan Wake a remote computer that is sleeping or taean that is off right from a web brows

LogMeln Hamachtis a hosted virtual private network, or VPN, seevihat sets up a computer network among remote
computers. It typically works with existing netwaakd firewall configurations and can be managechfeoweb browser or the
user’s software. Using LogMeln Hamaéhiusers can securely communicate over the Inteséttheir computers are on the
same local area network, allowing for remote aceeskvirtual networking. LogMeln Hamachis offered both as a free serv
for non-commercial use and as a paid service forrercial use.

LogMeln Ignitionis a premium service that delivers one click acéesemote computers that subscribe to LogMeln Free
or LogMeln Pr&?. Users can install LogMeln Ignition on a mobilevite, a computer, or run the application from aversal
storage device in order to directly access thdisstibed computer, eliminating the need for inatadh of additional software.
LogMeln Ignition is available for Windows-based P@s well as an Apple iPad, iPhone, iPod touch,famidfoid-based
smartphones and tablets.

Remote Support and Management Services

LogMeln Rescuis a Web-based remote support service used by éslipatofessionals to support remote computers and
applications and assist computer users via thenleteLogMeln Rescue enables the delivery of irtiiva support to a remote
computer without having priestalled software. The end user grants permigsidhe help desk technician before the techni
can access, view or control the end user’s computging LogMeln Rescue, support professionals ecanncunicate with end
users through an Internet chat window while diagrgpand repairing computer problems. If given aiddial permission by the
computer user, the support professional can take keyboard and mouse control of the end user’spoten to take necessary
support actions and to train the end user on teetisoftware and operating system applicationgrigpmpletion of the
session, all LogMeln software is removed from tamote computer. LogMeln Rescue is used by compafiesrying sizes,
from one-person support organizations to Forturecfinpanies servicing employees and customers.

LogMeln Rescue includes the following features:

< Rapid incident resolutior Helpdesk professionals can gain access to tijett®C quickly, often in under 60 seconds,
and can take advantage of our remote control chjiedto perform support functions available thgbua technician
console, including: reading critical system infotiom, deploying scripts, copying files through dad drop and
rebooting the machine. Includes the ability to glyi@ccess remote distributed devices, as welinesalick access to
on-lan systems

« Seamless end-user experiendeogMeln Rescue facilitates an end user’s reagiguistomer support. End users remain
in control of the support session and can inites®ssion in a variety of ways, such as by cliclkiigk on a website or
in an email or by entering a pin code providedhsy support provider. The end user then sees axthdbw, branded
with the support provider’s logo, and responds sei@es of access and control requests while cigattith the support
provider.

» Support session and queue managemdiie helpdesk professional can use the LogMelinfliean Console to
manage a queue of support incident requests atoltep simultaneous live remote sessions. The suppeue can be
shared and current live sessions can be transferretther c-workers as neede

< Administration Center The Administration Center is used to create asiga permissions for groups of support
technicians. It is also used to create supportmélarthe web-based links and/or icons that autaalfticonnect
customers to technicians and assign them to spepifups. Support managers use the Administratemte® to genera
reports about individual sessions, |-session survey data and technician acti




« Integrated security LogMeln Rescue includes security features desigoesafeguard the security and privacy of both
the support provider and the end user. All datastmr@ssion is encrypted using industry-standardygatiom often used
by financial institutions. Sessions can be recotaethe support provider and will create a recdrdaxch level of acce:
permission granted by the end user. Any files fiemad between computers are uniquely identifiedamonstrate that
no changes were made to original fil

LogMeln Rescue+Mobiles an add-on of LogMeln Rescue’s web-based remgipat service that allows call center
technicians and IT professionals to remotely acaesissupport smartphones and tablet computers.l&obérs requesting help
will receive a text message from a technician tordload a small software application onto the snfaite. Once installed, the
user enters a code connecting the device to timitgan. After the user grants the technician pesioi, the technician can
remotely access and control the phone or tablet tieeir Rescue+Mobile Technician Console to renyatehtrol and update
the phone’s configuration settings, access systéonmation, file transfer and reboot the devicest©mers of this service can
support Blackberry, Symbian, iOS and Android desice

LogMeln Centrais a web-based management console that helps agisers, IT professionals and other users deploy
and administer LogMeln Pr, LogMeln Free and LogMeln Hamachi

LogMeln Central is offered as a premium service iactudes the following features:

* User managementLogMeln Central provides account holders with @lhdity to manage additional users for an
account, including user access controls and peionis:

« Software deploymer LogMeln Central allows the deployment of LogMéilost software over the we

* Reporting. LogMeln Central provides the ability to report @ccount, device and session d.

« Integrated security LogMeln Central utilizes industry-standard endiyp and authentication methods. In addition,
LogMeln Central also supports detailed accounttdadging, including changes to account email aslsies, failed
attempts to login and changes to account secuattings.

« Host configuration LogMeln Central enables the configuration of Laglhlhost software, including access settings,
network restrictions and other compliance optic

» Computer grouping and account personalizatiohogMeln Central allows users to organize theirides into specific
groups, and personalize the console to meet spew#ds, including the saved searches, links twuress and
customized charting and graphii

* One2Many tasks and commandsogMeln Central, when combined with LogMeln Piwost software, enables user:
push software updates, scripts and common manadeasis to multiple devices simultaneously ensuraggd batch
updates to dozens, hundreds or even thousandwvickde

When combined with LogMeln P&host software, LogMeln Central also provides abgrtind monitoring, computer
inventory tracking, background login and advanagubrting and analysis. When combined with LogMebamtéchi2 host
software, LogMeln Central provides additional weiséd management capabilities for VPN connectiwtyises, such as
hub-and-spoke, gateway and mesh networking anchaddareporting and analysis.

We also offer a systems administration producecalRemotelyAnywhere. RemotelyAnywhere is used toaga personal
computers and servers from within the IT systeraroénterprise. Unlike our LogMeln services, Reny#alwhere is licensed
to our customers on a perpetual basis, and we wiééntenance covering upgrades and service suppdHis application.

LogMeln Backups a service that subscribers install on two oreremmputers to create a backup network and is gkyer
sold as a complement to the LogMeln Central or LegivMPro? services. LogMeln Backup is easy to install andsjates IT
service providers a simple backup alternative ferdheir customers using storage capacity that toetrol. Users can transfer
specified files and folders from one computer tothar either manually or automatically in accordangth a pre-determined
schedule. Files can be stored on, and restorethyoPC that the subscriber chooses, using indssarydard encryption
protocols for the transmission and storage of tita.d




Remote Collaboration Service:

join.meandjoin.me proare browser-based online meeting and screen shsginices that give users the ability to quickly
and securely share their computer desktop wittol850 other people. Both services can be initiaifter through a visit to the
http://join.mewebsite or through a small downloadable desktopiegijon. Users start or ‘host’ a collaborationsies by
clicking a ‘share button’ which generates a 9-dmitneric code. They then provide this code to otisers (‘attendees’ or
‘viewers’) who enter it at the join.me website atligk ‘join’. Within a few seconds, the attendees @iewing the host’s screen.
Like LogMeln Free and LogMeln PEq join.me is offered in a free-to-pamdodel where the free service encourages wides
awareness and word-of-mouth referrals and the ‘geesion introduces additional functionality anchéfits for a monthly or
annual subscription.

join.me free includes the following features:

< Screen sharing.join.me enables users to share their local coermdreen with up to 250 other people for online
meetings or ad hoc collaboratic

e Chat. A simple text chat option that provides userswiite ability to chat with all meeting participamatswith
individual participants

 File sharing. join.me allows users to transfer or share fitesnf one computer to anoth
* Remote contro Allows host users to give attendees remote cbofriheir screen and computt

< Toll-based conference linejoin.me offers a complementary teleconference liniquely associated with each meeting
or screen sharing sessic

join.me pro extends these capabilities with a waré premium features for a monthly or annual suipgion fee, including

« Personal meeting ID¢ Allows meeting hosts to create and use persathlizeeting codes and links for use with
attendees in place of the nine digit numeric co

* Meeting schedulel Enables hosts to schedule and invite people &timgs or planned events through an in-product
calendaring and notification syste

* Meeting'lock’. Allows hosts to lock or secure their meetingguieng attendees to ask for permission to joirobef
seeing the ho's screen

< User managementjoin.me pro gives hosts and account holders liigyacreate and manage new host accounts for co-
workers or colleague

LogMeln Gravity Service Delivery Platform

The Gravity proprietary platform consists of softa’applications, customized databases and webrse@eavity
establishes secure connections over the Intereekla remote computers and other Internet-enalgetes and manages the
direct transmission of data between remotely cotatkedevices. This patented platform reduces oudwatth and other
infrastructure requirements, which we believe makasservices faster and less expensive to dedis@ompared to competing
services. Gravity consists of proprietary softwapglications that run on standard hardware seamasoperating systems an
designed to be scalable and serve our large-ssafecommunity at low cost.

The infrastructure-related costs of delivering sevices include bandwidth, power, server deprieciand co-location
fees. Gravity transmits data using a combinatiomethods working together to relay data via ouad&nters and to transmit
data over the Internet directly between end-poavicks. During the twelve months ended Decembe2@10, more than 90%
of the data transmitted by our services was trattschilirectly between end-point devices, reducinglandwidth and
bandwidth-related costs.

Gravity is physically hosted in four separate daaters. We lease space in co-location hostindjtfasioperated by third
parties. Three of our Gravity data centers aretémtn the United States, and the fourth is




located in Europe. During the twelve months endeddnber 31, 2010, we averaged 10 million computensecting to our
Gravity service each day. Our goal is to maintaifficient excess capacity such that any one ofidita centers could fail, and
the remaining data centers could handle the lo#laowt extensive disruption to our service. Durihg twelve months ended
December 31, 2010, our Gravity service was avalabl0% of the time.

Gravity also implements multiple layers of secur®ur service utilizes industry-standard securitytpcols for encryption
and authentication. Access to a device througlseurice requires system passwords such as theamserand password for
Windows. We also add additional layers of secwsitgh as single-use passwords, IP address filtaridgP address lockout.
For security purposes, Gravity does not save eerdpassswords for devices.

Sales and Marketing

Our sales and marketing efforts are designed tacatprospects to our website, enroll them in frexds of our services ar
convert them to and retain them as paying custariiéesalso expend sales and marketing resourcdtréotausers of our free
services. We acquire new customers through a catibmof paid and unpaid sources. We also inveptlbslic relations to
broaden the general awareness of our servicesodmgdhlight the quality and reliability of our séces for specific audiences.
We are constantly seeking and employing new mettmdsach more users and to convert them to pagtistpmers.

Paid Sources of Demand Generation

Online Advertising. We advertise online through pay-per-click spegdiith search engines, banner advertising with
online advertising networks and other websitesemdil newsletters likely to be frequented by ougéa consumers, SMBs a
IT professionals.

Tradeshows. We showcase our suite of services at technolagyiredustry-specific tradeshows. Our participaiiothese
shows ranges from elaborate presentations in &blairge groups to one-on-one discussions and dstragions at manned
booths. In 2010, we attended 40 trade shows itJthited States, Europe and Australia.

Offline Advertising. Our offline print advertising is comprised of pightions, such a¥he Metro, MacLifandVSR
Magazine which are targeted at IT professionals and conssinvée sponsor advertorials in regional newspapérgh target
IT consumers. Additionally, we have advertised gsimore traditional methods, such as radio and autddvertising, in
regional markets.

Unpaid Sources of Demand Generation

Word-of-Mouth Referrals.We believe that we have developed a loyal cust@néd user base, and new customers
frequently claim to have heard about us from aentrtogMeln user. Many of our users arrive at oebsite via
word-of-mouth referrals from existing users of sarvices.

Direct Advertising Into Our User CommunityWe have a large existing community of free used paying customers.
Users of most of our services, including our magiyar service, LogMeln Free, come to our websiteheime they initiate a
new remote access session. We use this opporteniisomote additional premium services to them.

Other Marketing Initiatives

Social Media Marketing. We patrticipate in online communities such as fexjtFacebook and YouTube for the purpos
marketing, public relations and customer servideoligh these online collaboration sites, we acfieglgage our users, learn
about their wants, and foster word-of-mouth by tinggand responding to content about LogMeln eygimsmotions, product
news and user questions.

Web-Based SeminarsWe offer free online seminars to current and peasive customers designed to educate them about
the benefits of remote access, support and admatict, particularly with LogMeln, and




guide them in the use of our services. We oftehligpt customer success stories and focus the serambusiness problems
and key market and IT trends.

Public Relations. We engage in targeted public relations prograntfiyding press releases announcing important
company events and product releases, interviewsrefiorters and analysts, both general and indspegific, attending panel
and group discussions and making speeches at igangnts. We also register our services in aweodspetitions and
encourage bloggers to comment on our products.

Sales Efforts and Other Initiatives

New Account SalesOur sales are typically preceded by a trial af ohour services, and 98% of our purchase
transactions are settled via credit card. Our sgbesations team determines whether or not aghialild be managed by a
telephone-based sales representative or handlexlivie-=commerce sales process. As of December03D0, 2ve employed 64
telephonebased sales representatives to manage newly gedériais. In addition, a small sales and busiges®lopment tea
concentrates on sales to larger organizationstemébtmulation of strategic technology partnershi are intended to
generate additional sales.

Renewal Sales.All of our services are sold on a subscriptiori®aApproximately 95% of our subscriptions hateran
of one year.

International Sales. We currently have sales teams located in Eurogefaustralia focusing on international sales. It
of the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and & §enerated approximately 30% of our sales erdetside of North
America. As of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010ha¢klong-lived assets of approximately 22%, 38% 2irfo,
respectively, located outside of the United States.

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2008, 2862010, we spent $31.6 million, $35.8 millior &#5.9 million,
respectively, on sales and marketing.
Research and Development

We have made and intend to continue making sigmifitnvestments in research and development irr éod=ontinue to
improve the efficiency of our service delivery fiteim, improve existing services and bring new sasito market. Our prima
engineering organization is based in Budapest, Hryngvhere the first version of our service wasedeped. Our founding
engineering team has worked together for over Hdsyalesigning and running highly large-scale heeservices.
Approximately 43% of our employees, as of Decen®igr2010, work in research and development. Researd development
expenses totaled $12.0 million in 2008, $13.1 wrillin 2009 and $15.2 million in 2010.

In June 2009, we received approval of a grant fieenHungarian government which reimburses us fooréion of our
Hungarian research and development related casssftiur year period, beginning in September 20bfse reimbursements
are recorded as a reduction of research and dewelupexpense and totaled approximately $371,0@eiiyear ended
December 31, 2010.

Competition

The market for remote-access based products angegis evolving, and we expect to face additiammmhpetition in the
future. We believe that the key competitive factarthe market include:

 service reliability;

« ease of initial setup and us

« fitness for use and the design of features thatrbest the needs of the target custor
« the ability to support multiple device types aneigiing systems

 cost of customer acquisitio

e product and brand awarene
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« the ability to reach large fragmented groups ofsi¢
« cost of service delivery; ar
* pricing flexibility.

We believe that our large-scale user base, effidestomer acquisition model and low service dejivasts enable us to
compete effectively.

Citrix’s Online division and Cisco’s WebEx divisi@re our two most significant competitors. Both pamies offer a
service that provides hosted remote access, codtibn and remote access-based services.

Both of these competitors attract new customemutin traditional marketing and sales efforts, whikehave focused fir
on building a largescale community of users. Our approach is difféa¢ed from both Citrix and WebEx because we belige
reach significantly more users which allows ustteaat paying customers efficiently.

In addition, certain of our solutions, includingrdtee remote access service, also compete witteiguor potential
services offered by Microsoft and Apple. Certairoaf competitors may also offer, currently or ie fature, lower priced, or
free, products or services that compete with olutems.

We believe our large user base also gives us aandalye over smaller competitors and potential n&wasts into the
market by making it more expensive for them to ggneral market awareness. We currently competestgaeveral smaller
competitors, including NTRglobal (headquartere®pain), TeamViewer (headquartered in Germany) addar. In addition,
potential customers may look to software-basedfegelsolutions, including Symantec’s pcAnywhere didrosoft’'s Remote
Desktop, which comes bundled into most currentiassof the Microsoft operating system, and others.

Many of our actual and potential competitors ergogater name recognition, longer operating hissomeore varied
products and services and larger marketing budgstaell as substantially greater financial, tecAhand other resources, than
we do. In addition, we may also face future contjmetifrom new market entrants. We believe thatlatge user base, efficient
customer acquisition model and low service delivasgition us well to compete effectively in theuftd.

Intellectual Property

Our intellectual property rights are important tor business. We rely on a combination of copyrigfaiie secret,
trademark and other rights in the United Statesathdr jurisdictions, as well as confidentialityopedures and contractual
provisions to protect our proprietary technologsaogesses and other intellectual property. We ats@ lone issued patent and
three patents pending and are in the processimg fldditional patent applications that cover méaatures of our services.

We enter into confidentiality and other written egments with our employees, customers, consultemtpartners, and
through these and other written agreements, wenptteo control access to and distribution of outwsare, documentation and
other proprietary technology and other informatibespite our efforts to protect our proprietanyhtigy third parties may, in an
unauthorized manner, attempt to use, copy or otkerabtain and market or distribute our intelletraperty rights or
technology or otherwise develop products or sebngith the same functionality as our services.ddition, U.S. patent filings
are intended to provide the holder with a righeéxalude others from making, using, selling or imjmay in the United States tl
inventions covered by the claims of granted patéhtganted, our patents may be contested, ciranted or invalidated.
Moreover, the rights that may be granted in thassdpg patents may not provide us with propriefamtection or competitive
advantages, and we may not be able to preventphities from infringing these patents. Thereftine,exact effect of our
pending patents, if issued, and the other stepisave taken to protect our intellectual propertynzarbe predicted with
certainty.
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Although the protection afforded by copyright, taskcret and trademark law, written agreementcammon law may
provide some advantages, we believe that the faligiactors help us maintain a competitive advaatag

« the technological skills of our research and dgwelent personne
« frequent enhancements to our services;
« continued expansion of our proprietary technolc

“LogMeln” is a registered trademark in the United Statesmitte European Union. We also hold a number oéioth
trademarks and service marks identifying certainwfservices or features of our services. We ladga@ a number of trademe
applications pending.

Employees

As of December 31, 2010, we had 415 full-time empés. None of our employees are represented by latons or
covered by collective bargaining agreements. Wesiden our relationship with our employees to bedyoo

Segments

We have determined that we have one operating sggfa more information about our segments, sete [do our
consolidated financial statemen&)mmary of Significant Accounting Policies — Seg¢iDarta.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

These are risks and uncertainties that could cacdgal results to differ materially from the resuttontemplated by the
forward-looking statements contained in this Annual ReparForm 10-K. Because of these factors, as wetithsr variables
affecting our operating results, past financial fogmance should not be considered as a reliablécatdr of future
performance and investors should not use histotigalds to anticipate results or trends in futuexipds. These risks are n
the only ones we face. Please also see “FORWARDKING STATEMENTS?” earlier in this Annual Report oorf 10-K.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS
We may be unable to maintain profitability.

We experienced net losses of $9.1 million for 2G0W $5.4 million for 2008. In the quarter endeg@t8mber 30, 2008, v
achieved profitability and reported net incometfoz first time. We reported net income of $8.8 imillfor 2009 and
$21.1 million for 2010. We cannot predict if we Mglstain this profitability or, if we fail to swsh this profitability, again
attain profitability in the near future or at allle expect to continue making significant future exgitures to develop and
expand our business. In addition, as a public cawpae incur additional significant legal, accomgtiand other expenses that
we did not incur as a private company. These irsg@&xpenditures make it harder for us to mairftdime profitability. Our
recent growth in revenue and customer base magenstistainable, and we may not achieve sufficierenue to achieve or
maintain profitability. We may incur significantdses in the future for a number of reasons, inotpdue to the other risks
described in this report and we may encounter esten expenses, difficulties, complications andydehnd other unknown
events. Accordingly, we may not be able to maingabfitability, and we may incur significant lossfes the foreseeable future.

Growth of our business may be adversely affectebdu$inesses, IT support providers or consumers @b adopt remote
access or remote support solutions more widely.

Our services employ new and emerging technologieeeinote access and remote support. Our targ&irmess may
hesitate to accept the risks inherent in applyimg) i@lying on new technologies or methodologiesupplant traditional
methods of remote connectivity. Our business wvatl Ine successful if our target customers do natptcthe use of our remote
access and remote support technologies.
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Assertions by a third party that our services infge its intellectual property, whether or not coag could subject us to
costly and time-consuming litigation or expensivednses.

There is frequent litigation in the software anchtegology industries based on allegations of infeimgnt or other
violations of intellectual property rights. We haween, and may in the future be, subject to thandyppatent infringement
lawsuits as we face increasing competition and fmecimcreasingly visible. Regardless of the merthefse claims, they can be
time-consuming, result in costly litigation and eligion of technical and management personnel aineegs to develop a non-
infringing technology or enter into license agreatseThere can be no assurance that such liceribdé®\available on
acceptable terms and conditions, if at all andoaitfh we have previously licensed proprietary tetdmg we cannot be certain
that the owners’ rights in such technology will betchallenged, invalidated or circumvented. Fes¢hreasons and because of
the potential for high court awards that are diffigpredict, it is not unusual to find even argyabhmeritorious claims settled
for significant amounts. In addition, many of oengce agreements require us to indemnify our eusts from certain third-
party intellectual property infringement claims,ialncould increase our costs as a result of defensiich claims and may
require that we pay damages if there were an adveatmg related to any such claims. These typedaims could harm our
relationships with our customers, deter future @msrs from subscribing to our services or expod® fisrther litigation. Any
adverse determination related to intellectual prigpelaims or litigation could prevent us from afifeg all or a portion of our
services to customers due to an injunction or mequs to pay damages or license fees, which caludraely affect our
business, financial condition and operating results

For information concerning pending patent infringgrcases in which we are involved, please ref@att I, Item 3
entitled “Legal Proceedings” and Note 11 of theééaio Consolidated Financial Statements.

We depend on search engines to attract a significparcentage of our customers, and if those seaecigines change thei
listings or increase their pricing, it would limiour ability to attract new customers.

Many of our customers locate our website throughi@deengines, such as Google. Search engines ltygicavide two
types of search results, algorithmic and purchdisedgs, and we rely on both types.

Algorithmic listings cannot be purchased and atemeined and displayed solely by a set of formdesigned by the
search engine. Search engines revise their algwsifrom time to time in an attempt to optimize sbaesult listings. If the
search engines on which we rely for algorithmitidigs modify their algorithms in a manner that reelsithe prominence of our
listing, fewer potential customers may click thraug our website, requiring us to resort to othastly resources to replace this
traffic. Any failure to replace this traffic coutéduce our revenue and increase our costs. Iniadditosts for purchased listin
have increased in the past and may increase ifuthee, and further increases could have negafieets on our financial
condition.

If we are unable to attract new customers to oungees on a cost-effective basis, our revenue aaduits of operations
will be adversely affected.

We must continue to attract a large number of eusts on a cost-effective basis, many of whom hatereviously used
on-demand, remote-connectivity solutions. We relyaovariety of marketing methods to attract nevt@ugrs to our services,
such as paying providers of online services antcheangines for advertising space and priority @haent of our website in
response to Internet searches. Our ability tocittraw customers also depends on the competitigesfabe pricing of our
services. If our current marketing initiatives ai successful or become unavailable, if the cbstoh initiatives were to
significantly increase, or if our competitors off#milar services at lower prices, we may not ble &b attract new customers on
a cost-effective basis and, as a result, our revamd results of operations would be adverselyctte
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If we are unable to retain our existing customeisr revenue and results of operations would be adhety affected.

We sell our services pursuant to agreements teagemerally one year in duration. Our customer mvobligation to
renew their subscriptions after their subscrippeniod expires, and these subscriptions may no¢ihewed on the same or on
more profitable terms. As a result, our abilitygtow depends in part on subscription renewals. Vg not be able to
accurately predict future trends in customer rerigveand our customers’ renewal rates may declirfeiotuate because of
several factors, including their satisfaction asditisfaction with our services, the prices of semvices, the prices of services
offered by our competitors or reductions in ourtoogers’ spending levels. If our customers do noevetheir subscriptions for
our services, renew on less favorable terms, orad@urchase additional functionality or subscdps, our revenue may grow
more slowly than expected or decline, and our pabfiity and gross margins may be harmed.

If we fail to convert our free users to paying cashers, our revenue and financial results will be tmaed.

A significant portion of our user base utilizes services free of charge through our free sernvicdsee trials of our
premium services. We seek to convert these fredraldisers to paying customers of our premiunvises. If our rate of
conversion suffers for any reason, our revenue de&jine and our business may suffer.

We may expand by acquiring or investing in othemepanies, which may divert our management'’s attentioesult in
additional dilution to our stockholders and consunmnesources that are necessary to sustain our busine

Our business strategy may include acquiring comefeary services, technologies or businesses. Vdamdy enter into
relationships with other businesses to expand ortfgdio of services or our ability to provide oservices in foreign
jurisdictions, which could involve preferred or &xaive licenses, additional channels of distribatidiscount pricing o
investments in other companies. Negotiating thesesactions can be time-consuming, difficult anpgessive, and our ability
to close these transactions may often be subjemiriditions or approvals that are beyond our cén@®onsequently, these
transactions, even if undertaken and announced noiglose.

An acquisition, investment or new business relatidm may result in unforeseen operating difficgltéand expenditures.
particular, we may encounter difficulties assiniigtor integrating the businesses, technologiesjyxts, personnel or
operations of the acquired companies, particuiatlye key personnel of the acquired company chamgeo work for us, the
company'’s software is not easily adapted to wortkwurs or we have difficulty retaining the custemef any acquired
business due to changes in management or othersgeisitions may also disrupt our business, dieentresources and
require significant management attention that waulkerwise be available for development of our hess. Moreover, the
anticipated benefits of any acquisition, investrmambusiness relationship may not be realized omag be exposed to
unknown liabilities. For one or more of those ti@etions, we may:

* issue additional equity securities that would dilaur stockholder:
« use cash that we may need in the future to operatbusiness
 incur debt on terms unfavorable to us or that veeusmrable to repa

« incur large charges or substantial liabiliti
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< encounter difficulties retaining key employeesh# ficquired company or integrating diverse softweades or busine:
cultures; anc

« become subject to adverse tax consequences, stidisti@preciation or deferred compensation char

Any of these risks could harm our business andaijmey results.

We use a limited number of data centers to delieer services. Any disruption of service at theseifties could harm our
business.

We host our services and serve all of our custorinens four thirdparty data center facilities, of which three arealied in
the United States and one is located in Europed@\ieot control the operation of these facilitieeeTowners of our data center
facilities have no obligation to renew their agrees with us on commercially reasonable termst all alf we are unable to
renew these agreements on commercially reasonatiohs twe may be required to transfer to new dattecéacilities, and we
may incur significant costs and possible serviterimption in connection with doing so.

Any changes in third-party service levels at ouadanters or any errors, defects, disruptionglwrgerformance
problems with our services could harm our reputaéinod may damage our customers’ businesses. Ipt&ms in our services
might reduce our revenue, cause us to issue cteditsstomers, subject us to potential liabilitguse customers to terminate
their subscriptions or harm our renewal rates.

Our data centers are vulnerable to damage or ugton from human error, intentional bad acts, ganids, earthquakes,
hurricanes, floods, fires, war, terrorist attagi@wer losses, hardware failures, systems failuedscommunications failures a
similar events. At least one of our data faciliietocated in an area known for seismic activittgreasing our susceptibility to
the risk that an earthquake could significantlynm@ine operations of these facilities. The occureenica natural disaster or an
act of terrorism, or vandalism or other miscondaatecision to close the facilities without adequattice or other
unanticipated problems could result in lengthyrintptions in our services.

If the security of our customers’ confidential infonation stored in our systems is breached or othisevsubjected to
unauthorized access, our reputation may be harmadd we may be exposed to liability and a loss aftomers.

Our system stores our customers’ confidential mfation, including credit card information and othkétical data. Any
accidental or willful security breaches or otheauthorized access could expose us to liabilitytlierloss of such information,
time-consuming and expensive litigation and othessible liabilities as well as negative publicifychniques used to obtain
unauthorized access or to sabotage systems chamtgehtly and generally are difficult to recognéwel react to. We and our
third-party data center facilities may be unablanticipate these techniques or to implement adequaventative or
reactionary measures.

In addition, many states have enacted laws requa@mpanies to notify individuals of data secubtgaches involving
their personal data. These mandatory disclosugggdeng a security breach often lead to widespresghtive publicity, which
may cause our customers to lose confidence inffeetiveness of our data security measures. Anyriigdoreach, whether
successful or not, would harm our reputation, amduld cause the loss of customers.

Failure to comply with data protection standards maause us to lose the ability to offer our custama credit card
payment option which would increase our costs obpessing customer orders and make our services ddsactive to our
customers, the majority of which purchase our sews with a credit card.

Major credit card issuers have adopted data piotestandards and have incorporated these stanstdodeir contracts
with us. If we fail to maintain our compliance withe data protection and documentation standaroisted by the major credit
card issuers and applicable to us, these issuatd tarminate their agreements with us, and wedttagde our ability to offer
our customers a credit card payment option. Mosiunfindividual and SMB customers purchase ourisesvonline with a
credit card, and our business depends substantipdlyp our ability to offer the credit card paymeption. Any loss of our
ability to offer
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our customers a credit card payment option woulleraur services less attractive to them and hurbasiness. Our
administrative costs related to customer paymentegssing would also increase significantly if weaveot able to accept cre
card payments for our services.

Failure to effectively and efficiently service SMBgould adversely affect our ability to increase orgvenue.

We market and sell a significant amount of our m&to SMBs. SMBs are challenging to reach, aeqaid retain in a
cost-effective manner. To grow our revenue quicwg,must add new customers, sell additional sesvicexisting customers
and encourage existing customers to renew thescsigtions. Selling to and retaining SMBs is moifficult than selling to
and retaining large enterprise customers becaudg @Mtomers generally:

< have high failure rate:

e are price sensitive

« are difficult to reach with targeted sales campsi

« have high churn rates in part because of the sfdleir businesses and the ease of switching aesyanc
* generate less revenues per customer and per tti@ms:

In addition, SMBs frequently have limited budgesi anay choose to spend funds on items other thasesuices.
Moreover, SMBs are more likely to be significardiffjected by economic downturns than larger, motabdished companies,
and if these organizations experience economicshasdthey may be unwilling or unable to expendueses on IT.

If we are unable to market and sell our serviceSNiBs with competitive pricing and in a cost-effeetmanner, our
ability to grow our revenue quickly and become itatfie will be harmed.

We may not be able to respond to rapid technologatzanges with new services, which could have a enatl adverse
effect on our sales and profitability.

The on-demand, remote-connectivity solutions maikeharacterized by rapid technological changudent new service
introductions and evolving industry standards. @hifity to attract new customers and increase regdrom existing custome
will depend in large part on our ability to enhamarel improve our existing services, introduce newises and sell into new

customer demands in a timely manner. Customersragpyjre features and capabilities that our cursentices do not have. If
we fail to develop services that satisfy custonrefgrences in a timely and cost-effective manner ability to renew our
services with existing customers and our abilitgreate or increase demand for our services wilidrened.

We may experience difficulties with software deystent, industry standards, design or marketingabatd delay or
prevent our development, introduction or implemgéataof new services and enhancements. The inttamuof new services
by competitors, the emergence of new industry stedslor the development of entirely new technolegiereplace existing
service offerings could render our existing or fatgervices obsolete. If our services become otesdlge to wide-spread
adoption of alternative connectivity technologiastsas other Web-based computing solutions, olityatd generate revenue
may be impaired. In addition, any new markets imbich we attempt to sell our services, includingvreuntries or regions,
may not be receptive.

If we are unable to successfully develop or acquée services, enhance our existing services ioipate and meet
customer preferences or sell our services into markets, our revenue and results of operationsdvoeladversely affected.
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The market in which we participate is competitiveith low barriers to entry, and if we do not competffectively, our
operating results may be harmed.

The markets for remote-connectivity solutions ammpetitive and rapidly changing, with relativelyddarriers to entry.
With the introduction of new technologies and maska&rants, we expect competition to intensifyhia future. In addition,
pricing pressures and increased competition gelgeralild result in reduced sales, reduced margirikefailure of our
services to achieve or maintain widespread mat@t@ance. Often we compete against existing setltat our potential
customers have already made significant expenditwracquire and implement.

Certain of our competitors offer, or may in theufigt offer, lower priced, or free, products or seegi that compete with o
solutions. This competition may result in reduceidgs and a substantial loss of customers for olutisns or a reduction in
our revenue.

We compete with Citrix Systems, WebEXx (a divisidrCesco Systems) and others. Certain of our sahstiincluding our
free remote access service, also compete withmuorepotential services offered by Microsoft angpfe. Many of our actual
and potential competitors enjoy competitive advgesaover us, such as greater name recognitionetaperating histories,
more varied services and larger marketing budgstsyell as greater financial, technical and otkeources. In addition, many
of our competitors have established marketing imiahips and access to larger customer bases,aanednmajor distribution
agreements with consultants, system integratorgesellers. If we are not able to compete effettiveur operating results wi
be harmed.

Industry consolidation may result in increased coetion.

Some of our competitors have made or may make sitignis or may enter into partnerships or otheatsgic relationshig
to offer a more comprehensive service than thelviddally had offered. In addition, new entrantg norrently considered to
be competitors may enter the market through adiprisi, partnerships or strategic relationships.aifgect these trends to
continue as companies attempt to strengthen ortedaitheir market positions. Many of the compamigsing this trend have
significantly greater financial, technical and athesources than we do and may be better posititmadquire and offer
complementary services and technologies. The compaasulting from such combinations may createencompelling servic
offerings and may offer greater pricing flexibilit)an we can or may engage in business practieg¢srtake it more difficult fo
us to compete effectively, including on the bagiprice, sales and marketing programs, technolaggeovice functionality.
These pressures could result in a substantialbbssstomers or a reduction in our revenues.

Original equipment manufacturers may adopt solutisprovided by our competitors.

Original equipment manufacturers may in the fuseek to build the capability for on-demand, remzianectivity
solutions into their products. We may compete witihh competitors to sell our services to, or partmith, these manufacturers.
Our ability to attract and partner with these mactdrers will, in large part, depend on the contpetiess of our services. If
we fail to attract or partner with, or our compatit are successful in attracting or partnering wiiese manufacturers, our
revenue and results of operations would be affeateersely.

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate in éhfuture. As a result, we may fail to meet or exddebe expectations of
research analysts or investors, which could cause stock price to decline.

Our quarterly operating results may fluctuate assalt of a variety of factors, many of which argside of our control. If
our quarterly operating results or guidance falblethe expectations of research analysts or ilmwesthe price of our common
stock could decline substantially. Fluctuationsim quarterly operating results or guidance magueeto a number of factors,
including, but not limited to, those listed below:

 our ability to renew existing customers, increasesto existing customers and attract new custsy

< the amount and timing of operating costs and chgijpenditures related to the operation, mainteeama expansion
our business
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« service outages or security breact

< whether we meet the service level commitments imagueements with our custome

» changes in our pricing policies or those of our petitors;

« the timing and success of new application and servitroductions and upgrades by us or our congref
« changes in sales compensation plans or organizattmicture

« the timing of costs related to the developmentoguésition of technologies, services or busines

» seasonal variations or other cyclicality in the dechfor our service:

« general economic, industry and market conditiordstanse conditions specific to Internet usage anihe businesse:
« the purchasing and budgeting cycles of our custer

« the financial condition of our customers; ¢

» geopolitical events such as war, threat of waeaorist acts

We believe that our quarterly revenue and operatisglts may vary significantly in the future ahait
period-to-period comparisons of our operating rssmay not be meaningful. You should not rely ostpasults as an
indication of future performance.

If our services are used to commit fraud or otheamdlar intentional or illegal acts, we may incur gnificant liabilities, our
services may be perceived as not secure and custmay curtail or stop using our services.

Our services enable direct remote access to thrrgomputer systems. We do not control the usmotent of
information accessed by our customers through ewvices. If our services are used to commit fraudtber bad or illegal acts,
such as posting, distributing or transmitting aoftvgare or other computer files that contain a siau other harmful
component, interfering or disrupting third-partytmerks, infringing any third party’s copyright, eait, trademark, trade secret
or other proprietary rights or rights of publicity privacy, transmitting any unlawful, harassirigelous, abusive, threatening,
vulgar or otherwise objectionable material, or asagg unauthorized third-party data, we may becsuafgect to claims for
defamation, negligence, intellectual property imjiément or other matters. As a result, defendid slaims could be
expensive and time-consuming, and we could ingmificant liability to our customers and to indivials or businesses who
were the targets of such acts. As a result, ounbas may suffer and our reputation will be damaged

We provide minimum service level commitments to sowfi our customers, the failure of which to meetutd cause us to
issue credits for future services or pay penaltigdich could significantly harm our revenue.

Some of our customer agreements now, and may ifuthee, provide minimum service level commitmerggarding
items such as uptime, functionality or performarteie are unable to meet the stated service leegimitments for these
customers or suffer extended periods of unavaitgbdr our service, we are or may be contractualijigated to provide these
customers with credits for future services or ptheopenalties. Our revenue could be significamigacted if we are unable to
meet our service level commitments and are requogutovide a significant amount of our services@tcost or pay other
penalties. We do not currently have any reservesunialance sheet for these commitments.
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We have experienced rapid growth in recent periodisve fail to manage our growth effectively, we ymae unable to
execute our business plan, maintain high levelssefrvice or address competitive challenges adequyatel

We increased our revenue from $51.7 million in 260874.4 million in 2009 and to $101.1 million2010. Our growth
has placed, and may continue to place, a signifisgiain on our managerial, administrative, opersal, financial and other
resources. We intend to further expand our overainess, customer base, headcount and operatitimsllmestically and
internationally. Creating a global organization amanaging a geographically dispersed workforce mijuire substantial
management effort and significant additional inmett in our infrastructure. We will be requiredctantinue to improve our
operational, financial and management controlsaurdeporting procedures and we may not be abi®tso effectively. As
such, we may be unable to manage our expensesietfgdn the future, which may negatively impactrgross profit or
operating expenses in any particular quarter.

If we do not effectively expand and train our woferce, our future operating results will suffer.

We plan to continue to expand our work force baimdstically and internationally to increase ourtooer base and
revenue. We believe that there is significant catitipa for qualified personnel with the skills atethnical knowledge that we
require. Our ability to achieve significant revergrewth will depend, in large part, on our sucdes®cruiting, training and
retaining sufficient numbers of personnel to suppar growth. New hires require significant traigiand, in most cases, take
significant time before they achieve full produdijv Our recent hires and planned hires may nobberas productive as we
expect, and we may be unable to hire or retairigefft numbers of qualified individuals. If our rading, training and
retention efforts are not successful or do not ggteea corresponding increase in revenue, our bssiwill be harmed.

Our sales cycles for enterprise customers, currgrgpproximately 10% of our overall sales, can bado unpredictable anc
require considerable time and expense, which maysmour operating results to fluctuate.

The timing of our revenue from sales to enterpeisgtomers is difficult to predict. These effortquize us to educate our
customers about the use and benefit of our ser\vitelsiding the technical capabilities and potdnti@st savings to an
organization. Enterprise customers typically uraleta significant evaluation process that haserptst resulted in a lengthy
sales cycle, typically several months. We spendtsuibial time, effort and money on our enterprisles efforts without any
assurance that our efforts will produce any safeaddition, service subscriptions are frequentilgject to budget constraints
and unplanned administrative, processing and atékays. If sales expected from a specific custdiorea particular quarter are
not realized in that quarter or at all, our resatisld fall short of public expectations and ousibess, operating results and
financial condition could be adversely affected.

Our long-term success depends, in part, on our &pito expand the sales of our services to custosrlecated outside of
the United States, and thus our business is susitdpto risks associated with international saleschoperations.

We currently maintain offices and have sales perebar independent consultants outside of the drftates and are
expanding our international operations. Our intéomal expansion efforts may not be successfuaddition, conducting
international operations subjects us to new ribls we have not generally faced in the United State

These risks include:

« localization of our services, including traatgbn into foreign languages and adaptation foallpcactices and regulatory
requirements

« lack of familiarity with and unexpected changegareign regulatory requirement

 longer accounts receivable payment cycles andcdliffes in collecting accounts receivak
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« difficulties in managing and staffing internatiomgderations
« fluctuations in currency exchange rat

» potentially adverse tax consequences, inctutiie complexities of foreign value added or othgrsystems and
restrictions on the repatriation of earnin

« dependence on certain third parties, including nbapartners with whom we do not have extensiveeggpce;
« the burdens of complying with a wide variety ofdgn laws and legal standar:

 increased financial accounting and reporting busderd complexities

* political, social and economic instability abro&efrorist attacks and security concerns in genarad

* reduced or varied protection for intellectual pnapeights in some countrie

Operating in international markets also requirgsificant management attention and financial resesirThe investment
and additional resources required to establishatipers and manage growth in other countries mayrastuce desired levels
revenue or profitability.

Our success depends on our customers’ continuechksgeed access to the Internet and the continudéal@lity of the
Internet infrastructure.

Because our services are designed to work ovdntBeet, our revenue growth depends on our custrhigh-speed
access to the Internet, as well as the continugdtereance and development of the Internet infrattine. The future delivery
our services will depend on third-party Internetg providers to expand high-speed Internet a;desmaintain a reliable
network with the necessary speed, data capacitgenagrity, and to develop complementary productssamvices, including
high-speed modems, for providing reliable and tymeternet access and services. The success dfusimess depends directly
on the continued accessibility, maintenance anddrgment of the Internet as a convenient meansstbmer interaction, as
well as an efficient medium for the delivery andtdbution of information by businesses to theipdogees. All of these facto
are out of our control.

To the extent that the Internet continues to exqmer increased numbers of users, frequency ofrusanalwidth
requirements, the Internet may become congestetb@undable to support the demands placed on ititamperformance or
reliability may decline. Any future Internet outager delays could adversely affect our ability toyide services to our
customers.

Our success depends in large part on our abilityptmtect and enforce our intellectual property righ

We rely on a combination of copyright, service mar&kdemark and trade secret laws, as well as @entiiality procedures
and contractual restrictions, to establish andgmtodur proprietary rights, all of which providelptimited protection. In
addition, we have one issued patent and three fsgpending, and we are in the process of filingitamithl patents. We cannot
assure you that any patents will issue from ourenily pending patent applications in a manner g¢inags us the protection that
we seek, if at all, or that any future patentseskto us will not be challenged, invalidated ocemvented. Any patents that
may issue in the future from pending or future paggpplications may not provide sufficiently brgatection or they may not
prove to be enforceable in actions against allégihgers. Also, we cannot assure you that anyriiservice mark or
trademark registrations will be issued for pendinduture applications or that any registered servharks or trademarks will
be enforceable or provide adequate protection opoaprietary rights.

We endeavor to enter into agreements with our eyel® and contractors and agreements with partiesatiom we do
business to limit access to and disclosure of oopnietary information. The steps we have takemyéwer, may not prevent
unauthorized use or the reverse engineering ofemimology. Moreover, others may independently bgveechnologies that
are competitive to ours or infringe our intelledtua
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property. Enforcement of our intellectual propeatghts also depends on our successful legal aciigamst these infringers, t
these actions may not be successful, even wherighis have been infringed.

Furthermore, effective patent, trademark, serviegkmcopyright and trade secret protection maybeoavailable in every
country in which our services are available. Iniadd, the legal standards relating to the valid@gforceability and scope of
protection of intellectual property rights in Imet-related industries are uncertain and still engj.

Our use of “open source” software could negativelifect our ability to sell our services and subjaec to possible
litigation.

A portion of the technologies licensed by us incogte so-called “open source” software, and we megrporate open
source software in the future. Such open sourdsvacé is generally licensed by its authors or othid parties under open
source licenses. If we fail to comply with thesmlises, we may be subject to certain conditiotyding requirements that we
offer our services that incorporate the open sosofevare for no cost, that we make available segade for modifications or
derivative works we create based upon, incorpagatinusing the open source software and/or thdtogase such
modifications or derivative works under the ternishe particular open source license. If an authrasther third party that
distributes such open source software were toallleat we had not complied with the conditions ¢ @r more of these
licenses, we could be required to incur signifidagal expenses defending against such allegagéindsould be subject to
significant damages, enjoined from the sale ofsmuvices that contained the open source softwateeauired to comply with
the foregoing conditions, which could disrupt thstibution and sale of some of our services.

We rely on third-party software, including serveofsware and licenses from third parties to use pated intellectual
property that is required for the development ofraervices, which may be difficult to obtain or wdti could cause errors
or failures of our services.

We rely on software licensed from third partiestfer our services, including server software frbticrosoft and patente
third-party technology. In addition, we may needhtain future licenses from third parties to usteliectual property
associated with the development of our services;twimight not be available to us on acceptable seonat all. Any loss of tt
right to use any software required for the develeptrand maintenance of our services could resuleiays in the provision of
our services until equivalent technology is eittieveloped by us, or, if available, is identifiebtained and integrated, which
could harm our business. Any errors or defecthimtltparty software could result in errors or duee of our services which
could harm our business.

If we fail to maintain proper and effective interdaontrols, our ability to produce accurate and taty financial statement:
could be impaired, which could harm our operatingsults, our ability to operate our business and éstors’ views of us.

Ensuring that we have adequate internal financidlaccounting controls and procedures in placéaowe can produce
accurate financial statements on a timely basisdgstly and time-consuming effort. Our internattrols over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasem@surance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the preparati
of financial statements in accordance with gengiatlcepted accounting principles in the Unitede3tatf America. In addition,
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002herSarbanes-Oxley Act, requires an annual manageassassment of the
effectiveness of our internal controls over finahceporting and a report from our independentstegéd public accounting
firm addressing the effectiveness of our intermaitmols over financial reporting. We have documentested and improved, to
the extent necessary, our internal controls overitial reporting for the year ended December 8102If in the future we are
not able to comply with the requirements of Secd6d of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act in a timely manpeif as part of our
process of documenting and testing our internatrotsover financial reporting, we or our indepentdesgistered public
accounting firm identify deficiencies or areas fimther attention and improvement, implementingrappate changes to our
internal controls may distract our officers and éypes, entail substantial costs to modify our taxisprocesses and take

21




significant time to complete. These changes mayhawever, be effective in maintaining the adequafoyur internal controls,
and any failure to maintain that adequacy, or cgueet inability to produce accurate financial stagats on a timely basis,
could increase our operating costs and harm ounéss In addition, investors’ perceptions thatioternal controls are
inadequate or that we are unable to produce aecfir@ncial statements on a timely basis may harnstock price and make
more difficult for us to effectively market and lselir services to new and existing customers.

Material defects or errors in the software we usedeliver our services could harm our reputatiorgsult in significant
costs to us and impair our ability to sell our séres.

The software applications underlying our serviaesiaherently complex and may contain material disfer errors,
particularly when first introduced or when new vens or enhancements are released. We have froenttirime found defects
in our services, and new errors in our existingises may be detected in the future. Any defeds ¢ause interruptions to the
availability of our services could result in:

< areduction in sales or delay in market acceptaficer services

» sales credits or refunds to our custom

« loss of existing customers and difficulty in attiag new customers
« diversion of development resourc

< harm to our reputation; ar

 increased insurance cos

After the release of our services, defects or srmeay also be identified from time to time by outernal team and by our
customers. The costs incurred in correcting anyenwtdefects or errors in our services may betsuitisl and could harm our
operating results.

Government regulation of the Internet and e-commerand of the international exchange of certain taublogies is
subject to possible unfavorable changes, and outuiee to comply with applicable regulations coulcahm our business
and operating results.

As Internet commerce continues to evolve, incragasigulation by federal, state or foreign governtadrecomes more
likely. For example, we believe increased regufatlikely in the area of data privacy, and lawsl aegulations applying to t
solicitation, collection, processing or use of pe or consumer information could affect our costes’ ability to use and
share data, potentially reducing demand for oudpets and services. In addition, taxation of prasland services provided
over the Internet or other charges imposed by gowent agencies or by private organizations for s&iog the Internet may
also be imposed. Any regulation imposing greates fler Internet use or restricting the exchangefofmation over the
Internet could result in reduced growth or a deximthe use of the Internet and could diminishviadility of our Internet-
based services, which could harm our business padhtng results.

Our software products contain encryption technasgcertain types of which are subject to U.S.fangign export contre
regulations and, in some foreign countries, rebns on importation and/or use. We have submitiedencryption products
for technical review under U.S. export regulatiansl have received the necessary approvals. Anyréaiin our part to comply
with encryption or other applicable export conteduirements could result in financial penaltie®ihrer sanctions under the
U.S. export regulations, which could harm our besgiand operating results. Foreign regulatoryictisins could impair our
access to technologies that we seek for improvimgpooducts and services and may also limit or cedhe demand for our
products and services outside of the United States.
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Our operating results may be harmed if we are reqd to collect sales or other related taxes for awbscription services
in jurisdictions where we have not historically derso.

Primarily due to the nature of our services ina@erstates and countries, we do not believe weeayaired to collect sales
or other related taxes from our customers in cedtdtes or countries. However, one or more otfa¢es or countries may seek
to impose sales or other tax collection obligationaus, including for past sales by us or our tegehnd other partners. A
successful assertion that we should be collectiessor other related taxes on our services caddlrin substantial tax
liabilities for past sales, discourage customesmfpurchasing our services or otherwise harm osinless and operating
results.

The loss of key personnel or an inability to attteend retain additional personnel may impair our gity to grow our
business.

We are highly dependent upon the continued seanckeperformance of our senior management team eytekhnical
and sales personnel, including our President arnief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer a@hief Technical Officer.
These officers are not party to an employment agese with us, and they may terminate employmernt wi at any time with
no advance notice. The replacement of these offidezly would involve significant time and cos#sd the loss of these
officers may significantly delay or prevent the msfement of our business objectives.

We face intense competition for qualified indiviteirom numerous technology, software and manufamjlcompanies.
For example, our competitors may be able attragtratain a more qualified engineering team by affgmore competitive
compensation packages. If we are unable to attegtengineers and retain our current engineersnayenot be able to
develop and maintain our services at the samedesbur competitors and we may, therefore, lotengial customers and
sales penetration in certain markets. Our failarattract and retain suitably qualified individuatauld have an adverse effect
on our ability to implement our business plan awla result, our ability to compete would decreasepperating results wou
suffer and our revenues would decrease.

Adverse economic conditions or reduced IT spendimgy adversely impact our revenues and profitability

Our business depends on the overall demand fondiToa the economic health of our current and prospeecustomers.
The use of our service is often discretionary amg mvolve a commitment of capital and other resear Weak economic
conditions, or a reduction in IT spending evercibgomic conditions improve, would likely adversetypact our business,
operating results and financial condition in a nemaf ways, including by lengthening sales cyclewgering prices for our
services and reducing sales.

Our limited operating history makes it difficult tevaluate our current business and future prospects

Our company has been in existence since 2003, aicti of our growth has occurred in recent periods. ldnited
operating history may make it difficult for you éwaluate our current business and our future poisp#/e have encountered
and will continue to encounter risks and difficeftifrequently experienced by growing companiegidly changing
industries, including increasing expenses as wéruaos to grow our business. If we do not managsetrsks successfully, our
business will be harmed.

Our business is substantially dependent on marketriand for, and acceptance of, the on-demand modettfie use of
software.

We derive, and expect to continue to derive, sutbisidy all of our revenue from the sale of on-demaolutions. As a
result, widespread acceptance and use of the oy ivusiness model is critical to our future growtidl success. Under the
perpetual or periodic license model for softwarecprement, users of the software typically run apibns on their hardware.
Because companies are generally predisposed tdaimaing control of their IT systems and infrasturet, there may be
resistance to the concept of accessing the furaitgrthat software provides as a service througira party. If the market for
on-demand,
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software solutions fails to grow or grows more diothan we currently anticipate, demand for ouvgms could be negatively
affected.
RISKS RELATED TO OWNERSHIP OF OUR COMMON STOCK

Our failure to raise additional capital or generatiie cash flows necessary to expand our operatiand invest in our
services could reduce our ability to compete susfealby.

We may need to raise additional funds, and we noaype able to obtain additional debt or equity ficiag on favorable
terms, if at all. If we raise additional equity dimcing, our stockholders may experience significéiotion of their ownership
interests, and the per share value of our comnumwk stould decline. If we engage in debt financing,may be required to
accept terms that restrict our ability to incur diddal indebtedness and force us to maintain sigekcliquidity or other ratios. |
we need additional capital and cannot raise itareptable terms, we may not be able to, among thhegs:

« develop or enhance our servic

» continue to expand our development, sales and riagkerganizations
» acquire complementary technologies, products oinlesses

e expand our operations, in the United States ornat@nally;

« hire, train and retain employees;

* respond to competitive pressures or unanticipatediwg capital requirement

Our stock price may be volatile, and the marketgaiof our common stock may drop in the future.

Prior to the completion of our initial public offag, or IPO, in July 2009, there was no public neafior shares of our
common stock. During the period from our IPO uR8bruary 28, 2011, our common stock has tradedghsas $47.54 and as
low as $15.15. An active, liquid and orderly mark@tour common stock may not develop or be susthiwhich could depre:
the trading price of our common stock. Some offfieors that may cause the market price of our comatock to fluctuate
include:

« fluctuations in our quarterly financial resultstbe quarterly financial results of companies paregito be similar to u:
« fluctuations in our recorded revenue, even duriagaals of significant sales order activi

» changes in estimates of our financial results comemendations by securities analy:

« failure of any of our services to achieve or mamtaarket acceptanc

< changes in market valuations of similar compar

« success of competitive products or servi

« changes in our capital structure, such as futsaisces of securities or the incurrence of ¢

e announcements by us or our competitors of signifisgrvices, contracts, acquisitions or stratelji@rees;
 regulatory developments in the United States, fpreiountries or bott

« litigation involving our company, our general inthysor both;

« additions or departures of key personi

« general perception of the future of the rer-connectivity market or our service

 investor’ general perception of us; a

» changes in general economic, industry and markeditions.
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In addition, if the market for technology stockstloe stock market in general experiences a logsvektor confidence, the
trading price of our common stock could declinerasons unrelated to our business, financial ¢iomddr results of
operations. If any of the foregoing occurs, it @bcause our stock price to fall and may expose atalss action lawsuits that,
even if unsuccessful, could be costly to defendaddstraction to management.

A significant portion of our total outstanding shas may be sold into the public market in the neature, which could
cause the market price of our common stock to dsignificantly, even if our business is doing well.

If our existing stockholders sell a large numbesludires of our common stock or the public marketgiees that such
existing stockholders might sell shares of comntonls the trading price of our common stock couddlahe significantly.

If securities or industry analysts do not publisir oease publishing research or reports about usr business or our
market, or if they change their recommendations exding our stock adversely, our stock price anddiag volume could
decline.

The trading market for our common stock is influesh®y the research and reports that industry argies analysts
publish about us, our business, our market or ommpetitors. If any of the analysts who cover usiay cover us in the future
change their recommendation regarding our stockmsaly, or provide more favorable relative recomdations about our
competitors, our stock price would likely declifeany analyst who covers us or may cover us inftinere were to cease
coverage of our company or fail to regularly publisports on us, we could lose visibility in theancial markets, which in tu
could cause our stock price or trading volume tdlide.

Our management has broad discretion over the us®wof existing cash resources and might not use sudichds in ways
that increase the value of our common stock.

Our management will continue to have broad disoretd use our cash resources. Our management noghpply these
cash resources in ways that increase the valuarafmmmon stock.

We do not expect to declare any dividends in theefeeable future.

We do not anticipate declaring any cash dividendsolders of our common stock in the foreseealtieréu Consequently,
stockholders must rely on sales of their commonkstdter price appreciation, which may never ocasrthe only way to
realize any future gains on the value of their eeaf our common stock.

As a newly public company, we incur significant aitidnal costs which could harm our operating resslt

As a newly public company, we incur significant aitehal legal, accounting and other expenses theatlist not incur as a
private company, including costs associated withlipicompany reporting requirements.

We also have incurred and will continue to incusts@mssociated with current corporate governargqpgraments,
including requirements under Section 404 and gbhevisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as well dssimplemented by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, andNB&®DAQ Global Market. The expenses incurred byliputbmpanies
for reporting and corporate governance purposes lmareased dramatically. We expect these rulegseguaations to
substantially increase our legal and financial climmge costs and to make some activities more tiovesuming and costly. W\
also expect these new rules and regulations mag ihakore difficult and more expensive for us toimtain director and
officer liability insurance, and we may be requitedaccept reduced policy limits and coverage ouirsubstantially higher
costs to obtain the same or similar coverage pusWoavailable. As a result, it may be more diffidor us to attract and retain
qualified individuals to serve on our board of diars or as our executive officers.
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Anti-takeover provisions contained in our certifiéa of incorporation and bylaws, as well as provisgof Delaware law,
could impair a takeover attempt.

Our certificate of incorporation, bylaws and Delagvéaw contain provisions that could have the aféédeendering more
difficult or discouraging an acquisition deemed esidable by our board of directors. Our corporatesgnance documents
include provisions:

« authorizing blank check preferred stock, whichild be issued with voting, liquidation, divideadd other rights
superior to our common stoc

« limiting the liability of, and providing indemnifation to, our directors and officel

« limiting the ability of our stockholders toltand bring business before special meetings ardke action by written
consent in lieu of a meetin

» requiring advance notice of stockholder pr@i®$or business to be conducted at meetings o$tmakholders and for
nominations of candidates for election to our bazrdirectors;

« controlling the procedures for the conduct and dahieg of board of directors and stockholder megti

« providing the board of directors with the eas power to postpone previously scheduled anneatings and to cancel
previously scheduled special meetin

« limiting the determination of the number ofeditors on our board of directors and the filliigzacancies or newly
created seats on the board to our board of direthen in office; an

« providing that directors may be removed by stoctts only for caust

These provisions, alone or together, could delatileatakeovers and changes in control of our camma changes in our
management.

As a Delaware corporation, we are also subjectawigions of Delaware law, including Section 203té Delaware
General Corporation law, which prevents some stoltdrs holding more than 15% of our outstanding mam stock from
engaging in certain business combinations withpptaval of the holders of substantially all of amutstanding common stock.
Any provision of our certificate of incorporation bylaws or Delaware law that has the effect ofglelg or deterring a change
in control could limit the opportunity for our stdwlders to receive a premium for their sharesusfammon stock, and could
also affect the price that some investors arenglto pay for our common stock.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal facilities consist of approximatel$,813 square feet of office space located at 508ddm Park Drive,
Woburn, Massachusetts, and approximately 25,208rsdeet of space at our development facility ledah Hungary. We also
have leased additional office space in Hungary, Netherlands, Australia and England. We believefadilities are sufficient

to support our needs through 2011 and that additigmace will be available in the future on comrighcreasonable terms as
needed.

We also lease space in four data centers opergtédrtl parties, of which three are located in thdted States and the
fourth is located in Europe.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On September 8, 2010, 01 Communique Laboratory, tm®1, filed a complaint that named us as anddat in a lawsuit
in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern DistridtVirginia (Civil Action No. 1:10cv1007). We reised service of the
complaint on September 10, 2010. The complaingaiehat we
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have infringed U.S. Patent No. 6,928,479, whichgatly is owned by 01 and has claims directedparticular application or
system for providing a private communication poftaim one computer to a second computer. The cdntgaeks damages in
an unspecified amount and injunctive relief. Ad~ebruary 28, 2011, the case remains in the disgqiease and both parties
have made various motions before the court. A isiééntatively scheduled for the second quart&0dfl. We believe we have
strong defenses to the claims and intend to defemthwsuit vigorously.

On November 3, 2010, Gemini IP LLC, or Gemini, dile complaint that named us as a defendant in suiain the
U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Tex(Civil Action No. 4:07-cv-521). We received Seevof the complaint on
November 10, 2010. The complaint alleges that we liafringed U.S. Patent No. 6,117,932, which adidly is owned b
Gemini and has claims related to a system for dimgran IT helpdesk. The complaint seeks damagas nspecified amount
and injunctive relief. We believe we have meritasalefenses to the claims and intend to defenthtinsuit vigorously.

We are from time to time subject to various otlegyal proceedings and claims, either asserted @senad, which arise
the ordinary course of business. While the outcofrthese other claims cannot be predicted withageit, management does
not believe that the outcome of any of these digal matters will have a material adverse effecbor consolidated financial
statements.
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PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND$SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Certain Information Regarding the Trading of Our Common Stock

Our common stock began trading under the symbolGMD on the NASDAQ Global Market on July 1, 2009. Ptimthat
date, there was no established public trading mdokeur common stock. The following table setgtipfor the periods
indicated, the high and low sale price per shamuofcommon stock on the NASDAQ Global Market:

High Low

2009

Third Quartet $20.9¢  $15.1¢
Fourth Quarte $23.5C $16.5¢
2010

First Quarte! $21.0f  $16.71
Second Quarte $29.9¢  $20.0Z
Third Quartet $38.62  $24.8
Fourth Quarte $47.5¢  $33.0C

Holders of Our Common Stock

As of February 22, 2011, there were 20 holdergobrd of shares of our common stock.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid dividends on oumesomstock. We currently intend to retain any futeaenings to
finance our research and development efforts, ingar@nts to our existing services, the developmeatpproprietary
technologies and the expansion of our businessdd\feot intend to declare or pay cash dividendswrcapital stock in the
foreseeable future. Any future determination to gaydends will be at the discretion of our boafdlectors and will depend
upon a number of factors, including our resultspérations, financial condition, future prospectstractual restrictions,
restrictions imposed by applicable law and othetdes our board of directors deems relevant.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities; Use of Reeds from Registered Securities
(a) Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
We did not sell any unregistered securities dutirggyear ended December 31, 2010.
(b) Use of Proceeds from Public Offerings of Comntack

On July 7, 2009, we closed our IPO, in which 7,668,shares of common stock were sold at a pritieet@ublic of
$16.00 per share. We sold 5,750,000 shares of@munmmn stock in the offering and selling stockhosdsold 1,916,667 of the
shares of common stock in the offering. The aggeegHering price for all shares sold in the offey; including shares sold by
us and the selling stockholders, was $122.7 millidre offer and sale of all of the shares in th@ iifere registered under the
Securities Act pursuant to a registration statemearfform S-1 (File No. 333-148620), which was delzeffective by the SEC
on June 30, 2009. J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc.Bardlays Capital, Inc. served as representativeélseo§everal underwriters in
this offering. We raised approximately $82.9 mitlim net proceeds after deducting underwriting alisits and commissions of
$6.4 million and other estimated offering cost$af7 million. No payments were made by us to doestofficers or persons
owning ten percent or more of our common stoclodheir associates, or to our affiliates, othentpayments in the ordinary
course of business to officers for salaries anabto-employee directors as compensation for boalmbard committee service,
or as a result of sales of shares of common stpdeling stockholders in the offering. From thé&eefive date of the
registration statement through December 31, 20&0have not used any of the net proceeds of the\WROintend to use the r
proceeds for
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general corporate purposes, including financinggsawth, developing new products, acquiring newtamers, funding capital
expenditures and, potentially, the acquisitionoofinvestment in, businesses, technologies, preducassets that complement
our business. Pending these uses, we have invbstédnds in a registered money market fund andetable securities. The
has been no material change in the planned useoégds from our IPO as described in our final pectus filed with the SEC
pursuant to Rule 424(b).

On November 19, 2009, we closed a secondary paffécing of our common stock. On December 16, 20089 closed th
sale of additional shares of common stock issuebdroffering upon the exercise of the underwritever-allotment option. In
aggregate, a total of 3,326,609 shares of commumk stere sold at a price to the public of $18.50gt&re. J.P. Morgan
Securities Inc. and Barclays Capital Inc. servertepsesentatives of the several underwriters ferotfiering. We sold
99,778 shares of our common stock in the offerimd) selling stockholders sold an additional 3,226 ,88ares of common stc
in the offering. The aggregate offering price fishares sold in the offering, including sharelldry us and the selling
stockholders, was $61.5 million. The offer and sdlall of the shares in the secondary offeringewegistered under the
Securities Act pursuant to a registration statemearfform S-1 (File No. 333-162936), which was dedseffective by the SEC
on November 19, 2009. We raised approximately #iilon in net proceeds after deducting underwgttfiscounts and
commissions of $0.1 million and other estimateaffy costs of $0.5 million. No payments were mhages to directors,
officers or persons owning ten percent or moreusfammmon stock or to their associates, or to ffiliades, other than
payments in the ordinary course of business ta@fi for salaries and to non-employee directoagpensation for board or
board committee service, or as a result of salehafes of common stock by selling stockholdethénoffering. From the
effective date of the registration statement thtoDgcember 31, 2010, we have not used any of thieeafiet proceeds received
from our secondary public offering. We intend te tise net proceeds for general corporate purpassading financing our
growth, developing new products, acquiring new aungrs, funding capital expenditures and, potegtitiie acquisition of, or
investment in, businesses, technologies, producissets that complement our business. There leasrtzematerial change in
the planned use of proceeds from our secondarygotiéring as described in our final prospectlsdiwith the SEC pursuant
to Rule 424(b).

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

Information regarding our equity compensation pland the securities authorized for issuance theleuis set forth
herein under Part Ill, ltem 12 below.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

You should read the following selected financialad@gether with our consolidated financial stateta@nd the related
notes appearing at the end of this Annual Repofiam 10-K and the “Management’s Discussion andlysisiof Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” section of thhnual Report on Form 10-K. Our historical restittr any prior period are
not necessarily indicative of results to be expéateany future period.

Years Ended December 31
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
(In thousands, except for per share data

Consolidated Statement of Operations Dats

Revenue $11,307  $ 26,99¢ $51,72:  $74,40¢  $101,05°
Cost of revenue(1 2,03: 3,92t 5,97( 7,50¢ 9,12¢
Gross profil 9,27¢ 23,07 45,75 66,90( 91,93:
Operating expense

Research and development 3,23¢ 6,661 11,997 13,14¢ 15,21«

Sales and marketing( 10,05( 19,48¢ 31,63! 35,82: 45,86¢

General and administrative( 2,94¢ 3,611 6,58° 8,297 12,31¢

Legal settlement — 2,22 60C — —

Amortization of acquired intangibles( 141 32¢ 32¢ 32¢ 33¢€
Total operating expens: 16,36¢ 32,31: 51,13¢ 57,59 73,74(
Income (loss) from operatiol (7,099 (9,240 (5,38¢) 9,30t 18,19:
Interest, ne 36E 26(C 217 12€& 634
Other income (expense), r 28 (25) (117) (294) (219
Income (loss) before provision for income ta (6,702 (9,005 (5,280 9,13¢ 18,60¢
Benefit (provision) for income taxe — (50) (122 (342) 2,491
Net income (loss (6,702 (9,055 (5,402 8,791 21,09¢
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred st (1,790 (1,919 (2,34%) (1,317
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhii $(8,49)) $(10,979 $(7,750 $ 7,48 $ 21,09¢
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhidgeer

share:

Basic $ 247 $ (299 $ (1979 $ 03¢ $ 091

Diluted $ 247 $ (299 $ (197 $ 037 $ 0.8t
Weighted average shares outstand

Basic 3,43¢ 3,68¢ 3,93t 12,99( 23,24¢

Diluted 3,43¢ 3,68¢ 3,93t 14,83t 24,84(
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(1) Includes stoc-based compensation expense and intangible amatizatpense as indicated in the following tal

Years Ended December 31

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
(In thousands)

Cost of revenue

Stock-based compensatic $— $10 $ 64 $ 54 $ 261

Intangible amortizatiol 17¢ 41E 41E 41E 251
Research and developme

Stock-based compensatic 11 10& 41¢€ 537 63€
Sales and marketin

Stoclk-based compensatic 28 177 962 932 1,552
General and administrativ

Stoclk-based compensatic 27 222 1,30¢ 1,39¢ 2,54(
Amortization of acquired intangible

Intangible amortizatiol 141 32¢ 32¢ 32¢ 33€

As of December 31
2006 2007 2008 2009(1) 2010
(In thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Date
Cash and cash equivalents and sterm marketable securitic $ 7,98:  $18,67¢ $22,91¢ $130,24¢ $167,42:
Total asset 14,65¢ 28,30: 37,41t 142,85¢ 186,67"
Deferred revenue, including lo-term portion 7,28¢ 16,10¢ 28,35¢ 34,10¢ 42,79:
Long-term debt, including current portic 2,281 1,192 —
Total liabilities 11,61¢ 23,23¢ 35,19 44,34¢ 56,29¢
Redeemable convertible preferred st 20,59¢ 32,49t 34,84: — —
Total stockholder equity (deficit) (17,559 (27,43) (32,619 98,50¢ 130,37¢

(1) Comparability affected by proceeds received from2009 public offerings
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and anslggour financial condition and results of opeaais together with ou
consolidated financial statements and the relate@® and other financial information included elbene in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. Some of the information containethia discussion and analysis or set forth elsewlretais Annual Report on
Form 1(-K, including information with respect to our plaasd strategy for our business and related finaggincludes
forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncettas. You should review the “Risk Factors” sectafrthis Annual
Report orForm 10-K for a discussion of important factorsttbauld cause actual results to differ materialigrh the results
described in or implied by the forward-looking statents contained in the following discussion aralyais.

Overview

LogMeln provides SaaS-based, on-demand, remoteectinity, collaboration and support solutions to B8/ 1T service
providers, mobile carriers, and consumers. Busesand IT service providers use our solutions tiveleremote, end-user
support and to access and manage computers andmtéraet-enabled devices more effectively anétigffitly from a remote
location, or remotely. Consumers and mobile workeses our remote connectivity solutions to accesspeaer resources
remotely and to collaborate with other users, therfacilitating their mobility and increasing thegroductivity. SMBs and
mobile professionals use our solutions to meeherdind quickly collaborate on projects. Our sohgiovhich are deployed and
accessed from anywhere through a web browser,-dearand, are secure, scalable and easy for owrmass to try, purchase
and use.

We offer three free services and nine premium sesviSales of our premium services are generatedgh
word-of-mouth referrals, web-based advertising,igxg free trials that we convert to paid subsdaps and direct marketing to
new and existing customers.

We derive our revenue principally from subscriptfeas from SMBs, IT service providers and consumiEns majority of
our customers subscribe to our services on an abase. Our revenue is driven primarily by the fn@mand type of our
premium services for which our paying customerssstibe. For the year ended December 31, 2010, wergted revenues of
$101.1 million, compared to $74.4 million for theay ended December 31, 2009, an increase of appatedy 36%.

In addition to selling our services to end users,entered into a service and marketing agreemehtliatel Corporation in
December 2007 pursuant to which we adapted ourcgedelivery platform, Gravity, to work with speicitechnology delivered
with Intel hardware and software products. The agrent provided that Intel market and sell the sewvio its customers. Intel
paid us a minimum license and service fee on atguwibasis during the term of the agreement, aadkared with Intel
revenue generated by the use of the services tiyhities to the extent it exceeded certain mininpayments. We began
recognizing revenue associated with the Intel seraind marketing agreement in the quarter endeti®épr 30, 2008 upon
receipt of customer acceptance. In September 20t notified us that it intended to terminate twnectivity service and
marketing agreement effective on December 26, 2il@ccordance with the termination provisionshef agreement, Intel will
not owe us any of the $5.0 million in fees asseclatith 2011, the final year of the agreement,daid us a one-time
termination fee of $2.5 million. During the yearded December 31, 2010, we recognized $9.6 milliorevenue from this
agreement, which includes the $2.5 million ternmioratee which was paid in December 2010.

Through December 31, 2010, we have primarily funo@doperations through the sale of redeemableetible preferred
stock which resulted in proceeds of approximat@y.8 million and cash flows from operations. Weuimed a net loss of
$5.4 million for 2008 and earned net income of $8iBion for 2009 and $21.1 million for 2010. Wepct to continue making
significant future expenditures to develop and expaur business.
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Certain Trends and Uncertainties

The following represents a summary of certain tseuald uncertainties, which could have a signifidanuact on our
financial condition and results of operations. Tusnmary is not intended to be a complete lista@éptial trends and
uncertainties that could impact our business irldhg or short term. The summary should be consitlatong with the factors
identified in the section titled Risk Factors’ of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

« We continue to closely monitor current advexsenomic conditions, particularly as they impaet&s, IT service
providers and consumers. We are unable to prduidikely duration and severity of the current ageeeconomic
conditions in the United States and other countbeasthe longer the duration the greater riskfaee in operating our
business

« We believe that competition will continue t@iease. Increased competition could result froistiegy competitors or
new competitors that enter the market becauseegbdhential opportunity. We will continue to clogahonitor
competitive activity and respond accordingly. Iraged competition could have an adverse effect ofirmancial
condition and results of operatioi

* We believe that as we continue to grow reveatuexpected rates, our cost of revenue and opgraXpenses, including
sales and marketing, research and developmentemeta) and administrative expenses will increasbsolute dollar
amounts. For a description of the general trendantigipate in various expense categories, seet“@devenue and
Operating Expens” below.

Sources of Revenue

We derive our revenue principally from subscriptfeas from SMBs, IT service providers, mobile aasiand consumers.
Our revenue is driven primarily by the number ayktof our premium services for which our payingtomers subscribe and
is not concentrated within one customer or groupustomers. The majority of our customers subsddbmir services on an
annual basis and pay in advance, typically withealit card, for their subscription. A smaller par@ge of our customers
subscribe to our services on a monthly basis thraigper month-to-month commitments or annual cormmnts that are then
paid monthly with a credit card. We initially recoa subscription fee as deferred revenue and teagnize it ratably, on a
daily basis, over the life of the subscription pdriTypically, a subscription automatically reneatshe end of a subscription
period unless the customer specifically terminétpsor to the end of the period.

In addition to our subscription fees, to a lesseéem, we also generate revenue from license andamaintenance fees
from the licensing of our RemotelyAnywhere prodiwe license RemotelyAnywhere to our customers pargetual basis.
Because we do not have vendor specific objectiveesece of fair value, or VSOE, for our maintenaac@ngements, we recc
the initial license and maintenance fee as defeeednue and recognize the fees as revenue ratabbydaily basis, over the
initial maintenance period. We also initially redanaintenance fees for subsequent maintenancedpaasdeferred revenue
and recognize revenue ratably, on a daily basisr, the maintenance period. We also generate reviemmethe license of our
Ignition for iPhone, iPad and Android product whistsold as a perpetual license and is recognigettbvered. Revenue from
RemotelyAnywhere, Ignition for iPhone, iPad and Agid represented approximately 6% of our revenuetfe year ended
December 31, 2010.

Employees
We have increased our number of full-time employteetl5 at December 31, 2010 as compared to 3B&@mber 31,
20009.

Cost of Revenue and Operating Expenses

We allocate certain overhead expenses, such aamdntitilities, to expense categories based ohehdcount in or office
space occupied by personnel in that expense cagtega percentage of our total headcount or office. As a result, an
overhead allocation associated with these coseflected in the cost of revenue and each operatipgnse category.
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Cost of Revenue Cost of revenue consists primarily of costs aisged with our data center operations and customer
support centers, including wages and benefits dosgnnel, telecommunication and hosting fees foisewices, equipment
maintenance, maintenance and license fees for atiicenses and depreciation. Additionally, anzatibn expense associal
with the acquired software and technology as welhternally developed software is included in afstevenue. The expenses
related to hosting our services and supportingfiagr and premium customers is related to the numbeustomers who
subscribe to our services and the complexity addndancy of our services and hosting infrastructdfe expect these
expenses to increase in absolute dollars as wéncentb increase our number of customers over botein total, to remain
relatively constant as a percentage of revenue.

Research and DevelopmenResearch and development expenses consist dsimnfiviages and benefits for development
personnel, professional fees associated with outedulevelopment projects, facilities rent and dejation associated with
assets used in development. We have focused aargdsand development efforts on both improving edsise and
functionality of our existing services, as welldeeloping new offerings. The majority of our resbaand development
employees are located in our development centdtsimgary. Therefore, a majority of research anceltgpment expense is
subject to fluctuations in foreign exchange rafaging the year ended December 31, 2010, we ca@thhpproximately
$214,000 of costs related to internally developethputer software to be sold as a service, whichin@sred during the
application development stage. No amounts werdalaad prior to 2010 as the costs incurred dusngh stage have
historically been immaterial. As a result, the migyoof research and development costs have bepensed as incurred. We
expect that research and development expensemerifiase in both absolute dollars and as a pergemitrevenue as we
continue to enhance and expand our services.

Sales and Marketing.Sales and marketing expenses consist primarignbifie search and advertising costs, wages,
commissions and benefits for sales and marketingppael, offline marketing costs such as media dvweg and trade shows,
professional fees and credit card processing feéekne search and advertising costs consist priynafipay-per-clickpayment
to search engines and other online advertising angath as banner ads. Offline marketing costs diectadio and print
advertisements as well as the costs to create madige these advertisements, and tradeshows, ingltite costs of space at
tradeshows and costs to design and construct tradelsooths. Advertising costs are expensed asri@dum order to continue
to grow our business and awareness of our servigegxpect that we will continue to commit resosrteeour sales and
marketing efforts. We expect that sales and margetkpenses will increase in absolute dollars batehse as a percentage of
revenue over time as our revenue increases.

General and Administrative.General and administrative expenses consist pityred wages and benefits for
management, human resources, internal IT suppoande and accounting personnel, professional fiesgrance and other
corporate expenses. We expect that general anchedrative expenses will increase primarily du¢hte significant legal costs
associated with our defense against the patenmg&ment claims made by 01 Communique. Additionagneral and
administrative expenses will increase as we costtouadd personnel, enhance our internal informatietems to align with
the growth of our business and expenses relataddit, accounting and insurance costs. We expatotir general and
administrative expenses will significantly increaséoth absolute dollars and as a percentagevehtee primarily related to
defending the patent infringement claims.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements are prepared in accordaitbeaccounting principles generally acceptechia tnited States of
America. The preparation of our financial statersertd related disclosures requires us to make astimassumptions and
judgments that affect the reported amount of askelslities, revenue, costs and expenses, aradagldisclosures. We base
estimates and assumptions on historical experiandeother factors that we believe to be reasonaider the circumstances.
We evaluate our estimates and assumptions on avirgnbasis. Our actual results may differ from ghestimates under
different assumptions and conditions. Our mostoaitaccounting policies are summarized below. [Set 2 to our financial
statements included elsewhere in this Annual Repofform 10-K for additional information about thegitical accounting
policies, as well as a description of our othengigant accounting policies.
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Revenue RecognitionWe provide our customers access to our servizesigh subscription arrangements for which our
customers pay us a fee. Our customers enter istdscription agreement with us for the use of oftwsre, our connectivity
service and access to our customer support seysoel as telephone and email support. Subscripgoieds range from
monthly to four years, and they are generally oearyn duration. The software cannot be run onkaeragntity’s hardware, and
our customers do not have the right to take posses$ the software and use it on their own or Aroentity’s hardware. We
begin to recognize revenue when there is persuasidence of an arrangement, the fee is fixed terdeénable and
collectability is deemed probable. We recognizesthigscription fee as revenue on a daily basis thesubscription period.

Agreements may include multiple deliverables byguwesh as subscription and professional servicekjding development
services. Agreements with multiple element delibéga are analyzed to determine if fair value existeach element on a
stand-alone basis. If the value of each deliverabtieterminable then revenue is recognized segdgnahen or as the services
are delivered, or if applicable, when milestonesoamted with the deliverable are achieved andpedeby the customer. If the
fair value of any of the undelivered performancégatiions cannot be determined, the arrangemeatdsunted for as a single
element and we recognize revenue on a straightlses over the period in which we expect to cotepberformance
obligations under the agreement.

Our arrangements for the licensing of RemotelyAngrehpermit our customers to use the software antledware and
include one year of maintenance services, whicludtes the right to support and upgrades, on a whenf available basis. W\
do not have VSOE for our maintenance service agamggts and thus recognize revenue ratably on w loiasis over the initial
maintenance period, which is generally one year.aWe recognize revenue from the sale of our Ignifor iPhone, iPad and
Android software products which are sold on a perglebasis. We recognize revenue when there isipsiige evidence of an
arrangement, the product has been provided toustmer, the fee is fixed or determinable and ctdleility is deemed
probable.

Income Taxes.We are subject to federal, state, and foreigornme taxes for jurisdictions in which we operate] are use
estimates in determining our provision for thesmime taxes and deferred tax assets. Deferred saxsaselated valuation
allowances, current tax liabilities and deferredliabilities are determined separately by taxgdittion. In making these
determinations, we estimate deferred tax asséd#dedevaluation allowances, current tax liabiliteexd deferred tax liabilities,
and we assess temporary differences resulting fliffiering treatment of items for tax and accountmgposes. At
December 31, 2010, our deferred tax assets codgsitmarily of net operating losses, research antkbpment credit
carryforwards, and stock option compensation expen&e assess the likelihood that deferred tax aigaéitbe realized, and we
recognize a valuation allowance if it is more likéhan not that some portion of the deferred taetsswill not be realized. This
assessment requires judgment as to the likelihaddamounts of future taxable income by tax jurigdic As of December 31,
2009, we provided a full valuation allowance agamg deferred tax assets as we believed the abgeand verifiable evidence
of our historical pretax net losses outweighedpbsitive evidence of our pre-tax income for theryamaded December 31, 2009
and forecasted future earnings. During 2010, wesessed the need for a valuation allowance agaumsteferred tax assets ¢
concluded that it was more likely than not thatwauld be able to realize certain of our deferredassets primarily as a result
of continued profitability, achieving three yeafscamulative profitability and forecasted futurem@ags. Accordingly, we
reversed the valuation allowance related to our. B8 certain foreign deferred tax assets of $8llGmduring the year ended
December 31, 2010. As of December 31, 2010, we taiaied a full valuation allowance against the def@tax assets of our
Hungarian subsidiary, as this entity has historfigcases and we concluded it was not more likely that that these deferred tax
assets are realizable. Although we believe thatauestimates are reasonable, the ultimate taecm@tation involves
significant judgment that is subject to audit by gauthorities in the ordinary course of business.
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We evaluate our uncertain tax positions based adegtermination of whether and how much of a tax fieme have taken
in our tax filings or positions is more likely thaot to be realized. Potential interest and pesmbissociated with any uncertain
tax positions are recorded as a component of indamexpense. Through December 31, 2010, we havieemtified any
material uncertain tax positions for which lialéi would be required.

Stock-Based Compensatiorghare-based awards are accounted for at faieyeloich requires us to recognize
compensation expense for all share-based awardsegranodified, repurchased or cancelled on or dfiauary 1, 2006. These
costs are recognized on a straight-line basis theerequisite service period for all time-basedegswards.

Determining the appropriate fair value model anidwating the fair value of stock-based paymentrawaequires the use
of highly subjective estimates and assumptionduding the estimated fair value of common stoclpexted life of the stock-
based payment awards and stock price volatiliteaBse there was no public market for our commaockgboior to our IPO, ot
Board of Directors determined the fair value of coom stock at each option grant date, taking intmant our most recently
available independent valuation of common stocky@lsas a number of objective and subjective fistmcluding peer group
trading multiples, the amount of preferred stockiidlation preferences, the illiquid nature of camenon stock and our size ¢
lack of historical profitability. Beginning in 200énd through our IPO in July 2009, we obtained jrshelent common stock
valuations to assist our Board of Directors in deitaing the fair value of our common stock. Detaring the fair value of
share-based awards requires the use of highly dilgeassumptions, including the expected ternhefaward and expected
stock price volatility.

The assumptions used in determining the fair vafughare-based awards represent managesieest estimates, but the
estimates involve inherent uncertainties and th@iegtion of management’s judgment. As a resuffadétors change, and we
use different assumptions, our share-based compaemsauld be materially different in the futurehdrisk-free interest rate
used for each grant is based on a U.S. Treasumpiment with a term similar to the expected ternthef share-based award.
The expected term of options has been estimatézingithe vesting period of the option, the contual life of the option and
our option exercise history. Because there wasuidiggmarket for our common stock prior to our IR@g lacked company-
specific historical and implied volatility informan. Therefore, we estimate our expected stocktlityebased on that of
publicly-traded peer companies, and we expect miwoe to use this methodology until such time ashave adequate
historical data regarding the volatility of our picly-traded stock price. We recognize compensagigpense for only the
portion of options that are expected to vest. Adoaly, we have estimated expected forfeituresatls options based on our
historical forfeiture rate and we use these raiagewelop future forfeiture rates. If our actuafféiture rate varies from our
historical rates and estimates, additional adjuste® compensation expense may be required inefyteriods. Past fair value
of option grants may not be a reliable indicatofubéire fair values as assumptions such as vdiatitey change over time.

Loss ContingenciesWe are currently involved in various legal clainmsldegal proceedings and may be subject to
additional legal claims and proceedings in therithat arise in the ordinary course of business.cahsider the likelihood of
loss or the incurrence of a liability, as well as ability to reasonably estimate the amount of J@s determining loss
contingencies. An estimated loss contingency isusztwhen we believe that it is both probable thiability has been
incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonahiipated. Significant judgment is required to deii@e both probability and
the estimated amount. We regularly evaluate cuirdatmation available and reflect the impact ofagations, settlements,
rulings, advice of legal counsel, and updated mfmion to determine whether such accruals shoultdpested and whether
new accruals are required and update our disclesgeordingly. Litigation is inherently unpredicialand is subject to
significant uncertainties, some of which are beyondcontrol. Should any of these estimates andnagsons change or prove
to have been incorrect, it could have a materigkegk effect on our results of operations, findmuisition and cash flows. See
Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial StatemenBszir |1, Iltem 8 for a further discussion of litigen and contingencies as w
as “Legal Proceedings” in Part I, Item 3.
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Results of Consolidated Operation:

The following table sets forth selected consolidatgatements of operations data for each of thegeindicated as a
percentage of total revenue.

Years Ended December 31

2008 200¢ 2010

Operations Data:
Revenue 10C% 10C% 10C%
Cost of revenur _12 _10 _ 9
Gross profil _ 88 90 _91
Operating expense

Research and developme 23 18 15

Sales and marketir 61 48 46

General and administratiy 13 11 12

Legal settlement 1 — —

Amortization of acquired intangible _1 e e
Total operating expens: 99 17 _ 73
Income (loss) from operatiol (12) 13 18
Interest and other income (expense), 1 _ @ =
Income (loss) before income tax (10) 12 18
Benefit (provision) for income tax @ = _ 3
Net income (loss (10% _12% _21%

Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Revenue. Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2016G&@k 1 million, an increase of $26.6 million, o8gover
revenue of $74.4 million for the year ended Decan®de 2009. Of the 36% increase in revenue, theritgjof the increase
was due to an increase in revenue from new custrasrour total number of premium accounts incb&sapproximately
585,000 at December 31, 2010 from approximately,GIDpremium accounts at December 31, 2009, amdritental add-on
revenues from our existing customer base. The aser@é revenue was also due to approximately $8lié@mof incremental
revenue from Intel related to the one-time termorapayment and acceleration of development feesgrized as revenue
related to the early termination of our sales argk®eting agreement in December 2010.

Cost of Revenue Cost of revenue for the year ended December @) #vas $9.1 million, an increase of $1.6 million,
22%, over cost of revenue of $7.5 million for treay ended December 31, 2009. As a percentage @fuey cost of revenue
was 9% and 10% for the years ended December 30, 20d 2009, respectively. The increase in absalollars resulted
primarily from an increase in both the number oftomers using our premium services and the totalbau of devices that
connected to our services, including devices owmeftee users, which resulted in increased hostirdjcustomer support
costs. Of the increase in cost of revenue, $0.8amitesulted from increased data center costscésteal with managing our
data centers and the hosting of our services. Atrease in data center costs was due to the expaofsour data center
facilities as we added capacity to our hostingastiructure. Additionally, $0.8 million of the in@®e in cost of revenue was due
to the increased costs in our customer supporinizgton, primarily as a result of hiring new emydes to support our
customer growth.

Research and Development Expens&esearch and development expenses for the ydaddéecember 31, 2010 were
$15.2 million, an increase of $2.1 million, or 168%er research and development expenses of $18idmior the year ended
December 31, 2009. As a percentage of revenuaanasand development expenses were 15% and 18#iefgear ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The
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increase in absolute dollars was primarily due $4 & million increase in personnel related coste/a hired additional
employees to improve the ease of use and functigradlour existing services as well as develop mewice offerings. The
increase in personnel related costs was offsetdygapitalization of approximately $0.2 millionadsts related to new product
development incurred during the application develept stage during the year ended December 31, 2ai@mounts were
capitalized in year ended December 31, 2009 asdsis incurred in the period were immaterial. Tiwréase was also due to a
$0.3 million increase in rent costs primarily rel&to our new office space in Hungary, a $0.3 orillincrease in travel-related
costs and a $0.1 million increase in depreciatiqgrease. These were offset by a $0.2 million deer@gaprofessional fees.

Sales and Marketing ExpenseSales and marketing expenses for the year endedriber 31, 2010 were $45.9 million,
an increase of $10.0 million, or 28%, over saled marketing expenses of $35.8 million for the yeaded December 31, 2009.
As a percentage of revenue, sales and marketingners were 46% and 48% for the year ended Decedith2010 and 2009,
respectively. The increase in absolute dollars pvamarily due to a $6.4 million increase in marketiprogram costs and a
$2.6 million increase in personnel-related anduitiolg costs from additional employees hired toparp our growth in sales
and expand our marketing efforts. The increasealssdue to a $0.4 million increase in credit ganacessing fees, a
$0.2 million increase in hardware and software negiance costs, a $0.2 million increase in travielteel costs and a $0.1
increase in rent costs primarily related to theaggion of our corporate headquarters.

General and Administrative Expense&eneral and administrative expenses for the ggded December 31, 2010 were
$12.3 million, an increase of $4.0 million, or 488%er general and administrative expenses of $8I®mfor the year ended
December 31, 2009. As a percentage of revenuerageara administrative expenses were 12% and 1t%éoyear ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The aserén absolute dollars was primarily due to a $2ilBon increase in
personnel-related costs as we increased the nusfilgeneral and administrative employees to supmaroverall growth. The
increase was also due to a $0.6 million increadegal fees, a $0.4 million increase in audit aodoanting costs, a $0.3 millic
increase in corporate insurance costs and a $0lidnrincrease in professional fees.

Amortization of Acquired IntangiblesAmortization of acquired intangibles for the yeaded December 31, 2010 and
2009 was $0.3 million and related primarily to tledue of intangible assets acquired in our July@8€quisition of Applied
Networking, Inc.

Interest and Other Income (Expense), Nétterest and other income (expense), net foyéae ended December 31, 2010
was income of approximately $0.4 million, compate@n expense of approximately $0.2 million for ylear ended
December 31, 2009. The change was mainly due bocagase in interest income resulting from an iaseein the amount of
funds invested in higher yielding marketable sd@sgias well as a decrease in foreign currencyess

Income Taxes.Our effective income tax rate for the year enBedember 31, 2010 was a benefit of 13% on pre-tax
income of $18.6 million. Our effective rate for theriod is lower than the statutory federal incdamerate of 35% due
primarily to the $8.6 million reversal during 20@Dour beginning of the year valuation allowandated to our domestic and
certain foreign deferred tax assets. As of DecerBligR009 and through the first quarter of 2010 pnavided a full valuation
allowance related to our deferred tax assets dselieved the objective and verifiable evidence af listorical pre-tax net
losses outweighed the existing positive evidence.

During 2010, we reassessed the need for a valualiowance against our deferred tax assets andumedt that it was
more likely than not that we would be able to alertain of our deferred tax assets primarilg essult of continued
profitability and forecasted future results. Acdagly, we reversed our valuation allowance reldatedur U.S. and certain
foreign deferred tax assets. As of December 310 2@& maintained a full valuation allowance rela®the deferred tax assets
of our Hungarian subsidiary.
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Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

Revenue. Revenue for the year ended December 31, 200%Whad million, an increase of $22.7 million, or 448tver
revenue of $51.7 million for the year ended Decandde 2008. Of the 44% increase in revenue, theritgjof the increase
was due to increases in revenue from new custorag@r total number of premium accounts increésegproximately
300,000 at December 31, 2009 from approximately,dd@ premium accounts at December 31, 2008, inarexhadd-on
revenues from the our existing customer base arrénmental revenue associated with our Intel agreéme

Cost of Revenue Cost of revenue for the year ended December®19 Zvas $7.5 million, an increase of $1.5 million,
26%, over cost of revenue of $6.0 million for treay ended December 31, 2008. As a percentage @fuey cost of revenue
was 10% for the year ended December 31, 2009 va&usfor the year ended December 31, 2008. Theedserin cost of
revenue as a percentage of revenue was primaelyesult of more efficient utilization of our datanter and customer support
organizations. The increase in absolute dollargltex$ primarily from an increase in both the numbfecustomers using our
premium services and the total number of devicasabnnected to our services, including devicesemy free users, which
resulted in increased hosting and customer sugpsts. Of the increase in cost of revenue, $1.0amitesulted from increased
data center costs associated with the hosting m$envices. The increase in data center costs wasadthe expansion of our
data center facilities as we added capacity tchosting infrastructure. Additionally, $0.7 milliaf the increase in cost of
revenue was due to the increased costs in ourroestsupport organization we incurred, primarilyaa®sult of hiring new
employees to support our customer growth.

Research and Development Expens&gesearch and development expenses for the ydaddéecember 31, 2009 were
$13.1 million, an increase of $1.2 million, or 108%er research and development expenses of $18i6mior the year ended
December 31, 2008. As a percentage of revenuagnasand development expenses were 18% and 23#iefgears ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The aserén absolute dollars was primarily due to a $@ildon increase in
personnel-related costs, including salary and atberpensation related costs, as we increased thbaenof research and
development personnel to 143 at December 31, 2009 122 at December 31, 2008. The increase waglaks®o a
$0.3 million increase in rent costs primarily reldto our new office space in Budapest, Hunga®0.2 million increase in
telephone costs, a $0.1 million increase in dept&ei expense and a $0.1 million increase in peidesl fees.

Sales and Marketing Expense&ales and marketing expenses for the year endedriber 31, 2009 were $35.8 million,
an increase of $4.2 million, or 13%, over sales madketing expenses of $31.6 million for the yeztesd December 31, 2008.
As a percentage of revenue, sales and marketingnees were 48% and 61% for the years ended Dec&hp2009 and 2008,
respectively. The increase in absolute dollars pvamarily due to a $2.1 million increase in persehrelated and recruiting
costs from additional employees hired to supportgrawth in sales and expand our marketing effdrte total number of sal
and marketing personnel increased to 115 at Dece®1h@009 from 101 at December 31, 2008. The am@avas also due to a
$0.4 million increase in marketing program cost$0& million increase in professional fees, a $0ifion increase in
telephone costs, a $0.2 million increase in hardvead software maintenance costs, a $0.2 milliorease in travel related
costs and a $0.5 million increase in other misoeltaus expenses, primarily consisting of credit gaotessing fees.

General and Administrative Expense&eneral and administrative expenses for the ggded December 31, 2009 were
$8.3 million, an increase of $1.7 million, or 268t/er general and administrative expenses of $6ll&mfor the year ended
December 31, 2008. As a percentage of revenuerageara administrative expenses were 11% and 13%héoyears ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The aserén absolute dollars was primarily due to a $@ilBon increase in
personnel-related costs as we increased the nusfilgeneral and administrative employees to supmaroverall growth. The
increase was also due to a $0.3 million increasegal costs and a $0.2 million increase in corfnasurance costs.

Legal Settlement Expensetegal settlement expenses for the year endedrbleee31, 2009 were zero, a decrease of
$0.6 million, or 100%, over legal settlement exmgensf $0.6 million for the year ended
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December 31, 2008. In May 2008, we settled a lawehich began in 2007 related to an alleged patdringement.

Amortization of Acquired IntangiblesAmortization of acquired intangibles for the yeaded December 31, 2009 and
2008 was $0.3 million and related to the valuentdmgible assets acquired in our July 2006 acdurisif Applied Networking,
Inc.

Interest and Other (Income) Expense, Nétterest and other (income) expense, net foy#ae ended December 31, 2009
was an expense of $0.2 million, compared to incofr&0.1 million, for the year ended December 310&0rhe change was
mainly due to a decrease in interest income arid@aase in foreign exchange losses offset by eedse in interest expense
associated with a note payable related to our attopni of Applied Networking, Inc.

Income Taxes.During the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008ecorded a deferred tax provision of
approximately $15,000 and $17,000 related to tiferéint book and tax treatment for goodwill andravision for alternative
minimum taxes, foreign and state income taxesit@&0.3 million and $0.1 million, respectively. Wkecorded a federal
income tax provision for the year ended DecembefB09 and a federal income tax benefit for the gyealed December 31,
2008 which was offset by the change in the valuagitowance. We assess the likelihood that defaaedssets will be
realized, and we recognize a valuation allowandeisfmore likely than not that some portion o ttheferred tax assets will not
be realized. This assessment requires judgmentths fikelihood and amounts of future taxable medby tax jurisdiction.
Through December 31, 2009, we have provided avalllation allowance against our deferred tax assetge believe the
objective and verifiable evidence of our historipegdtax net losses outweighs the positive evideficerr 2009 pre-tax profit
and forecasted future results.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
The following table sets forth the major sourced ases of cash for each of the periods set fortiwbe

Years Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010

(In thousands)
Net cash provided by operatio $10,13: $ 24,33¢ $ 36,46¢
Net cash used in investing activiti (3,775 (33,16%) (65,009)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (2,102 86,157 5,78¢
Effect of exchange rate chanc (18) 46 (26%)
Net increase (decrease) in ci $ 4,23 $ 77,37 $(23,01()

At December 31, 2010, our principal source of litityi was cash and cash equivalents and dieont-marketable securiti
totaling $167.4 million.

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $36il6on, $24.3 million, and $10.1 million for theears ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Net cash inflows from operating activities duriig tyear ended December 31, 2010 were mainly d@gtd million of
net income for the period. Net cash inflows froneigting activities were also due to non-cash opeyatxpenses, including
$3.7 million for depreciation and amortization, @Hillion for stock compensation and $0.2 milliar fmortization of
premium on investments, offset by non-cash benéfitduding a $2.7 million benefit from deferreccome taxes and a
$1.1 million income tax benefit from the exercigestock options. The net cash inflows from opemgtctivities were also due
to an $8.7 million increase in deferred revenueeissed with the increase in subscription salegirdnd customer growth a
a $3.3 million increase in current liabilities. Heewere offset by a $1.1 million increase in prégaipenses and other current
assets and a $0.7 million increase in accountsvaae. We expect that our future cash
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flows from operating activities will be impacted the significant legal costs associated with odedge against the patent
infringement claims made by 01 Communique.

Net cash inflows from operating activities durimg tyear ended December 31, 2009 were mainly dfi8.®million of nei
income for the period, non-cash operating experselsiding $3.2 million for depreciation and amaaiion and $2.9 million
for stock compensation, as well as a $2.8 millimeréase in current liabilities, a $5.7 million iease in deferred revenue
associated with the increase in subscription saidsrs and customer growth, a $0.5 million increasgher long-term
liabilities and a $0.4 million decrease in accoustivable. These were offset by a $0.2 milliccréase in prepaid expenses
and other current assets.

Net cash inflows from operating activities duriig tyear ended December 31, 2008 resulted from 8 $iiflion increase
in deferred revenue associated with the increasaliscription sales orders and customer growthedlsas an increase in
current liabilities. These increases and increasesn-cash operating expenses, including $2.4aniflor depreciation and
amortization and $2.8 million for stock compensatioffset a $5.4 million operating loss for theipdr a $1.5 million increase
in accounts receivable and a $1.0 million increaggrepaid expenses and other current assets.

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $65.0oni) $33.2 million and $3.8 million for the yeagaded December 31,
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Net cash used in investing for the year ended Dbeerdl, 2010 was primarily related to the purchafsk185.3 million of
marketable securities offset by proceeds of $188lidon from sale or disposal of marketable sedesit We invested an
additional $4.2 million in property and equipmerdinly related to the expansion and upgrade of ata denter capacity and
also related to the expansion of our corporate dpagders. We also had $0.4 million in intangibleeasadditions related to the
purchase of domain names, trademarks and interdaligloped software.

Net cash used in investing activities during tharyended December 31, 2009 consisted primarilyebtash paid to
purchase marketable securities and property anigmgnt. Purchases of equipment resulted from tipaesion of our data
centers as well as our new office space in Hungemg. purchase of marketable securities and propedyequipment were
offset by a reduction in restricted cash.

Net cash used in investing activities during thargeended December 31, 2008 consisted primarillgeopurchase of
equipment related to the expansion of our dataecenhet cash used in investing activities durigytear ended December 31,
2008 was also due to the purchase of equipmerteceta the increase in the number of our employeesnnection with the
expansion of our office and related infrastructaewell as two certificate of deposits that sexye security deposit for
corporate credit cards and a security deposita@ltd a new lease agreement for office space irghiyn

Our future capital requirements may vary materifiyn those currently planned and will depend omynfactors,
including, but not limited to, development of negndces, market acceptance of our services, tharesipn of our sales,
support, development and marketing organizatidresestablishment of additional offices in the Uri&tates and worldwide
and the expansion of our data center infrastrugtecessary to support our growth. Since our inoaptive have experienced
increases in our expenditures consistent with tbevth in our operations and personnel, and we iatie that our expenditures
will continue to increase in the future. We alsteimd to make investments in computer equipmentgattms and
infrastructure related to existing and new offiassve move and expand our facilities, add additipaesonnel and continue to
grow our business. We are not currently party tp@mrchase contracts related to future capital edjperes.

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Net cash flows provided by financing activities @&5.8 million for the year ended December 31, 20&fe mainly
related to $4.8 million in proceeds received frdra issuance of common stock upon exercise of siptikns as well as a
$1.1 million income tax benefit from the exercigestwck options offset by $0.2 million in paymemade in connection with
our secondary public offering.
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Net cash flows provided by financing activities @&86.2 million for the year ended December 31928@d were mainly
the result of net proceeds received related tdROrand secondary public offering and proceedsiveddrom the issuance of
common stock upon the exercise of stock options.

Net cash flows used in financing activities werel$aillion for the year ended December 31, 2008wack mainly
associated with the final payment of $1.3 milliasaciated with a note payable related to our aitgrisof Applied
Networking, Inc. and the payment of approximately0$million associated with fees related to our [R@tially offset by
proceeds received from the issuance of common stpok the exercise of stock options.

On July 7, 2009, we closed our IPO raising net eds of approximately $82.9 million after deductimglerwriting
discounts and commissions and offering costs. CeeBer 16, 2009, we closed our secondary publarioff raising net
proceeds of approximately $1.2 million after dethgunderwriting discounts and commissions androféecosts. While we
believe that our current cash and cash equivaleifitbe sufficient to meet our working capital acdpital expenditure
requirements for at least the next twelve monthesnvay elect to raise additional capital throughsthle of additional equity or
debt securities or obtain a credit facility to deypeor enhance our services, to fund expansioregpond to competitive
pressures or to acquire complementary productsndsses or technologies. If we elect, additionadricing may not be
available in amounts or on terms that are favortblss, if at all. If we raise additional fundsdhgh the issuance of equity or
convertible debt securities, our existing stockkoddcould suffer significant dilution, and any neguity securities we issue
could have rights, preferences and privileges sapty those of holders of our common stock.

During the last three years, inflation and changiriges have not had a material effect on our lassirand we do not
expect that inflation or changing prices will maadly affect our business in the foreseeable future

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not engage in any dfslance sheet financing activities, nor do we teweinterest in entities referred to as vari
interest entities.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual gdions at December 31, 2010 and the effect sulijadions are
expected to have on our liquidity and cash floiuiture periods.

Payments Due by Perioc

Less Than More Than

Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Operating lease obligatiol $6,385,000 $2,576,000 $3,681,000 $128,00( $ =
Hosting service agreemer $1,038,00! $1,038,00! — — —
Total $7,423,00I $3,614,00! $3,681,00!I $128,00( $ —

The commitments under our operating leases showweatonsist primarily of lease payments for our Vwob
Massachusetts corporate headquarters, our intenasales and marketing offices located in Thenbidands, Australia and
England and our research and development officekiimgary, and contractual obligations related todata centers.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009, an update was madéRevenue Recognition — Multiple Deliverable ReveAuangements.This
update removes the objective-and-reliable-evideridair-valuecriterion from the separation criteria used to detre whethe
an arrangement involving multiple deliverables eimg more than one unit of accounting, replacereetes to “fair value”
with “selling price” to distinguish from the fairalue measurements required under‘thar Value Measurements and
Disclosure” guidance, provides a hierarchy that entities mastta estimate the selling price, eliminates theeafghe residual
method for allocation, and expands the ongoinglalisee requirements. This update is effective bagimJanuary 1, 2011 and
can be applied prospectively or retrospectivelye €ffect of adoption of this standard will only iagt our financial statement
disclosure to comply with the additional disclostequirements. We do not expect the implementaifahis guidance to have
a material impact on our consolidated financialifpms, results of operations or cash flows.
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Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Foreign Currency Exchange RiskOur results of operations and cash flows areestittp fluctuations due to changes in
foreign currency exchange rates as a result ofd@erity of our research and development expenelitireing made from our
Hungarian research and development facilities,iammair international sales and marketing office3lre Netherlands, Austra
and England. In the year ended December 31, 2@H0pzrimately 15%, 9%, 3% and 4% of our operatingemses occurred in
our operations in Hungary, The Netherlands, Auistrahd England, respectively. In the year endeceBwer 31, 2009,
approximately 17%, 13% and 2% of our operating agpe occurred in our operations in Hungary, Théné&&nds and
Australia, respectively. Additionally, approximatéd0% of our sales outside the United States anerd@ated in local
currencies and, thus, also subject to fluctuatimesto changes in foreign currency exchange raiteglate, changes in foreign
currency exchange rates have not had a materialdtmgm our operations, and a future change of 20Béss in foreign current
exchange rates would not materially affect our apens. At this time we do not, but may in the fetuenter into any foreign
currency hedging programs or instruments that wbeldige or help offset such foreign currency exchaatg risk.

Interest Rate Sensitivitylnterest income is sensitive to changes in theeg level of U.S. interest rates. However, based
on the nature and current level of our cash anll egsivalents and short-term marketable securitibg;h are primarily
consisted of cash, money market instruments, govent securities and agency bonds, we believe there material risk of
exposure to changes in the fair value of our cashcash equivalents and marketable securitieg@suit of changes in interest
rates.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of
LogMeln, Inc.
Woburn, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsneets of LogMeln, Inc. and subsidiaries (them\@any”) as of
December 31, 2009 and 2010, and the related colasedl statements of operations, redeemable cobleptieferred stock,
stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income )Jaswd cash flows for each of the three yearsémpigriod ended
December 31, 2010. These financial statementshareesponsibility of the Company’s management. i@sponsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statemerstschan our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversigham8laUnited
States). Those standards require that we plan aridrm the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetatitether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. Alit &ncludes examining, on a test basis, evidenppasrting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audih éncludes assessing the accounting principled asd significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the lbfieemcial statement presentation. We believe tha audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statatagresent fairly, in all material respects, tinaricial position of
LogMeln, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 8092and 2010, and the results of their operatioistiaeir cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended Dece&ih@010, in conformity with accounting principlgenerally accepted in
the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdzf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited
States), the Company'’s internal control over finaheporting as of December 31, 2010, based omtiteria established in
Internal Control— Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission
and our report dated February 28, 2011 expressedaumlified opinion on the Company'’s internal cohover financial
reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Boston, Massachusetts

February 28, 2011
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LogMeln, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Marketable securitie
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtfidaamts of $83,000 and $111,000 as of December &
2009 and December 31, 2010, respectiv
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (ingl&did1,000 and $9,000 of non-trade receivable chra f
related party at December 31, 2009 and Decembel03D, 2espectively
Deferred income tax asse
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Restricted cas
Intangibles, ne
Goodwill
Other asset
Deferred income tax asst

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS '’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue, current porti
Total current liabilities
Deferred revenue, net of current port
Other lon-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note

Preferred stock, $0.01 par val— 5,000,000 shares authorized, O shares outstandiofjecember 31, 20(
and December 31, 20:

Stockholder’ equity:

Common stock, $0.01 par value — 75,000,000 sharémeazed as of December 31, 2009 and
December 31, 2010; 22,448,808 and 23,858,514 shatstanding as of December 31, 2009 and
December 31, 2010, respectivi

Additional paic-in capital

Accumulated defici

Accumulated other comprehensive income (It

Total stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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December 31

December 31

2009 2010
$100,290,00 $ 77,279,98
29,956,20  90,144,48
4,149,64  4,744,39;
1,834,224 2,905,61
— _ 1,31552
136,230,09 176,390,01
4,859,13  6,198,48
373,18 350,48
750,91 577,81
615,29 615,29
29,91¢ 27,01¢
— _ 2,518,15
$142,858,54 $186,677,26
$ 232822 $ 2,176,39
7,32317  10,829,31
32,190,53 _ 41,763,13
41,841,93  54,768,83
1,912,320 1,030,010
594,93 500,15¢
44,349,19 _ 56,299,01
224,48 238,58t
122,465,37  133,425,09
(24,182,96)  (3,084,31)
2,451 (201,109
98,509,35 _130,378,25
$142,858,54 $186,677,26




LogMeln, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010

Revenue (including $3,036,000, $6,007,000 and $00&® from a related

party during the years ended December 31, 2008 aa6 2010,

respectively’ $51,723,45 $74,408,661  $101,057,20
Cost of revenu 5,970,26! 7,508,371 9,124,64!

Gross profil 45,753,19 66,900,28 91,932,56

Operating expense

Research and developme 11,996,94 13,148,98 15,213,90

Sales and marketir 31,631,08 35,820,99 45,868,81

General and administrati\ 6,583,31 8,297,39! 12,319,31

Legal settlement 600,00( — —

Amortization of acquired intangible 327,71} 327,71¢ 337,75

Total operating expens: 51,139,05 57,595,09 73,739,78

Income (loss) from operatiol (5,385,861 9,305,18 18,192,77.
Interest incoms 276,43¢ 129,48! 634,65
Interest expens (60,099 (1,766 (2,000
Other expens (110,519 (294,116 (218,81f)
Income (loss) before income tax (5,280,041) 9,138,79I 18,607,61
(Provision) benefit for income tax: (122,009 (341,53) 2,491,02!
Net income (loss (5,402,04) 8,797,25: 21,098,64
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred st (2,348,22) (1,311,22) —
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhii $(7,750,27) $ 7,486,020 $ 21,098,64
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhaigeer share

Basic $ @a9n $ 0.3¢ $ 0.91

Diluted $ a9 $ 0.37 $ 0.8t
Weighted average shares outstand

Basic 3,933,441 12,989,94 23,244,47

Diluted 3,933,441 14,835,31. 24,839,90

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LogMeln, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Redeemable Convertibleéferred Stock, Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehenive Income

Series A Redeemabl
Convertible
Preferred Stock

Series B Redeemabl

(Loss)

Series E-1 R
Convertible
Preferred Stock

Total R
Convertible
Preferred Stock

Accumulated
Other

Convertible

Preferred Stock Common Stock Additional

Number of

17,010,41 $11,590,29 11,668,70 $10,914,78

Balance at January 1, 200!
Issuance of common stock
upon exercise of stock

options
Accretion of Redeemable
Convertible Preferred Sto
to redemption valu
Stocl-based compensatic
Comprehensive los
Net loss
Cumulative translation
adjustment:

Total comprehensive lo:

Number of

Number of Number of Number of Paid-In C

Total Comprehensive

Income

Shares Amount Capital Deficit Income (Loss)
3,891,97i § 38,92( $ 58,38( $(27,578,16) $

__Amount__
2,222,22: $ 9,989,96. 30,901,33 $ 32,495,04

88,30( 882 109,49: — —

2,348,22! — —  (2,348,22) — —

2,491,40! — —
(5,402,04) —

(40,246

50,23t $

Equi Loss)
(27,430,63)

110,37t
(2,348,22)
2,491,40!
(5,402,04) $

(40,246 (40,24¢
— $ (544229

(5,402,04!

Balance at December 31
2008
Issuance of common stock
upon exercise of stock
options
Issuance of common stock i
connection with initial
public offering, net of
issuance costs of
$2,672,41«
Issuance of common stock
connection with secondary
public offering, net of
issuance costs of $508,3
Accretion of Redeemable
Convertible Preferred Sto
to redemption valu
Conversion of redeemable
convertible preferred stock
to common stock upon
close of initial public
offering
Stocl-based compensatic
Comprehensive incom
Net income
Unrealized loss on
available-for-salesecurities
net of tax

Cumulative translation
adjustment:

Total comprehensive
income

17,010,41

12,500,96 11,668,70

509,07:

(17,010,41) (13,010,03) (11,668,70) (12,028,19) (2,222,22) (11,116,26) (30,901,33) (36,154,49)

11,628,98 2,222,22 10,713,31 30,901,33 34,843,26 3,980,27:  39,80! 311,04¢ (32,980,21) 9,981

258,22¢ 2,582 514,027 — —

5,750,000 57,50( 82,830,08 — —

99,77¢ 99¢ 1,235,05' — —

— 399,20¢ — 402,94 — 1,311,22! — —  (1,311,22) — —

12,360,52 123,60!

36,030,88 — —
2,855,491 — —

8,797,25: —

(53,69:)

46,15¢

(32,619,37)

516,60¢

82,887,58

1,236,05!

(1,311,22)

36,154,49.
2,855,491

8,797,25: $  8,797,25

(53,697) (53,69:

46,15¢ 46,15¢

— $ 878971

Balance at December 31
2009
Issuance of common stock
upon exercise of stock
options
Income tax benefit from stoc
options exercise
Reversal of accrued offering
costs in connection with
secondary public offerin
Stocl-based compensatic
Comprehensive incom
Net income
Unrealized gain on
available-for-saleecurities
net of tax
Cumulative translation
adjustment:
Total comprehensive
income

22,448,80 224,48! 122,465,37 (24,182,96) 2,451

1,409,701 14,09 4,820,781 — —

1,149,84. — —

25,22: — —
4,963,87! — —

21,098,64 —

79,57(

(283,13

98,509,35

4,834,88:
1,149,84.

25,22:
4,963,87!

21,098,64 $ 21,098,64

79,57(

(283,130 (28313
— 3

79,57(

20,895,08

Balance at December 31
2010

23,858,51 $238,58! $133,425,09 $ (3,084,31) $

(201,109 $130,378,25

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LogMeln, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to reshcprovided by operating activiti
Depreciation and amortizatic
Amortization of premium on investmer
Provision for bad debt
Provision for (benefit from) deferred income taxes
Income tax benefit from the exercise of stock apt
Stocl-based compensatic
Loss (gain) on disposal of equipm
Discount on note payab
Changes in assets and liabiliti:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Other asset
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of marketable securi
Proceeds from sale or disposal of marketable sézs
Purchases of property and equipm
Intangible asset additior
(Increase) decrease in restricted cash and de|
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock in conneetith initial public offering, net of issuance to®f
$1,397,00(
Proceeds from issuance of common stock in conneetith secondary public offering, net of issuanosts of
$266,00C
Payments of issuance costs for proposed initialipalffering of common stoc
Payments of issuance costs related to secondagsiraffof common stoc
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon optiercises
Income tax benefit from the exercise of stock ami
Payments on note payat
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvaénts and restricted ca

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informatioi

Cash paid for intere:

Cash paid for income tax

Noncash investing and financing activitie:
Purchases of property and equipment included inwads payable and accrued liabilit
Accretion of reedemable convertible preferred si
Deferred stock offering costs included in accoymggable and accrued liabiliti
Conversion of redeemable preferred stock to comstock

Years Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
$(5,402,04) $ 8,797,25. $ 21,098,64
2,403,05 3,201,02: 3,719,72;
= 931 239,09(
79,00 115,00( 87,50(
16,66¢ 14,69¢ (2,673,14)
_ — (1,149,84)
2,748,92! 2,921,61; 4,991,71!
— 99¢ (1,889
57,67 = =
(1,541,29) 435,97 (682,247
(1,027,53) (168,939  (1,071,37)
(22,359 (7,559 2,89¢
(1,254,19) 729,68 (331,75
1,734,65 2,104,02! 3,643,71;
12,254,41 5,744,45 8,690,28
83,95¢ 449,87 (94,779
10,130,93 _ 24,339,04 _ 36,468,55
—  (30,010,82) (185,348,80)
= —  125,000,00
(3313,00)  (3,373,18)  (4,243,16)
— — (416,06)
(461,959 218,85 5,11¢
(3,774,96) (33,165,15) _ (65,002,91)
— 8416233 =
— 1,478,02 —
(961,86 = =
— — (195,84()
110,37 516,60 4,834,88:
— — 1,149,84:
(1,250,001) = =
(2,101,48) _ 86,156,97 5,788,88|
(17,919 46,15¢ (264,549
423656/  77,377,02  (23,010,01)
18,676,42 _ 22,912,98 _ 100,290,00
$22,912,98 $100,290,00 $ 77,279,98
$ 20512 $ 1,76¢ $ 1,00¢
$ 5171 $ 8192, $ 612,56t
$ 219,08 $ 16363¢ $ 388,50
$ 234822 $ 1,311,22 $ —
$ 13574 $ 241970 $ —
$ — $36,154,49 $ —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LogMeln, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Nature of the Busines:

LogMeln, Inc. (the “Company”)ievelops and markets a suite of remote accessteesupport, and collaboration solutic
that provide instant, secure connections betwetmrat enabled devices. The Company’s productiticiedes Gravity™,
LogMeln Free®, LogMeln Pro?2®, LogMeln® Central™ , LogMeln Rescu®, LogMeln® Rescue+Mobilé™, LogMeln
Backup®, LogMeln® Ignition SM™ , LogMeln Hamach? ®, join.me™ and RemotelyAnywher®. The Company is based in
Woburn, Massachusetts with wholly-owned subsidgimeHungary, The Netherlands, Australia, England Brazil.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Polices

Principles of Consolidation— The accompanying consolidated financial statemietade the results of operations of
Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All ietempany transactions and balances have been atigdgitin consolidation.
The Company has prepared the accompanying consadifiaancial statements in conformity with accangtprinciples
generally accepted in the United States of AM&{iGRAAP”).

Use of Estimates— The preparation of consolidated financial staata in conformity with GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affecefi@rted amounts of assets and liabilities and alsece of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial stageits and the reported amounts of revenue and espélusing the reporting
period. By their nature, estimates are subjechtmberent degree of uncertainty. Actual resultsiddiffer from those
estimates.

Cash Equivalents— Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid invesnts with an original or remaining maturity ofdes
than three months at the date of purchase. Castedejts consist of investments in money marketifuwhich primarily inves
in U.S. Treasury obligations. Cash equivalentsséaed at cost, which approximates fair value.

Marketable Securities Fhe Company’s marketable securities are classifgedvailable-for-sale and are carried at fair
value with the unrealized gains and losses rep@sea component of accumulated other compreheirsivene in stockholders’
equity. Realized gains and losses and declinealirejjudged to be other than temporary are incladea component of
earnings based on the specific identification methair value is determined based on quoted mariets. At December 31,
2009 and 2010, marketable securities consisted f ibvernment agency securities that have rengamizturities within two
years and have an aggregate amortized cost of 8®6 and $90,119,605 and an aggregate fair \wdl$i29,956,204 and
$90,144,484, including $0 and $65,136 of unrealigaitis and $53,691 and $40,257 of unrealized losses

Restricted Cash— As of December 31, 2009, the Company had aficaitee of deposit in the amount of $5,118 serviag a
security for a corporate credit card. In addititrg Company had a letter of credit of $125,000 etddnber 31, 2009 and 2010
from a bank. The letter of credit was issued io [ a security deposit on its Woburn, Massachss#fice lease. The letter of
credit is secured by a certificate of deposit i $ame amount which is held at the same financstitution. In November 200
the Company entered into a new agreement to Idéise space in Budapest, Hungary which requiredGbenpany to establish
a security deposit with a bank in the amount of,298 Euro (which totaled $243,066 and $225,481etdinber 31, 2009 and
2010, respectively). Such amounts are classifiddragterm restricted cash in the accompanying clichsted balance sheets.

Accounts Receivable Fhe Company reviews accounts receivable on a gerizabis to determine if any receivables will
potentially be uncollectible. Estimates are useddtrmine the amount of the allowance for doulsfidounts necessary to
reduce accounts receivable to its estimated nétabée value. The estimates are based on an asalfypast due receivables
and historical bad debt trends. After the Compaary éxhausted all collection efforts, the outstagdeceivable is written off
against the allowance.
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Activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts wassfollows:

December 31

2008 2009 2010
Balance, beginnin $55,31¢ $ 69,26¢ $ 83,11¢
Provision for bad det 79,00( 115,00 87,50(
Uncollectible accounts written @ 65,05( 101,15( 59,86¢
Balance, endini $69,26¢ $ 83,11¢ $110,75:

Property and Equipment— Property and equipment are recorded at costlapceciated using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the relatedtas&fpon retirement or sale, the cost of the aglisposed of and the related
accumulated depreciation are eliminated from tlomats, and any resulting gain or loss is refleatettie consolidated
statements of operations. Expenditures for maimeaand repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Computer equipment and softw 2— 3 year
Office equipmen 3year
Furniture and fixture 5 year:
Leasehold Improvements Shorter of lease tel

or estimated useful li

Goodwill — Goodwill is the excess of the acquisition praser the fair value of the tangible and identif@abitangible
assets acquired related to the Applied Networkicguasition in July 2006. The Company does not ammeigoodwill, but
performs an annual impairment test of goodwill loa tast day of its fiscal year and whenever evantscircumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of goodwill may exceedatsvalue. The Company operates as a single tipgraegment with one
reporting unit and consequently evaluates gooduwaillmpairment based on an evaluation of the falue of the Company as a
whole. Through December 31, 2010, no impairment leecurred.

Long-Lived Assets and Intangible AssetsThe Company records intangible assets at theiems estimated fair valu
at the date of acquisition. Intangible assets amegoamortized using the straight-line method dkieir estimated useful lives,
which range from three to five years.

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairnvémenever events or changes in circumstancesataltbat the
carrying amount of the assets, including intangéssets, may not be recoverable. When such eveaus,sthe Company
compares the carrying amounts of the assets touhdiscounted expected future cash flows. If tosparison indicates that
there is impairment, the amount of the impairmerdalculated as the difference between the carmahge and fair value.
Through December 31, 2010, no impairments haveroadu

Revenue Recognitior- The Company derives revenue primarily from supsion fees related to its LogMeln premium
services and from the licensing of its Ignition f#@hone, iPad and Android software products and ®elyAnywhere software
and related maintenance.

Revenue from the Company’s LogMeln premium servisgscognized on a daily basis over the subsoripierm as the
services are delivered, provided that there isyzesise evidence of an arrangement, the fee is fixetbterminable and
collectability is deemed reasonably assured. Sigisgam periods range from monthly to four yearst &re generally one year
duration. The Company’s software cannot be runratheer entitys hardware nor do customers have the right topaksessio
of the software and use it on their own or ano#rgity’s hardware.

The Company recognizes revenue from the bundlededglof its RemotelyAnywhere software product aathted
maintenance ratably, on a daily basis, over tha trthe maintenance contract, generally one welaen there is persuasive
evidence of an arrangement, the product has besmded to the customer, the
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collection of the fee is probable, and the amodiri¢es to be paid by the customer is fixed or daieable. The Company
currently does not have vendor-specific objectivilence for the fair value of its maintenance agements and therefore the
license and maintenance are bundled together. hep&ny recognizes revenue from the sale of itditgnfor iPhone, iPad
and Android software product which is sold as gp#aral license and is recognized when there isupsige evidence of an
arrangement, the product has been provided toustmer, the collection of the fee is probable, #redamount of fees to be
paid by the customer is fixed or determinable.

The Company’s multi-element arrangements typicdadlyude multiple deliverables by the Company suslsbscription
and professional services, including developmentices. Agreements with multiple element deliveesbhre analyzed to
determine if fair value exists for each elementamtand-alone basis. If the fair value of eachveetdible is determinable then
revenue is recognized separately when or as théesrare delivered, or if applicable, when milest® associated with the
deliverable are achieved and accepted by the cestdfthe fair value of any of the undeliveredfoemance obligations canr
be determined, the arrangement is accounted farsaggle element and the Company recognizes revamaestraightline basis
over the period in which the Company expects topete its performance obligations under the agre¢me

Deferred Revenue -Beferred revenue primarily consists of billings grayments received in advance of revenue
recognition. The Company primarily bills and cotepayments from customers for products and sesvicadvance on a
monthly and annual basis. Deferred revenue to t@grézed in the next twelve months is includedurrent deferred revenue,
and the remaining amounts are included in long-wefierred revenue in the consolidated balance sheet

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Significant Custos — The Company’s principal credit risk relatest®dash, cash
equivalents, short term marketable securitiesriotstl cash, and accounts receivable. Cash, cashadents, and restricted ce
are deposited primarily with financial institutiotieat management believes to be of high-creditityuahd custody of its
marketable securities is with an accredited finacistitution. To manage accounts receivable tmsk, the Company
regularly evaluates the creditworthiness of itd@uers and maintains allowances for potential ¢tledses. To date, losses
resulting from uncollected receivables have noeeded management’s expectations.

As of December 31, 2010, one customer accountetidfer of accounts receivable and there were no me®that
represented 10% or more of revenue for the yeatedeBecember 31, 2008, 2009, or 2010. As of DeceBihe2009, no
customers accounted for 10% or more of accountivalkle.

Research and Development Research and development expenditures are eagp@ssincurred.

In June 2009, the Company received approval ohatgrom the Hungarian government which reimbuiss a portion
of its Hungarian research and development reladstsdor a four year period, beginning in Septen#f¥8. These
reimbursements are recorded as a reduction ofndsaad development expense and totaled approxXyr260,000 and
$371,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002@ha.

Software Development Costs Fhe Company has determined that technologicalfédagiof its software products that a
sold as a perpetual licence is reached shortlyrbefeir introduction to the marketplace. As a leslevelopment costs incurr
after the establishment of technological feasip#ihd before their release to the marketplace havéeen material and such
costs have been expensed as incurred.

The Company capitalizes certain direct costs tebbgvfunctionality as well as certain upgrades amdancements of its
on-demand products that are probable to resultiditianal functionality. The costs incurred in thesliminary stages of
development are expensed as incurred. Once arcappii has reached the development stage, intambéxternal costs, if
direct and incremental, are capitalized as paititahgible assets until the software is substdgt@mplete and ready for its
intended use. Internally developed software cdetsdre capitalized are classified as intangibdetssand amortized over a
three year period in the expense category to wihiefsoftware relates.

Foreign Currency Translation— The functional currency of operations outside thmited States of America is deemed to
be the currency of the local country. Accordindghg assets and liabilities of the
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Company’s foreign subsidiaries are translated bmided States dollars using the period-end exchaaige and income and
expense items are translated using the averageegelrate during the period. Cumulative translagidjustments are reflected
as a separate component of stockholders’ equitgiffio currency transaction gains and losses angietido operations. The
Company had foreign currency losses of approximai&ll 1,000, $18,000 and $219,000 for the yearsceBéeember 31,
2008, 2009 and 2010.

Stock-Based Compensatieon Stock-based compensation is measured basedthpagnant date fair value and recognized
as an expense on a straight line basis in the dinbstatements over the vesting period of the eviar those awards expected
to vest. The Company uses the Black-Scholes optilmmg model to estimate the grant date fair valfistock awards. The
Company uses the with-or-without method to deteeninen it will realize excess tax benefits fronmcktbased compensation.
Under this method, the Company will realize thessess tax benefits only after it realizes the temdiits of net operating
losses from operations.

Income Taxes— Deferred income taxes are provided for the féeces of temporary differences between the cagyin
amounts of assets and liabilities for financialaeimg purposes and the amounts used for incompugposes, and operating
loss carry-forwards and credits using enactedasesrexpected to be in effect in the years in wiiiehdifferences are expected
to reverse. At each balance sheet date, the Comgsmmgses the likelihood that deferred tax assktisearealized, and
recognizes a valuation allowance if it is more ljkihan not that some portion of the deferred tssets will not be realized.
This assessment requires judgment as to the ld@tifand amounts of future taxable income by taisgiiction. As of
December 31, 2009, the Company provided a fullatidm allowance against its deferred tax asseiishedieved the objective
and verifiable evidence of its historical pretax lesses outweighed the positive evidence of igstpr income for the year
ended December 31, 2009 and forecasted futuretsesul

During 2010, the Company reassessed the needviuation allowance against its deferred tax assetisconcluded that
it was more likely than not that it would be aleréalize certain of its deferred tax assets priignas a result of continued
profitability and forecasted future results. Acdagly, the Company reversed its valuation allowaretated to its U.S. and
certain foreign deferred tax assets of $8,570,@0{hg the year ended December 31, 2010. As of Dbeeedl, 2010, the
Company maintained a full valuation allowance aghgihe deferred tax assets of its Hungarian sudryidas this entity has
historical losses and we concluded it was not riikedy than not that these deferred tax assetsemkizable.

The Company evaluates its uncertain tax positi@set on a determination of whether and how muehtak benefit
taken by the Company in its tax filings or posisaa more likely than not to be realized. Poteritidrest and penalties
associated with any uncertain tax positions arercexd as a component of income tax expense. Thrbegember 31, 2010,
the Company has not identified any material ungettx positions for which liabilities would be naiced.

Advertising Costs— The Company expenses advertising costs as eatufdvertising expense for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, was approxim&iely688,000, $11,717,000, and $17,678,000 resgdgtiwhich
consisted primarily of online paid searches, bamaeertising, and other online marketing and isuided in sales and
marketing expense in the accompanying consolidstegdments of operations.

Comprehensive Income (Loss} Comprehensive income (loss) is the change icksmlders’ equity during a period
relating to transactions and other events and eistances from non-owner sources and currently snsf net income (loss),
foreign currency translation adjustments, and U@ gains and losses, net of tax on availableséde securities.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments Fhe carrying value of the Company’s financial instents, including cash
equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivablgaccounts payable, approximate their fair vatiuesto their short
maturities.

Segment Data -Operating segments are identified as componerds ehterprise about which separate discrete finhnci
information is available for evaluation by the dhaperating decision-maker, or decision making gran making decisions
regarding resource allocation and assessing peaftzen The Company, which uses consolidated finaimf@mation in
determining how to allocate resources and assess
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performance, has determined that it operates irsegment. The Company does not disclose geogragbitnation for
revenue and long lived assets as it is impracta@ablculate revenue by geography and aggregatelived assets located
outside the United States do not exceed 10% off astets.

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Common Stockhsl&er Share —Fhe Company used the twatass method to compt
net income (loss) per share for and prior to ther ysded December 31, 2009, because the Comparprénadusly issued
securities, other than common stock, that contedigtentitled the holders to participate in dividisrand earnings of the
company. The two class method requires earningtabl@to common stockholders for the period, afterllocation of
earnings to participating securities, to be alleddtetween common and participating securitiesdbapen their respective
rights to receive distributed and undistributechéags. The Company’s convertible preferred stock wgarticipating security
as it shared in any dividends paid to common stoltidrs. Such participating securities were autoradyi converted to
common stock upon the Company’s IPO in July 20G&i8net income (loss) attributable to common diotders per share
was computed after allocation of earnings to thevedtible preferred stock (losses were not alladalby using the weighted
average number common shares outstanding for thedpe

For periods in which the Company has reportedossds, diluted net loss per common share is the aarbasic net loss
per common share, since the Company’s convertitgieped stock did not participate in losses.

The following potential common shares were excluilech the computation of diluted net income (logsj share
attributable to common stockholders because thdyahaantidilutive impact:

Years Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
Options to purchase common stc 3,209,65! 116,90( 1,098,77!
Conversion of redeemable convertible preferredks 12,360,52 12,360,52(1) —
Total options and conversion of redeemable corterpreferred stoc 15,570,17 12,477,42. 1,098,77!

(1) The redeemable convertible preferred stock wasideresd antidilutive for the period prior to the Cpamy’s IPO on July 7,
2009. Subsequent to the conversion it is includezbmmon stock

Year Ended
December 31, 200!
Basic:
Net income $ 8,797,25:
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred st (1,311,22)
Net income allocated to redeemable convertiblegoreél stoct (2,466,54.)
Net income, attributable to common stc $ 5,019,48!
Weighted average common shares outstanding, 12,949,27
Net income attributable to common stockholdersict $ 0.3¢
Diluted:
Net income available to common stockholc $ 7,486,02!
Accretion of redeemable convertible preferred st 908,27¢
Net income, attributable to dilutive securit $ 8,394,301
Weighted average common shares outstan 20,711,72
Add: Options to purchase common she 1,845,37.
Weighted average common shares outstanding, di 22,557,009
Net income attributable to common stockholderstdd $ 0.37

Net income for the year ended December 31, 200%asated between the periods during which twesda of equity
securities were outstanding and the period durihighvonly a single class of equity
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securities was outstanding based on the respeautiviber of days in each such period. The prefet@konverted into
common stock upon the Company’s IPO in July 2009.

Year Ended
December 31, 201(
Basic:
Net income $ 21,098,64.
Weighted average common shares outstanding, 23,244,47
Net income attributable to common stockholdersic $ 0.91
Diluted:
Net income $ 21,098,64.
Weighted average common shares outstan 23,244 ,47
Add: Options to purchase common she 1,595,421
Weighted average common shares outstanding, di 24,839,90
Net income attributable to common stockholderstdd $ 0.8E

Guarantees and Indemnification Obligatiors As permitted under Delaware law, the Companydmasements whereby
the Company indemnifies certain of its officers aliréctors for certain events or occurrences wihiseofficer or director is, or
was, serving at the Company'’s request in such égpdde term of the indemnification period is fitve officer’s or director’'s
lifetime. As permitted under Delaware law, the Campalso has similar indemnification obligationglenits certificate of
incorporation and by-laws. The maximum potentiabant of future payments the Company could be reguio make under
these indemnification agreements is unlimited; haavethe Company has director’s and officer’s iasie coverage that the
Company believes limits its exposure and enablesriécover a portion of any future amounts paid.

The Company’s agreements with customers genesdjyire the Company to indemnify the customer agaiagms in
which the Company’s products infringe third-pargtents, copyrights, or trademarks and indemnifyreggroduct liability
matters. The term of these indemnification agreamisrgenerally perpetual. The maximum potentiabant of future
payments the Company could be required to makeruhdee indemnification agreements is unlimited.

Through December 31, 2010, the Company had notrexped any losses related to these indemnificatiigations, an
no claims with respect thereto were outstandingvéier, the Company has pre-existing indemnificatibligations that may
be owed to certain of its customers in connectigh the infringement claims brought by Gemini. TBempany does not
expect these litigation-related claims to be sigaiit and does not expect significant claims relatethese indemnification
obligations generally and, consequently, conclutiatithe fair value of these obligations is nedligj and no related reserves
were established.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncementdn October 2009, an update was mad&Revenue Recognition —
Multiple Deliverable Revenue Arrangeme” This update removes the objective-and-reliable-@avie-of-fair-value criterion
from the separation criteria used to determine hdreain arrangement involving multiple deliveralideatains more than one
unit of accounting, replaces references to “falugawith “selling price” to distinguish from theair value measurements
required under théFair Value Measurements and Disclosuregtiidance, provides a hierarchy that entities mastta
estimate the selling price, eliminates the uséefresidual method for allocation, and expandstigoing disclosure
requirements. This update is effective beginninguday 1, 2011 and can be applied prospectivelgiwospectively. The effect
of adoption of this standard will only impact ourdncial statement disclosure to comply with thditanal disclosure
requirements. We do not expect the implementatfdhis guidance to have a material impact on oursotidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Subsequent Events Fhe Company considers events or transactions tiwair @fter the balance sheet date but before the
financial statements are issued to provide additiemidence related to certain estimates or totifjematters that require
additional disclosure.

3. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Compasyfinancial instruments, including cash equivalergstricted cash, accounts receiva
and accounts payable, approximate their fair vatiuesto their short maturities. The Company’s ficiahassets and liabilities
are measured using inputs from the three levelkeofair value hierarchy. A financial asset or & s classification within th
hierarchy is determined based on the lowest leymitithat is significant to the fair value measueam The three levels are as
follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices for identicakéssor liabilities in active markets accessiblaly Company at the
measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs include quoted prices for similasets and liabilities in active markets, quotedegsifor identical or
similar assets and liabilities in markets thatroeactive, inputs other than quoted prices thatodnservable for the asset or
liability, and inputs that are derived principalipm or corroborated by observable market datadsyetation or other means.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that reflect the Comypgassumptions about the assumptions that markétipants woulc
use in pricing the asset or liability.

The following table summarizes the basis used tasuee certain of the Company’s financial assetsatecarried at fair
value:

Basis of Fair Value Measurement:
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Iltems Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Balance at December 31, 20C
Cash equivalent— money market fund $ 77,947,70 $ 77,947,70 $ — $ —
Cash equivalent— bank deposit $ 5,003,45: $ — $5,003,45: $ —
Marketable securities — U.S. government agency
securities $ 29,956,20 $ 29,956,20 $ — $ —
Balance at December 31, 201
Cash equivalent— money market fund $ 48,074,44 $ 48,074,44 $ — $ —
Cash equivalent— bank deposit $ 5,022,08' $ — $5,022,08! $ —
Marketable securities — U.S. government agency
securities $ 90,144,48. $ 90,144,48 $ — $ —
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4. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of the following:

December 31, 200! December 31, 201
Estimated Gross Gross
Useful Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying
R Life Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Identifiable intangible asset
Trademark S5yearr $ 63550t $ 436,000 $ 199,50: $ 63550t $ 563,100 $ 72,40!
Customer bas 5 year: 1,003,06: 688,17¢ 314,89( 1,003,06: 888,79: 114,27°
Domain name 5 year: — — — 202,12( 10,03¢ 192,08:
Software 4 year: 298,97° 256,40( 42,57 298,97° 298,97° —
Technology 4 year: 1,361,901 1,167,95- 193,94t 1,361,901 1,361,901 —
Internally developed softwa 3 year — — — 213,94. 14,88 199,05!

$3,299,45.  $2,548,531 $ 750,91! $3,715,51°  $3,137,690 $ 577,81!

The Company capitalized costs related to interrddlyeloped computer software to be sold as a seima@urred during th
application development stage of $213,942 durint028nd is amortizing these costs over the expdistesl of the related
services. No amounts were capitalized during tleeg/ended December 31, 2008 and 2009 as the nostsdd during such
stage have historically been immaterial. In Apfill®, the Company paid $202,120 to acquire domaimesa

The Company is amortizing the intangible asseta straight-line basis over the estimated usefalslimoted above.
Amortization expense for intangible assets was $3¥for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 200%$589,162 for the
year ended December 31, 2010. Amortization relatngpftware, technology and internally developeftvgare is recorded
within cost of revenues and the amortization odiéraark, customer base, and domain names is recaittéd operating
expenses. Future estimated amortization expengptéorgible assets is as follows at December 31020

Amortization Expense (Years Ending December 3 Amount

2011 $298,43:
2012 111,75:
2013 96,86¢
2014 40,43
2015 30,33(

5. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consisted of the following:

December 31

2009 2010

Computer Equipment and softwe $ 7,493,32 $ 10,787,86
Office equipmen 1,052,52. 1,335,67:
Furniture & fixtures 962,97¢ 1,276,83:
Leasehold improvemen 904,18 1,270,53.

Total property and equipme 10,413,00: 14,670,89
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (5,553,869 (8,472,411
Property and equipment, r $ 4,859,133 $ 6,198,488
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Depreciation expense for property and equipment$4a860,123, $2,458,095 and $3,130,559 for thesyeaded

December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010.

6. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consisted of the following:

Marketing program:
Payroll and payroll relate
Professional fee

Other accrued expens

Total accrued expens

7. Income Taxes

December 31

2009 2010
$1,242,25! $ 3,265,69
3,185,12i 4,535,32.
450,78t 745,83:
2,445,01. 2,282,46.

$7,323,17! $ 10,829,31

The domestic and foreign components of income )losfore provision for income taxes are as follows:

Domestic
Foreign

Total income (loss) before provision for incomeds

The provision for income taxes is as follows:

Current
Federal
State
Foreign
Total

Deferred
Federal
State
Foreign
Total

Total provision (benefit) for income tax

58

Years Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
$(5,900,14) $6,875,83. $ 15,918,65
620,10¢ 2,262,95 2,688,96!

$(5,280,04) $9,138,790  $ 18,607,61

Years Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
$ —  $16344 $ 810,51
19,48¢ 90,78¢ 423,11¢
85,84¢ 72,60¢ 154,31
105,337 326,84 1,387,95!
14,09¢ 13,94’ (4,391,43)
2,572 74¢ 521,47.
— — (9,020)
16,66¢ 14,69¢ (3,878,98)

$122,00f  $34153  $(2,491,02)




A reconciliation of the Company’s effective taxeab the statutory federal income tax rate is 4evis:

For the Years Ended
December 31
2008 2009 2010

Statutory tax rat
Change in valuation allowan

34.(%

34.(% 35.(%

(17.9% (27.9% (45.9%

Impact of permanent differenc (10.9% (5.99% (0.2)%
Foreign tax rate differenti 1€% (7.€% (4.1)%
Research and development cre (5.2% (3.1)% (2.9%
State taxes, net of federal ben — — 5.2%
Other — 1.8% (1.00%
Effective tax rate 2.3% 3.7% (13.9)%

The Company has deferred tax assets related toramypdifferences and operating loss carryforwasiollows:

December 31

2009 2010
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 5,163,00! $ 1,153,001
Deferred revenu 1,464,00! 694,00(
Amortization 694,00( 822,00(
Research and development credit carryforw. 664,00( 1,239,00!
Bad debt reserve 32,00( 43,00(
Stock compensation associated with -qualified award: 1,130,00! 2,117,00!
Other 1,898,00! 594,00(
Total deferred tax asse 11,045,00 6,662,001
Deferred tax asset valuation allowal (10,606,00) (2,036,000
Net deferred tax asse 439,00( 4,626,001
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciatior (439,000) (645,000)
Goodwill amortizatior (56,000 (148,000)
Other — (10,000
Total deferred tax liabilitie (495,000) (803,000)
Total $ (56,000 $ 3,823,001

The Company recorded a deferred income tax pravidenefit) of approximately $17,000, $14,000 &8l 879,000) for

the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 26f68atavely.

At December 31, 2009 and 2010, a deferred taxliiglof $0 and approximately $10,000, respectivédyincluded in

accrued expenses.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company provided lav&lbation allowance against its deferred tax &sas it was not
more likely than not that any future benefit froeddctible temporary differences and net operatisg bnd tax credit
carryforwards would be realized. The Company belikthe objective and verifiable evidence of itgdrisal pretax net losses
outweighed the positive evidence of its pre-taxome for the year ended December 31, 2009 and fetextfuture results. The
increase in the valuation allowance for the yealeeinhDecember 31, 2008 was $1,942,000 and the aecireshe valuation

allowance for the year ended December 31, 200958a6,000.
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During 2010, the Company reassessed the needviuation allowance against its deferred tax assetisconcluded that
it was more likely than not that it would be alderéalize certain of its deferred tax assets priignas a result of continued
profitability, achievement of three years of cuntivia profitability and forecasted future earningscordingly, the Company
reversed the valuation allowance related to its ldrfél certain foreign deferred tax assets of $§(BI0 As of December 31,
2010, the Company maintained a full valuation aloge related to the deferred tax assets of its ahisny subsidiary.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had fedetk,sand foreign net operating loss carryforwarfdspproximately
$15,837,000, $14,040,000 and $8,780,000, respégctiwbich expire at varying dates through 2030ftmieral purposes and
primarily through 2015 for state income tax purgoséhe Companyg foreign net operating loss carryforwards aresabiect tc
expiration. The Company recognized a full valuatitipwance against its Hungarian net operating ¢ass/fowards. The
domestic net operating loss carryforwards are abhglto offset future tax payments, however theyrar longer recognized for
book purposes as they have been utilized undewritheand-without method. The domestic net operalosg carryforwards
include approximately $5,760,000 related to opagpldss carryforwards resulting from excess taxefienrelated to share
based awards, the tax benefits of which, when mgized, will be accounted for as a credit to addiigpaid-in capital when
they reduce taxes payable. The Company added appatety $3,704,000 of federal, $247,000 of state $8,148,000 of
foreign net operating loss carryforwards duringytbar ended December 31, 2010.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had fedetk and foreign research and development credigfoawards of
approximately $708,000, $387,000 and $1,153,0Gpeawtively, which are available to offset futurddeal and state taxes and
expire through 2030. The Company’s foreign researchdevelopment credits expire beginning in 20t Company has
recognized a full valuation allowance againstai®ign research and development credit carryforauaftie domestic research
and development credits are available to offsetrbutax payments, however they are no longer rézedrior book purposes as
they have been utilized under the with-and-withmethod.

The Company generally considers all earnings géegieutside of the U.S. to be permanently reinekestéshore.
Therefore, the Company does not accrue U.S. tathéorepatriation of the foreign earnings it corsidto be permanently
reinvested outside the U.S. As of December 31, 20 0Company has not provided for federal incoaxeoin approximately
$1,055,000 of accumulated undistributed earningsdbreign subsidiaries. The deferred tax lidpifielated to these earning:
not material.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal jurisdiction and various state and foreigtsjlictions. The
Company’s income tax returns since inception aendp examination by federal, state, and foreigratathorities. The
Company has no amount recorded for any unrecogmézebenefits as December 31, 2008, 2009 or 208.Jompany’s
policy is to record estimated interest and peraltiated to the underpayment of income taxes momgnized tax benefits as a
component of its income tax provision. During tleags ended 2008, 2009 and 2010, the Company dictoognize any
interest or penalties in its statements of opemnatind there are no accruals for interest or pierat December 31, 2009 and
2010.

The Company has performed an analysis of its ovimiiechanges as defined by Section 382 of the IatdRevenue Code
and has determined that an ownership change aseddfly Section 382 occurred in October 2004 andcMa010 resulting in
approximately $219,000 and $12,800,000 of NOLs dpsinbject to limitation. As of December 31, 201I0N®DL’s generated
by the Company, including those subject to lim@atiare available for utilization given the Compangrge annual limitation
amount. Subsequent ownership changes as defin8ddiion 382 could potentially limit the amount ef wperating loss
carryforwards that can be utilized annually to effeuture taxable income.

8. Common Stock and Stockholder Equity

Authorized Shares— On June 9, 2009, the CompasyBoard of Directors approved a Restated Certdioftncorporatiol
to be effective upon the closing of the Compan0O. This Restated Certificate of Incorporatiamong other things, increas
the Company’s authorized common shares to 75,0006 authorized 5,000,000 shares of undesignagderped stock.
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Common Stock ReservedAs-of December 31, 2009 and 2010, the Companyédsesved the following number of shares
of common stock for the exercise of stock options:

Number of Shares as o

December 31 December 31

2009 2010
Common stock option 3,823,70:. 4,862,99.
Total reservel 3,823,70: 4,862,99.

Public Offerings —On July 7, 2009, the Company closed its IPO of @,667 shares of common stock at an offering price
of $16.00 per share, of which 5,750,000 shares s@eby the Company and 1,916,667 shares werebyadelling
stockholders, resulting in net proceeds to the Gomgf approximately $83,000,000, after deductindarwriting discounts
and offering costs.

On December 16, 2009, the Company closed its Secprdfering of 3,226,831 shares of common stockrasffering
price of $18.50 per share, of which 99,778 share®wold by the Company and 3,127,053 shares whtdy selling
stockholders, resulting in net proceeds to the Gomf $1,236,055, after deducting underwritingcdists and offering costs.

At the closing of the Company’s IPO, all outstamdéhares of redeemable convertible preferred stark automatically
converted into 12,360,523 shares of common stock.

9. Stock Incentive Plan

On June 9, 2009, the Company’s Board of Directpm@ved the 2009 Stock Incentive Plan (the “20GehBlwhich
became effective upon the closing of the IPO. Altof 800,000 shares of common stock, subjectdoese on an annual ba:
are reserved for future issuance under the 2009 Blzares of common stock reserved for issuanceruhd 2007 Stock
Incentive Plan that remained available for issuatdbe time of effectiveness of the 2009 Plan amgshares of common sto
subject to awards under the 2007 Plan that exigrminate, or are otherwise forfeited, canceledepurchased by the
Company were added to the number of shares availatder the 2009 Plan. The 2009 Plan is administeyehe Board of
Directors and Compensation Committee, which haeeatithority to designate participants and deterrtieenumber and type
of awards to be granted, the time at which award®aercisable, the method of payment and any é¢hers or conditions of
the awards. Options generally vest over a four-pesiod and expire ten years from the date of g@attain options provide
for accelerated vesting if there is a change introbrnOn January 1, 2010, subject to the provisioithe 2009 Plan,

448,996 shares were added to the shares avaitagtant. On May 27, 2010, the Compangtockholders approved a 2,000,
share increase to the shares available to gramtrihd 2009 Plan and removed the automatic anhaaé sncrease provision
from the 2009 Plan. There were 2,298,678 sharatabl@ato grant under the 2009 Plan as of DecerheR010.

The Company generally issues previously unissuatestof common stock for the exercise of stockomgsti The
Company received $110,375, $516,609 and $4,834rB83sh from stock option exercises during the yemded December !
2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricingehto estimate the grant date fair value of simgation grants. The
Company estimates the expected volatility of itsiowon stock at the date of grant based on the fiatarolatility of
comparable public companies over the option’s etqaeterm given the Company'’s limited trading higtorhe Company
estimates expected term based on historical exeagisvity and giving consideration to the contuatterm of the options,
vesting schedules, employee turnover, and expentafiemployee exercise behavior. The assumedatidigield is based
upon the Company’s expectation of not paying dindtein the foreseeable future. The risk-free ratgériods within the
estimated life of the option is based on the Ur@a$ury zero-coupon issues with a remaining termaleilg the expected life at
the time of grant. Historical employee turnoveradistused to estimate pre-vesting option forfeitates. The compensation
expense is amortized on a straight-line basis thesrequisite service period of the options, whichenerally four years.
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The Company used the following assumptions to atiyBlack-Scholes option-pricing model:

Years Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
Expected dividend yiel 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Risk-free interest rat 2.52%- 3.33% 1.88%- 2.71% 1.03%- 2.46%
Expected term (in year: 5.54- 6.25 5.11-6.25 5.56- 6.25
Volatility 75%- 80% 75% 65%- 75%
The following table summarizes stock option acyivincluding performance-based options:
Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Number Average Contractual Aggregate
of Share Exercise Term Intrinsic
Options Price (Years) Value
Outstanding, January 1, 20 3,046,97. $ 4.9C 6.8
Grantec 1,108,95! 22.61
Exercisec (1,409,700 3.3¢ $ 33,231,29
Forfeited (181,900 14.0¢
Outstanding, December 31, 20 2,564,31! $ 12.7¢ 7.3 $ 80,983,49
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 1,246,831 $ b5.3¢€ 5.7 $ 48,600,69
Vested or expected to vest at December 31, : 2,497,05 $ 12.4: 7.3 $ 79,555,88

The aggregate intrinsic value was calculated bagetie positive differences between the estimaa@d/alue of the
Company’s common stock on December 31, 2010 of384der share or at time of exercise, and the esexqmiice of the
options.

The weighted average grant date fair value of saptlons issued was $8.54, $11.02 and $14.63 peedbr the years
ended December 31, 2008, 2009, and 2010, resplgctive

The Company recognized stock based compensati@nsgpwithin the accompanying consolidated statesrent
operations as summarized in the following table:

Years Ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
Cost of revenu $ 63,58( $ 54,06¢ $ 260,55:
Research and developme 418,68 536,80( 638,38
Selling and marketin 962,30: 931,48t 1,552,58.
General and administratiy 1,304,36! 1,399,25! 2,540,19.

$2,748,92! $2,921,61 $4,991,71!

As of December 31, 2010, there was approximateB;318,465 of total unrecognized share-based coragienscost, net
of estimated forfeitures, related to unvested staution grants which are expected to be recognzed a weighted average
period of 2.8 years. The total unrecognized shaset compensation cost will be adjusted for futin@nges in estimated
forfeitures.

Of the total stock options issued subject to tten®| certain stock options have performance-bassiihg. These
performance-based options granted during 2004 80d@ @ere generally granted at-the-money, contingemist over a period
of two to four years depending upon the naturdefgerformance goal, and have a contractual literof/ears.
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The Company granted 180,000 performance-basednsitici2007, which vested upon the closing of the.IPhe
Company recorded compensation expense of $338;0Ddy 2009 related to these performance-basedropti

These performance-based options are summarizedbelo

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Number Average Contractual Aggregate
of Share Exercise Term Intrinsic
Options Price (Years) Value
Outstanding, January 1, 20 642,73. $ 1.2t 5.7
Grantec —
Exercisec (109,801 1.2¢ $ 4,076,68:
Forfeited —
Outstanding, December 31, 20 532,93 1.2t 4.6 22,964,04
Exercisable at December 31, 2(C 532,93 1.2t 4.6 22,964,04

The aggregate intrinsic value was calculated bagsetie positive differences between the estimad@d/alue of the
Company’s common stock on December 31, 2010 of384der share, or at time of exercise, and the esesprice of the
options.

10. 401(k) Plan

On January 1, 2007, the Company established aagte@iantribution savings plan under Section 401tkhe Internal
Revenue Code. The plan is available to all empleyg®mn employment and allows participants to dafpeortion of their annu
compensation on a pre-tax basis. The Company matyiloate to the plan at the discretion of the Boafr®irectors. The
Company has not made any contributions to the thleough December 31, 2010.

11. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases— The Company has operating lease agreementsffoein Massachusetts, Hungary, The
Netherlands, Australia and England that expirebh®through 2014. The lease agreement for the Mhasatts office require
a security deposit of $125,000 in the form of geletf credit which is collateralized by a certifte of deposit in the same
amount. The lease agreement with the Hungarianeofééquires a security deposit in the amount of@pmately $225,481
(170,295 Euro) at December 31, 2010. The certdicdtdeposit and the security deposit are classidierestricted cash (see
Note 2). The Massachusetts, The Netherlands, addi&st, Hungary leases contain termination optidrish allow the
Company to terminate the leases.

In July 2010, the Company amended its Massachusess in order to add additional office spacesacaorporate
headquarters. The term of the new office spacerbeg@eptember 2010 and extends through Februdr$,2Be termination
date of the original lease. The approximate anlazle payments for the additional office spacesaB9,000.

Rent expense under these leases was approximat@ly000, $1,778,000 and $2,300,000 for the yeaded
December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively Cldmpany records rent expense on a straight-lise bar leases with
scheduled acceleration clauses, free rent periotenant improvement incentives.

The Company also enters into hosting services aggats with third-party data centers and internetise providers that
are subject to annual renewal. Hosting fees induiraler these arrangements aggregated approxing&itg&98,000, $1,621,0(
and $1,168,000 for the years ended December 3B, 2009 and 2010, respectively.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancetqd@eating leases including one year commitmentscéstgd with
the Company’s hosting services arrangements am@xippately as follows at December 31, 2010:

Years Ending December 3

2011 $3,614,00!
2012 2,536,00!
2013 1,145,00!
2014 128,00(
Total minimum lease paymer $7,423,00!

Litigation — In May 2008, the Company settled a patent igiement lawsuit for $900,000. In the settlement plantiff
dismissed the action with prejudice and both papi®vided mutual releases from claims arising faymelated to the patent at
issue. The Company recorded $600,000 related $datisuit as expense in the year ended Decemb@O088,

On June 2, 2009, PB&J Software, LLC, or PB&J, filedomplaint that named the Company and four atbempanies as
defendants in a lawsuit in the U.S. District Cdurtthe District of Minnesota (Civil Action No. 0&v-206-JMR/SRN). The
Company received service of the complaint on JOly2D09. The complaint alleged that the Companyrigéd U.S. Patent
No. 7,310,736, which allegedly is owned by PB&J &ad claims directed to a particular applicatiosystem for transferrin
or storing back-up copies of files from one comptibea second computer. On July 27, 2010, the Compad PB&J entered
into a License Agreement which granted the Compafully-paid license covering the patent at issue in thiemand mutually
released each party from all claims. The Compaiy PB&J a one-time $65,000 licensing fee. As a ltebe action was
dismissed by the court in August of 2010.

On September 8, 2010, 01 Communique Laboratory, tm®1, filed a complaint that named the Compamg one other
company as defendants in a lawsuit in the U.Sribis€ourt for the Eastern District of Virginia (@l Action No. 1:10cv1007).
The Company received service of the complaint qute3aber 10, 2010. The complaint alleges that the@2my has infringed
U.S. Patent No. 6,928,479, which allegedly is owbg®1 and has claims directed to a particulariagpbn or system for
providing a private communication portal from omenputer to a second computer. The complaint seaksmdes in an
unspecified amount and injunctive relief. As of Relry 28, 2011, the case remains in the discoveag@ and both parties have
made various motions before the court. A triakistatively scheduled for the second quarter of 20hg& Company is
investigating these allegations, believes it hemngt defenses to the claims and intends to defemthtvsuit vigorously. At this
time, the Company is unable to reasonably estitha&@ossible loss or range of loss associatedthigHitigation.

On November 3, 2010, Gemini IP LLC, or Gemini, dile complaint that named the Company as a defemdanawsuit
in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern DistridtTexas (Civil Action No. 4:07-cv-521). The Conmyareceived service of the
complaint on November 10, 2010. The complaint &tethat the Company has infringed U.S. Patent NdA. 76932, which
allegedly is owned by Gemini and has claims reléea system for operating an IT helpdesk. The dampseeks damages in
an unspecified amount and injunctive relief. TherPany is investigating these allegations, beligi/eas meritorious defenses
to the claims and intends to defend the lawsuibragsly. At this time, the Company is unable tesmaeably estimate the
possible loss or range of loss associated withlitigsition.

The Company is subject to various other legal pedgegs and claims, either asserted or unassertédh\arise in the
ordinary course of business. While the outcoméne$¢ other claims cannot be predicted with cestamanagement does not
believe that the outcome of any of these otherl legdters will have a material adverse effect am@ompany’s consolidated
financial statements.
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12. Related Party

In December 2007, the Company entered into a giaégreement with Intel Corporation to jointly @éep a service that
delivers connectivity to computers built with Inteimponents. Under the terms of the multi-year emgent, the Company
adapted its service delivery platform, Gravitywork with specific technology delivered with Intehrdware and software
products. The agreement provides that Intel wiltkegand sell the service to its customers. Inggisgthe Company a minimu
license and service fee on a quarterly basis duhiegnulti-year term of the agreement. The Comgsgan recognizing
revenue associated with the Intel service and niagkagreement upon receipt of acceptance in tlagteuended
September 30, 2008. In addition, the Company atel $ihare revenue generated by the use of thecsdvyithird parties to the
extent it exceeds the minimum payments. In conjanawith this agreement, Intel Capital purchaset®2,223 shares of our
Series B-1 redeemable convertible preferred stock10,000,004, which were converted into 888,888 es of common stock
in connection with the closing of the IPO on Jujy20809.

In September 2010, Intel notified the Company thiitended to terminate the connectivity serviod anarketing
agreement effective on December 26, 2010. In aerme with the termination provisions of the agreemiatel paid the
Company a one-time termination fee of $2.5 milliodieu of the $5 million in annual fees associatgth 2011. Intel paid the
Company the $2.5 million termination fee in Decem®@10.

In June 2009, the Company entered into a lices@|ty and referral agreement with Intel Ameridas,, pursuant to
which the Company will pay Intel specified royaftieith respect to subscriptions to its products itheorporate the Intel
technology covered by the service and marketingexgent with Intel Corporation. In addition, in #nent Intel refers
customers to the Company under this agreemen€aohgpany will pay Intel specified fees.

At December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2010, Intedathe Company approximately $101,000 and $9,@3Pectively
recorded as a non-trade receivable relating toattnisement. The Company recognized $6,007,000 @58 000 of net
revenue relating to these agreements for the yeated December 31, 2009 and 2010, respectivelpf Recember 31, 2009,
the Company had recorded $2,143,000 related tagrsement as deferred revenue of which $1,07 W@B0classified as long
term deferred revenue. As of December 31, 2010Ctmapany has recorded $0 related to this agreeaset¢ferred revenue.
The Company recorded expenses relating to refferesl of approximately $33,000 and $4,000 relatinthis agreement for the
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010. Approxiyhit®,000 relating to the referral fees and $5,@98ting to license fes
are payable to Intel as of December 31, 2009.

13. Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

For the Three Months Ended,
March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31  March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31
2009 2009 2009 2009 2010 2010 2010 2010
(In thousands, except per share date

Statement of Operations

Data:
Revenue $17,197 $18,00" $18,97! $20,23: $21,32¢ $23,49: $25,35( $30,89(
Gross profit 15,45 16,15¢ 17,06! 18,23: 19,10f 21,22¢ 23,10¢ 28,49¢
Income from operatior 2,268 2,507 1,997 2,53¢ 2,828 3,90z 5,04¢ 6,41¢
Net income 2,13:  2,34( 1,85(C 2,47¢ 2,73¢ 8,981 3,99t 5,381
Net income per she-basic 0.1C 0.1C 0.0¢ 0.11 0.1z 0.3¢ 0.17 0.2t
Net income per she-diluted 0.1C 0.1C 0.07 0.1C 0.11 0.37 0.1€ 0.21
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our cleieécutive officer and chief financial officer, évated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and pracesias of December 31, 2010. The term “disclosangérols and procedures,”
as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) urideEkchange Act of 1934, as amended, means coatrdlsther procedures
of a company that are designed to ensure thatirdgton required to be disclosed by a company inréjperts that it files or
submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, precessimmarized and reported, within the time periggkcified in the SE€’
rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedmaade, without limitation, controls and procedsidesigned to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by a companthée reports that it files or submits under theltange Act is accumulated
and communicated to the company’s management,dimgjuts principal executive and principal finarici#ficers, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguieed disclosure. Management recognizes that anyrals and procedures,
no matter how well designed and operated, can geovily reasonable assurance of achieving theéctibps and management
necessarily applies its judgment in evaluatingdbst-benefit relationship of possible controls anocedures. Based on the
evaluation of our disclosure controls and proceslaeof December 31, 2010, our chief executiveeffand chief financial
officer concluded that, as of such date, our d=male controls and procedures were effective atdhsonable assurance level.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting. Internal
control over financial reporting is defined in Raile3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange A&t peocess designed by, or
under the supervision of, our principal executind arincipal financial officer and effected by duward of directors,
management and other personnel, to provide reakoaasurance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted aticguprinciples and
includes those policies and procedures that:

< Pertain to the maintenance of records tha¢@sonable detail accurately and fairly reflecttthesactions and
dispositions of our assel

< Provide reasonable assurance that transacien®corded as necessary to permit preparatifinasfcial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples; and that our receipts and expenditures airgghmade only in
accordance with authorizations of our managemeahtinectors; ani

» Provide reasonable assurance regarding prievent timely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose or disposition of
our assets that could have a material effect orfioancial statement:

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessuttufe periods are subject to the risk that contmdy become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degfreompliance with the policies or procedures meteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomahagement, including our principal executive financial officers,
we assessed our internal control over financiabrtapy as of December 31, 2010, based on criteriffective internal control
over financial reporting establishedlitternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

Based on this assessment, our management conchatede maintained effective internal control ofirancial reporting
as of December 31, 2010 based on the specifiestierit
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The Company'’s Independent Registered Public Acéogriiirm has issued an attestation report on thag2my’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 2110.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

No change in our internal control over financigloging (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-(fYler the Exchange
Act) occurred during the quarter ended DecembeRB10 that has materially affected, or is reasgnkikeély to materially
affect, our internal controls over financial repogt
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of
LogMeln, Inc.
Woburn, Massachusetts

We have audited the internal control over finanoéglorting of LogMeln, Inc. and subsidiaries (tl@&otnpany”) as of
December 31, 2010, based on criteria establishédémal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commissibe Company’s management is responsible for miaiiny effective
internal control over financial reporting and fts assessment of the effectiveness of internarabover financial reporting,
included in the accompanyindanagement’s Annual Report on Internal Control okgrancial Reporting Our responsibility i
to express an opinion on the Company’s internatrobover financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedslof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d&nited
States). Those standards require that we plan aridrmp the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetatiwether effective
internal control over financial reporting was mained in all material respects. Our audit includbthining an understanding
of internal control over financial reporting, assiag the risk that a material weakness existsin@sind evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal controkldasn the assessed risk, and performing such ptbeedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. Wevbdliat our audit provides a reasonable basisdpopinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supenvigi the company’s
principal executive and principal financial offiseor persons performing similar functions, aneetd by the company’s
board of directors, management, and other persaarebvide reasonable assurance regarding thabiiity of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statet®éor external purposes in accordance with gelyeagtepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over fircdal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable deislirately and fairly reflect the transactions disgpositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurancérthretactions are recorded as necessary to perepiagation of financial
statements in accordance with generally acceptealating principles, and that receipts and expenett of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizatidn®@nagement and directors of the company; angr8)ide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely deteaiffamauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositiothaf company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegsts.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcohover financial reporting, including the posétp of collusion or
improper management override of controls, mateniaktatements due to error or fraud may not begmted or detected on a
timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluatidrite effectiveness of the internal control oveaficial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the contraly iImecome inadequate because of changes in cargjibothat the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may ritetate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialeespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of
December 31, 2010, based on the criteria estallishi@ternal Control — Integrated Frameworésued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdzf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@snited
States), the consolidated financial statement$ asdfor the year ended December 31, 2010 of tvafany and our report
dated February 28, 2011 expressed an unqualifisdoopon those financial statements.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
February 28, 2011
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNXCE

Information required by this item is incorporatedrbference from the information in our proxy staéat for the 2011
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we will firgth the Securities and Exchange Commission wifl# days of
December 31, 2010.

We have adopted a code of ethics, called the CbBesiness Conduct and Ethics, which applies toafficers, including
our principal executive, financial and accountirfficers, and our directors and employees. We hastaul the Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics on our websitgtas://secure.logmein.com/US/home.aspader the “Investors” section. We
intend to make all required disclosures conceraimgamendments to, or waivers from, the Code ofri&ss Conduct and
Ethics on our website.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required by this item is incorporatedrbference from the information in our proxy staéat for the 2011
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we will firgth the Securities and Exchange Commission wifl# days of
December 31, 2010.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANDMANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information required by this item is incorporatedrbference from the information in our proxy staéat for the 2011
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we will firgth the Securities and Exchange Commission wifl# days of
December 31, 2010.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, ANCDIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Information required by this item is incorporatedrbference from the information in our proxy staént for the 2011
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we will firdth the Securities and Exchange Commission wiff#fi days of
December 31, 2010.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information required by this item is incorporatedrbference from the information in our proxy staént for the 2011
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we will firdgth the Securities and Exchange Commission wiff#fi days of
December 31, 2010.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) (1) Financial Statements

See Index to the Consolidated Financial Statenmmizage 44 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, Wwhgincorporated
into this item by reference.

(a) (2) Financial Statement Schedules

No financial statement schedules have been sulehiiteause they are not required or are not appicalbecause the
information required is included in the consolidhfmancial statements or the notes thereto.

(@) (3) Exhibits

See Exhibit Index on page 71 of this Annual ReparForm 10-K, which is incorporated into this itémreference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the usideed, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: February 28, 2011

LOGMEIN, INC.

By: /s/ Michael K. Simor

Michael K. Simon

President and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the @éipa and on the dates indicated.

Signature

/sl MCHAEL K. SIMON

Michael K. Simor

/sl AMES F. KELLIHER

James F. Kellihe

/s/ SEVEN J. BENSON

Steven J. Bensc

/s/ MICHAEL J. CHRISTENSON

Michael J. Christensa

/sl BbwiN J. GLLIS

Edwin J. Gillis

/sl GREGORYW. HUGHES

Gregory W. Hughe

/sl RFAN SaLIM

Irfan Salim

President, Chief Executive Officer and Dire«

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial
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and Accounting Officer)

Director

Director
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February 28, 2011
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February 28, 2011

February 28, 2011
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*  Filed herewith

T Confidential treatment requested as to certaitigres, which portions have been omitted and fgegarately with the
Securities and Exchange Commissi

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Regist's Registration Statement Form $-1, as amende(Reg 33-148620)
(2) Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended July 29, 2C(001-34391)
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EXHIBIT 10.14

INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made as of the 10th dayuwdust 2010, by and between LogMeln, Inc., a Delavearporation (the “Corporation), and Michael
Christenson (the “Indemnitee”), a director of ther@ration.

WHEREAS, it is essential to the Corporatiomdtain and attract as directors the most capabieops available, and
WHEREAS, the increase in corporate litigatsabjects directors to expensive litigation risksd a

WHEREAS, it is now and has always been theesgppolicy of the Corporation to indemnify itseditors, and
WHEREAS, the Corporation desires the Indeneniteserve, or continue to serve, as a directtleCorporation.
NOW THEREFORE, the Corporation and the Indeéeedo hereby agree as follows:

1. Agreement to Serv@ he Indemnitee agrees to serve or continue teses a director of the Corporation for so longhasindemnitee is duly elected
or appointed or until such time as the Indemniggelérs a resignation in writing.

2. Definitions As used in this Agreement:

(a) The term “Proceeding” shall includw @éhreatened, pending or completed action, sthitration, alternative dispute resolution proceeyli
administrative hearing or other proceeding, whebveught by or in the right of the Corporation dnerwise and whether of a civil, criminal,
administrative or investigative nature, and anyegppherefrom.

(b) The term “Corporate Status” shall méze status of a person who is or was, or hasddrebecome, a director of the Corporation, arigas
serving, or has agreed to serve, at the requebedEorporation, as a director, officer, fiducigogrtner, trustee, member, employee or agent of ar
similar capacity with, another corporation, parghép, joint venture, trust, limited liability comps or other enterprise.

(c) The term “Expenses” shall includethsut limitation, attorneys’ fees, retainers, carosts, transcript costs, fees and expenses oftexfravel
expenses, duplicating costs, printing and bindiogis, telephone charges, postage, delivery sefeéseand other disbursements or expenses of tkes typ
customarily incurred in connection with investigais, judicial or administrative proceedings or aggebut shall not include the amount of judgments,
fines or penalties against Indemnitee or amounitsipasettlement in connection with such matters.

(d) References to “other enterprise” kimmlude employee benefit plans; references toe$i’ shall include any excise tax assessed wifeso
any employee benefit plan; references to “servinearequest of the Corporation” shall include aayice as a director, officer, employee or agént
the Corporation which imposes duties on, or invslservices by, such director, officer, employeeagent with respect to an employee benefit plan, it
participants, or beneficiaries; and a person whedin good faith and in a manner such person




reasonably believed to be in the interests of dréigipants and beneficiaries of an employee bepéih shall be deemed to have acted in a manmgr “n
opposed to the best interests of the Corporatisiregerred to in this Agreement.

3. _Indemnity of IndemniteeSubject to Sections 6, 8 and 10, the Corporatiail indemnify the Indemnitee in connection witty &roceeding as to
which the Indemnitee is, was or is threatened tmbde a party (or is otherwise involved) by reasbiime Indemnitee’s Corporate Status, to the fulles
extent permitted by law (as such may be amendex fioe to time). In furtherance of the foregoinglamthout limiting the generality thereof:

(a)_Indemnification in Thir@arty ProceedingsThe Corporation shall indemnify the Indemnite@atordance with the provisions of this Section 3
(a) if the Indemnitee was or is a party to or tkeead to be made a party to or otherwise involweahy Proceeding (other than a Proceeding by threin
right of the Corporation to procure a judgmenttinfavor or a Proceeding referred to in Sectiorl®w) by reason of the Indemnitee’s Corporate Statu
or by reason of any action alleged to have beesnt@k omitted in connection therewith, againsExibenses, judgments, fines, penalties and amounts
paid in settlement actually and reasonably inculmedr on behalf of the Indemnitee in connectiothvgiuch Proceeding, if the Indemnitee acted in good
faith and in a manner which the Indemnitee reaslyrtadlieved to be in, or not opposed to, the betgrests of the Corporation (which may include
negligent acts) and, with respect to any crimirralcBeding, had no reasonable cause to believéithat her conduct was unlawful.

(b)_Indemnification in Proceedings byirothe Right of the CorporationThe Corporation shall indemnify the Indemnite@atordance with the
provisions of this Section 3(b) if the Indemniteasior is a party to or threatened to be made & padr otherwise involved in any Proceeding byror
the right of the Corporation to procure a judgmierits favor by reason of the Indemnitee’s Corpet@tatus or by reason of any action alleged to have
been taken or omitted in connection therewith, egfadll Expenses and, to the extent permitted Wy énounts paid in settlement actually and
reasonably incurred by or on behalf of the Indee®in connection with such Proceeding, if the Indigee acted in good faith and in a manner whict
Indemnitee reasonably believed to be in, or nobspg to, the best interests of the Corporatioreixihat, if applicable law so provides, no
indemnification shall be made under this Sectidy) 8{ respect of any claim, issue, or matter ashach the Indemnitee shall have been adjudged to be
liable to the Corporation, unless, and only togkeent, that the Court of Chancery of Delawareherdourt in which such action or suit was broudatils
determine upon application that, despite the adatatin of such liability but in view of all the cinmstances of the case, the Indemnitee is faidy an
reasonably entitled to indemnity for such Experesethe Court of Chancery or such other court sledim proper.

4. Indemnification of Expenses of SuccesBfutty. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agmeent, to the extent that the Indemnitee has been
successful, on the merits or otherwise, in defafismy Proceeding or in defense of any claim, issumatter therein (other than a Proceeding redeiwen
Section 6), the Indemnitee shall be indemnifiedragjaall Expenses actually and reasonably incubsedr on behalf of the Indemnitee in connection
therewith. Without limiting the foregoing, if anydteeding or any claim, issue or matter therettisposed of, on the merits or otherwise (including
disposition without prejudice), without (i) the dissition being adverse to the Indemnitee, (ii) djudication that the Indemnitee was liable to the
Corporation, (iii) a plea of guilty or nolcontenderdoy the Indemnitee, (iv) an adjudication that thédmnitee did not act in good faith and in a marther
Indemnitee reasonably believed to be in or not epgdo the best interests of the Corporation, ehdith respect to any criminal proceeding, an
adjudication that the Indemnitee had reasonableectu




believe his or her conduct was unlawful, the Indeeenshall be considered for the purposes herelb&te been wholly successful with respect thereto.

5. Indemnification for Expenses of a Witne¥® the extent that the Indemnitee is, by reagaheoIndemnitee’s Corporate Status, a witnessin a
Proceeding to which the Indemnitee is not a palniy,Indemnitee shall be indemnified against all &hges actually and reasonably incurred by or oalbeh
of the Indemnitee in connection therewith.

6. Exceptions to Right of IndemnificatioNotwithstanding anything to the contrary in tAigreement, except as set forth in Section 11, the@ration
shall not indemnify the Indemnitee in connectiottva Proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by litdemnitee unless the initiation thereof was appdoby
the Board of Directors of the Corporation. Notwitireding anything to the contrary in this Agreem#me, Corporation shall not indemnify the Indemnite
the extent the Indemnitee is reimbursed from tleegeds of insurance, and in the event the Corporatiakes any indemnification payments to the
Indemnitee and the Indemnitee is subsequently neisaldl from the proceeds of insurance, the Indemsitall promptly refund such indemnification
payments to the Corporation to the extent of sashriance reimbursement.

7. Contribution in the Event of Joint Liabjli If the indemnification provided for in this Agmeent for any reason other than the statutory litioites of
applicable law or as provided for in this Agreemésteld by a court of competent jurisdiction ®unavailable to an Indemnitee in respect of asgds,
claims, damages, expenses or liabilities in whigh@orporation is jointly liable with such Indenegt as the case may be (or would be jointly ligble
joined), then the Corporation, in lieu of indemiify the Indemnitee thereunder, shall contributdheamount actually and reasonably incurred andl qe
payable by the Indemnitee as a result of such $pst@ims, damages, expenses or liabilities in guoportion as is appropriate to reflect (a) tHatiee
benefits received by the Corporation and the Indezanand (b) the relative fault of the Corporatéord such Indemnitee in connection with the action
inaction that resulted in such losses, claims, dgsaexpenses or liabilities, as well as any atblevant equitable considerations. The relativét fafuthe
Corporation and the Indemnitee shall be determimereference to, among other things, (i) whetheunmtnue or alleged untrue statement of a matea! f
or an omission or alleged omission to state a n#t@ct relates to information supplied by the ganation or the Indemnitee, (ii) the partieslative intent
knowledge, access to information and opportunityaiwect or prevent the circumstances resultinguich losses, claims, damages, expenses or liebjliti
(i) the degree to which the parties’ actions weretivated by intent to gain personal profit or adtage, (iv) the degree to which the parties’ lighis
primary or secondary, and (v) the degree to whiehpartiesconduct is active or passive. The Corporation &dedmdemnitee agree that it would not be
and equitable if contribution pursuant to this &t were determined by pro rata or per capitacallion or by any other method of allocation whikdes
not take account of the equitable consideratiofesned to in this paragraph. No person found gwltjraudulent misrepresentation (within the megrom
Section 11(f) of the Securities Act of 1933, as adesl) shall be entitled to contribution from anygma who was not found guilty of such fraudulent
misrepresentation.

8. Notification and Defense of ClairAs a condition precedent to the Indemnitee’strighbe indemnified, the Indemnitee must notify @arporation
in writing as soon as practicable of any Proceeétngvhich indemnity will or could be sought; praed that failure or delay to provide such noticallsiot
limit the Indemnitee’s right to indemnification leemder except to the extent the Corporation isugiegd by such failure or delay. With respect tg an
Proceeding of which the Corporation is so notifithd, Corporation will be entitled to participatethin at its own expense and/or to assume the skefen
thereof at its own expense, with legal counselarably acceptable to the Indemnitee. After notioenfthe Corporation to the Indemnitee of its etato
to assume such defense, the Corporation shalleialble to the Indemnitee for any legal or othgquanses subsequently




incurred by the Indemnitee in connection with sBcbceeding, other than as provided below in thigiSe 8. The Indemnitee shall have the right to lyp
his or her own counsel in connection with such Peaiing, but the fees and expenses of such courtzetéd after notice from the Corporation of its
assumption of the defense thereof shall be atxperese of the Indemnitee unless (i) the employroénbunsel by the Indemnitee has been authorized by
the Corporation, (ii) counsel to the Indemniteellshave reasonably concluded that there may benflicobof interest or position on any significassue
between the Corporation and the Indemnitee in timelact of the defense of such Proceeding or (ig)Corporation shall not in fact have employed selin
to assume the defense of such Proceeding, in dachich cases the fees and expenses of counstiddndemnitee shall be at the expense of the
Corporation, except as otherwise expressly provimethis Agreement, and provided that Indemniteesnsel shall cooperate reasonably with the
Corporations counsel to minimize the cost of defending claagainst the Corporation and the Indemnitee. The&ation shall not be entitled, without
consent of the Indemnitee, to assume the defenaeyoflaim brought by or in the right of the Coraiion or as to which counsel for the Indemnitedisha
have reasonably made the conclusion provided folanse (ii) above. The Corporation shall not luneed to indemnify the Indemnitee under this
Agreement for any amounts paid in settlement of Rmceeding effected without its written consetlite Torporation shall not settle any Proceedingiin a
manner that would impose any penalty or limitationthe Indemnitee without the Indemnitee’s writtemsent. Neither the Corporation nor the Indemnitee
will unreasonably withhold or delay their consemainy proposed settlement.

9. Advancement of ExpenseSubject to the provisions of Section 10, in therg that the Corporation does not assume the sefparsuant to Sectior
of any Proceeding of which the Corporation receivatice under this Agreement, any Expenses actaallyreasonably incurred by or on behalf of the
Indemnitee in defending such Proceeding shall e lpathe Corporation in advance of the final disiion of such Proceeding; providedowever, that
the payment of such Expenses incurred by or onlbehthe Indemnitee in advance of the final disgfioa of such Proceeding shall be made only upon
receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of theéedmnitee to repay all amounts so advanced in thetdkiat it shall ultimately be determined that the
Indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified by @@poration as authorized in this Agreement. Suwthertaking shall be accepted without referendbdo
financial ability of the Indemnitee to make repayme\ny advances and undertakings to repay purdoahis Section 9 shall be unsecured and interest-
free.

10. Procedures

(a) In order to obtain indemnificationamvancement of Expenses pursuant to this Agreerenindemnitee shall submit to the Corporation a
written request, including in such request suchudoentation and information as is reasonably avklabthe Indemnitee and is reasonably necessary to
determine whether and to what extent the Indemmdteatitled to indemnification or advancement gpEnses. Any such indemnification or
advancement of Expenses shall be made promptlyinaaaly event within 20 days after receipt by tregration of the written request of the
Indemnitee, unless the Corporation determines wishich 20-day period that the Indemnitee did nagtrttee applicable standard of conduct. Such
determination, and any determination that advafogienses must be repaid to the Corporation, skathéde in each instance (a) by a majority vote of
the directors of the Corporation consisting of paswho are not at that time parties to the Prdogg@disinterested directors”), whether or not a
quorum, (b) by a committee of disinterested directiesignated by a majority vote of disinterestieeodors, whether or not a quorum, (c) if there raoe
disinterested directors, or if the disintereste@ctors so direct, by independent legal counseb(mhy, to the extent permitted by applicable lagv, b
regular legal counsel to the Corporation) in ateritopinion, or (d) by the stockholders of the Gogpion.




(b) The termination of any Proceedingumjgment, order, settlement, conviction or uporea f nolo contendere or its equivalent, shal| nbt
itself, create a presumption that the Indemniteendit act in good faith and in a manner that titeennitee reasonably believed to be in, or not opgos
to, the best interests of the Corporation, andy wéspect to any criminal Proceeding, had reaserehise to believe that his or her conduct was
unlawful.

(c) The Indemnitee shall cooperate whita person, persons or entity making such determmatith respect to the Indemnitee’s entitlement to
indemnification, including providing to such persgersons or entity upon reasonable advance regogstocumentation or information which is not
privileged or otherwise protected from disclosund ahich is reasonably available to the Indemniteé reasonably necessary to such determination.
Any Expenses actually and reasonably incurred byridemnitee in so cooperating shall be borne byGbrporation (irrespective of the determinatio
to the Indemnitee’s entitlement to indemnificatiamd the Corporation hereby indemnifies the Indéeertherefrom.

11. RemediesThe right to indemnification or advancement opEmses as provided by this Agreement shall be egdibte by the Indemnitee in any
court of competent jurisdiction if the Corporatidenies such request, in whole or in part, or itlisposition thereof is made within the applicabéeipd
referred to in Section 10. Unless otherwise reguing law, the burden of proving that indemnificatior advancement of Expenses is not appropriaté sha
be on the Corporation. Neither the failure of trergdration to have made a determination prior &obdbmmencement of such action that indemnificagon
proper in the circumstances because the Indeminéteenet the applicable standard of conduct, nactumal determination by the Corporation that the
Indemnitee has not met such applicable standacdrmduct, shall be a defense to the action or cieeatesumption that the Indemnitee has not met the
applicable standard of conduct. The Indemniteelsdises actually and reasonably incurred in cormreetith successfully establishing the Indemnitee’s
right to indemnification, in whole or in part, imasuch Proceeding shall also be indemnified byQbgporation.

12. Partial Indemnificationlf the Indemnitee is entitled under any provisafrthis Agreement to indemnification by the Corgtown for some or a
portion of the Expenses, judgments, fines, persatirtamounts paid in settlement actually and regtsgrincurred by or on behalf of the Indemnitee in
connection with any Proceeding but not, howevarttie total amount thereof, the Corporation shallartheless indemnify the Indemnitee for the porté
such Expenses, judgments, fines, penalties or atag@aid in settlement to which the Indemnitee istledl.

13. _Subrogationin the event of any payment under this AgreentbetCorporation shall be subrogated to the exteatich payment to all of the rights
of recovery of the Indemnitee, who shall execuk@apers required and take all action necessasgdare such rights, including execution of such
documents as are necessary to enable the Corpotatiing suit to enforce such rights.

14. Term of AgreemenfThis Agreement shall continue so long as (a) tmgigee could be subject to any possible Proceeslibject to indemnification
by reason of Indemnitee’s Corporate Status and Baapplicable to Proceedings commenced or coedimfter execution of this Agreement, whether
arising from acts or omissions occurring beforafter such execution or (b) the final terminatidralb Proceedings pending during the period sahfor
clause (a) in respect of which the Indemnitee @tgd rights of indemnification or advancement yfp&ses hereunder and of any proceeding commenced
by the Indemnitee pursuant to Section 11 of thiss&gent relating thereto.

15. Indemnification Hereunder Not ExclusivEhe indemnification and advancement of Expensegigied by this Agreement shall not be deemed
exclusive of any other rights to which the




Indemnitee may be entitled under the Certificatibincorporation, the By-Laws, any other agreemany, vote of stockholders or disinterested direx;tor
the General Corporation Law of Delaware, any other(common or statutory), or otherwise, both aadtion in the Indemniteg’official capacity and as
action in another capacity while holding office fbe Corporation. Nothing contained in this Agreetrghall be deemed to prohibit the Corporation from
purchasing and maintaining insurance, at its expetosprotect itself or the Indemnitee against exgyense, liability or loss incurred by it or thelémnitee

in any such capacity, or arising out of the Indeeeis status as such, whether or not the Indemnitegd be indemnified against such expense, lighdli
loss under this Agreement; provided that the Cation shall not be liable under this Agreement akenany payment of amounts otherwise indemnifiable
hereunder if and to the extent that the Indemriiteeotherwise actually received such payment uaclginsurance policy, contract, agreement or otlsen

16. No Special RightsNothing herein shall confer upon the Indemnitey ght to continue to serve as a director of@roeporation for any period of
time or at any particular rate of compensation.

17. Savings Clauséf this Agreement or any portion thereof shallilvealidated on any ground by any court of compegemsdiction, then the
Corporation shall nevertheless indemnify the Indiégenas to Expenses, judgments, fines, penaltiésiarounts paid in settlement with respect to any
Proceeding to the full extent permitted by any eggtile portion of this Agreement that shall noté&een invalidated and to the fullest extent peetiby
applicable law.

18. CounterpartsThis Agreement may be executed in any numbeooiterparts, each of which shall constitute thgipail.

19. Successors and Assigisis Agreement shall be binding upon the Corpona&nd its successors and assigns and shall iadhe benefit of the
estate, heirs, executors, administrators and patsepresentatives of the Indemnitee.

20. _HeadingsThe headings of the paragraphs of this Agreemeninserted for convenience only and shall naddmmed to constitute part of this
Agreement or to affect the construction thereof.

21. Modification and WaiverThis Agreement may be amended from time to tioneeflect changes in Delaware law or for other oeasNo
supplement, modification or amendment of this Agreet shall be binding unless executed in writingt®y parties hereto. No waiver of any of the
provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed oll sbastitute a waiver of any other provision hdreor shall any such waiver constitute a continuing
waiver.

22. Notices All notices, requests, demands and other comratinits hereunder shall be in writing and shall éerded to have been given (i) when
delivered by hand or (i) if mailed by certified @rgistered mail with postage prepaid, on the tHag after the date on which it is so mailed:

(a) if to the Indemnitee, to: 80 Whittredge Road
Summit, NJ 0790.

(b) if to the Corporation, to: LogMeln, Inc.
500 Unicorn Park Drive
Woburn, MA 01801
Fax: (781) 998-7792
Attn: General Counst




or to such other address as may have been furnishibd Indemnitee by the Corporation or to thepdaation by the Indemnitee, as the case may be.

23. Applicable Law This Agreement shall be governed by, and condtamel enforced in accordance with, the laws ofState of Delaware. The
Indemnitee may elect to have the right to inderoatfon or reimbursement or advancement of Expeinsepreted on the basis of the applicable law in
effect at the time of the occurrence of the evemvents giving rise to the applicable Proceediaghe extent permitted by law, or on the basithef
applicable law in effect at the time such indenwaifion or reimbursement or advancement of Expeissesught. Such election shall be made, by a natice
writing to the Corporation, at the time indemnifioa or reimbursement or advancement of Expensssuight; provided however, that if no such notice is
given, and if the General Corporation Law of Delesvia amended, or other Delaware law is enactegetmit further indemnification of the directoreen
the Indemnitee shall be indemnified to the fulkestent permitted under the General Corporation Laswso amended, or by such other Delaware lawg as s
enacted.

24. EnforcementThe Corporation expressly confirms and agreesitias entered into this Agreement in order tuite the Indemnitee to continue to
serve as a director of the Corporation, and ackedgés that the Indemnitee is relying upon this Agrent in continuing in such capacity.

25. Entire AgreemenfThis Agreement sets forth the entire agreemethieparties hereto in respect of the subject mattetained herein and
supercedes all prior agreements, whether oral ittenr by any officer, employee or representatizary party hereto in respect of the subject matter
contained herein; and any prior agreement of thiégsahereto in respect of the subject matter éoathherein is hereby terminated and cancelled. For
avoidance of doubt, the parties confirm that thedoing does not apply to or limit the Indemniteéghts under Delaware law or the Corporation’s
Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws.

26._Consent to Suitn the case of any dispute under or in connectiith this Agreement, the Indemnitee may only bréngt against the Corporation in
the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware. [Ademnitee hereby consents to the exclusive jintisth and venue of the courts of the State of
Delaware, and the Indemnitee hereby waives anyndlaé Indemnitee may have at any time as to foramaonveniens with respect to such venue. The
Corporation shall have the right to institute aegdl action arising out of or relating to this Agmeent in any court of competent jurisdiction. Anggment
entered against either of the parties in any pmiogehereunder may be entered and enforced by @y of competent jurisdiction.

[ Remainder of page intentionally left blafk.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto havesed this Agreement to be duly executed as of dlyeadd year first above written.
CORPORATION:
By: /s/ Michael K. Simon

Name: Michael K. Simon
Title: CEO

INDEMNITEE:

/s/ Michael J. Christensor
Michael J. Christensol




EXHIBIT 10.1£

INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made as of the 19th dayantidry 2011, by and between LogMeln, Inc., a Detawearporation (the “Corporation), and Gregory
Hughes (the “Indemnitee”), a director of the Cogdiam.

WHEREAS, it is essential to the Corporatiomdtain and attract as directors the most capabieops available, and
WHEREAS, the increase in corporate litigatsabjects directors to expensive litigation risksd a

WHEREAS, it is now and has always been theesgppolicy of the Corporation to indemnify itseditors, and
WHEREAS, the Corporation desires the Indeneniteserve, or continue to serve, as a directtiiefCorporation.
NOW THEREFORE, the Corporation and the Indeéemdo hereby agree as follows:

1. Agreement to Serv@ he Indemnitee agrees to serve or continue teses a director of the Corporation for so longhasindemnitee is duly elected
or appointed or until such time as the Indemniggelérs a resignation in writing.

2. Definitions As used in this Agreement:

(a) The term “Proceeding” shall includw @éhreatened, pending or completed action, sthitration, alternative dispute resolution proceeyli
administrative hearing or other proceeding, whebveught by or in the right of the Corporation dnerwise and whether of a civil, criminal,
administrative or investigative nature, and anyegppherefrom.

(b) The term “Corporate Status” shall méze status of a person who is or was, or hasddrebecome, a director of the Corporation, arigas
serving, or has agreed to serve, at the requebedEorporation, as a director, officer, fiducigogrtner, trustee, member, employee or agent of ar
similar capacity with, another corporation, parghép, joint venture, trust, limited liability comps or other enterprise.

(c) The term “Expenses” shall includethsut limitation, attorneys’ fees, retainers, carosts, transcript costs, fees and expenses oftexfravel
expenses, duplicating costs, printing and bindiogis, telephone charges, postage, delivery sefeéseand other disbursements or expenses of tkes typ
customarily incurred in connection with investigais, judicial or administrative proceedings or aggebut shall not include the amount of judgments,
fines or penalties against Indemnitee or amounitsipasettlement in connection with such matters.

(d) References to “other enterprise” kimmlude employee benefit plans; references toe$i’ shall include any excise tax assessed wifeso
any employee benefit plan; references to “servinearequest of the Corporation” shall include aayice as a director, officer, employee or agént
the Corporation which imposes duties on, or invslservices by, such director, officer, employeeagent with respect to an employee benefit plan, it
participants, or beneficiaries; and a person whedin good faith and in a manner such person




reasonably believed to be in the interests of dréigipants and beneficiaries of an employee bepéih shall be deemed to have acted in a manmgr “n
opposed to the best interests of the Corporatisiregerred to in this Agreement.

3. _Indemnity of IndemniteeSubject to Sections 6, 8 and 10, the Corporatiail indemnify the Indemnitee in connection witty &roceeding as to
which the Indemnitee is, was or is threatened tmbde a party (or is otherwise involved) by reasbiime Indemnitee’s Corporate Status, to the fulles
extent permitted by law (as such may be amendex fioe to time). In furtherance of the foregoinglamthout limiting the generality thereof:

(a)_Indemnification in Thir@arty ProceedingsThe Corporation shall indemnify the Indemnite@atordance with the provisions of this Section 3
(a) if the Indemnitee was or is a party to or tkeead to be made a party to or otherwise involweahy Proceeding (other than a Proceeding by threin
right of the Corporation to procure a judgmenttinfavor or a Proceeding referred to in Sectiorl®w) by reason of the Indemnitee’s Corporate Statu
or by reason of any action alleged to have beesnt@k omitted in connection therewith, againsExibenses, judgments, fines, penalties and amounts
paid in settlement actually and reasonably inculmedr on behalf of the Indemnitee in connectiothvgiuch Proceeding, if the Indemnitee acted in good
faith and in a manner which the Indemnitee reaslyrtadlieved to be in, or not opposed to, the betgrests of the Corporation (which may include
negligent acts) and, with respect to any crimirralcBeding, had no reasonable cause to believéithat her conduct was unlawful.

(b)_Indemnification in Proceedings byirothe Right of the CorporationThe Corporation shall indemnify the Indemnite@atordance with the
provisions of this Section 3(b) if the Indemniteasior is a party to or threatened to be made & padr otherwise involved in any Proceeding byror
the right of the Corporation to procure a judgmierits favor by reason of the Indemnitee’s Corpet@tatus or by reason of any action alleged to have
been taken or omitted in connection therewith, egfadll Expenses and, to the extent permitted Wy énounts paid in settlement actually and
reasonably incurred by or on behalf of the Indee®in connection with such Proceeding, if the Indigee acted in good faith and in a manner whict
Indemnitee reasonably believed to be in, or nobspg to, the best interests of the Corporatioreixihat, if applicable law so provides, no
indemnification shall be made under this Sectidy) 8{ respect of any claim, issue, or matter ashach the Indemnitee shall have been adjudged to be
liable to the Corporation, unless, and only togkeent, that the Court of Chancery of Delawareherdourt in which such action or suit was broudatils
determine upon application that, despite the adatatin of such liability but in view of all the cinmstances of the case, the Indemnitee is faidy an
reasonably entitled to indemnity for such Experesethe Court of Chancery or such other court sledim proper.

4. Indemnification of Expenses of SuccesBfutty. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agmeent, to the extent that the Indemnitee has been
successful, on the merits or otherwise, in defafismy Proceeding or in defense of any claim, issumatter therein (other than a Proceeding redeiwen
Section 6), the Indemnitee shall be indemnifiedragjaall Expenses actually and reasonably incubsedr on behalf of the Indemnitee in connection
therewith. Without limiting the foregoing, if anydteeding or any claim, issue or matter therettisposed of, on the merits or otherwise (including
disposition without prejudice), without (i) the dissition being adverse to the Indemnitee, (ii) djudication that the Indemnitee was liable to the
Corporation, (iii) a plea of guilty or nolcontenderdoy the Indemnitee, (iv) an adjudication that thédmnitee did not act in good faith and in a marther
Indemnitee reasonably believed to be in or not epgdo the best interests of the Corporation, ehdith respect to any criminal proceeding, an
adjudication that the Indemnitee had reasonableectu




believe his or her conduct was unlawful, the Indeeenshall be considered for the purposes herelb&te been wholly successful with respect thereto.

5. Indemnification for Expenses of a Witne¥® the extent that the Indemnitee is, by reagaheoIndemnitee’s Corporate Status, a witnessin a
Proceeding to which the Indemnitee is not a palniy,Indemnitee shall be indemnified against all &hges actually and reasonably incurred by or oalbeh
of the Indemnitee in connection therewith.

6. Exceptions to Right of IndemnificatioNotwithstanding anything to the contrary in tAigreement, except as set forth in Section 11, the@ration
shall not indemnify the Indemnitee in connectiottva Proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by litdemnitee unless the initiation thereof was appdoby
the Board of Directors of the Corporation. Notwitireding anything to the contrary in this Agreem#me, Corporation shall not indemnify the Indemnite
the extent the Indemnitee is reimbursed from tleegeds of insurance, and in the event the Corporatiakes any indemnification payments to the
Indemnitee and the Indemnitee is subsequently neisaldl from the proceeds of insurance, the Indemsitall promptly refund such indemnification
payments to the Corporation to the extent of sashriance reimbursement.

7. Contribution in the Event of Joint Liabjli If the indemnification provided for in this Agmeent for any reason other than the statutory litioites of
applicable law or as provided for in this Agreemésteld by a court of competent jurisdiction ®unavailable to an Indemnitee in respect of asgds,
claims, damages, expenses or liabilities in whigh@orporation is jointly liable with such Indenegt as the case may be (or would be jointly ligble
joined), then the Corporation, in lieu of indemiify the Indemnitee thereunder, shall contributdheamount actually and reasonably incurred andl qe
payable by the Indemnitee as a result of such $pst@ims, damages, expenses or liabilities in guoportion as is appropriate to reflect (a) tHatiee
benefits received by the Corporation and the Indezanand (b) the relative fault of the Corporatéord such Indemnitee in connection with the action
inaction that resulted in such losses, claims, dgsaexpenses or liabilities, as well as any atblevant equitable considerations. The relativét fafuthe
Corporation and the Indemnitee shall be determimereference to, among other things, (i) whetheunmtnue or alleged untrue statement of a matea! f
or an omission or alleged omission to state a n#t@ct relates to information supplied by the ganation or the Indemnitee, (ii) the partieslative intent
knowledge, access to information and opportunityaiwect or prevent the circumstances resultinguich losses, claims, damages, expenses or liebjliti
(i) the degree to which the parties’ actions weretivated by intent to gain personal profit or adtage, (iv) the degree to which the parties’ lighis
primary or secondary, and (v) the degree to whiehpartiesconduct is active or passive. The Corporation &dedmdemnitee agree that it would not be
and equitable if contribution pursuant to this &t were determined by pro rata or per capitacallion or by any other method of allocation whikdes
not take account of the equitable consideratiofesned to in this paragraph. No person found gwltjraudulent misrepresentation (within the megrom
Section 11(f) of the Securities Act of 1933, as adesl) shall be entitled to contribution from anygma who was not found guilty of such fraudulent
misrepresentation.

8. Notification and Defense of ClairAs a condition precedent to the Indemnitee’strighbe indemnified, the Indemnitee must notify @arporation
in writing as soon as practicable of any Proceeétngvhich indemnity will or could be sought; praed that failure or delay to provide such noticallsiot
limit the Indemnitee’s right to indemnification leemder except to the extent the Corporation isugiegd by such failure or delay. With respect tg an
Proceeding of which the Corporation is so notifithd, Corporation will be entitled to participatethin at its own expense and/or to assume the skefen
thereof at its own expense, with legal counselarably acceptable to the Indemnitee. After notioenfthe Corporation to the Indemnitee of its etato
to assume such defense, the Corporation shalleialble to the Indemnitee for any legal or othgquanses subsequently




incurred by the Indemnitee in connection with sBcbceeding, other than as provided below in thigiSe 8. The Indemnitee shall have the right to lyp
his or her own counsel in connection with such Peaiing, but the fees and expenses of such courtzetéd after notice from the Corporation of its
assumption of the defense thereof shall be atxperese of the Indemnitee unless (i) the employroénbunsel by the Indemnitee has been authorized by
the Corporation, (ii) counsel to the Indemniteellshave reasonably concluded that there may benflicobof interest or position on any significassue
between the Corporation and the Indemnitee in timelact of the defense of such Proceeding or (ig)Corporation shall not in fact have employed selin
to assume the defense of such Proceeding, in dachich cases the fees and expenses of counstiddndemnitee shall be at the expense of the
Corporation, except as otherwise expressly provimethis Agreement, and provided that Indemniteesnsel shall cooperate reasonably with the
Corporations counsel to minimize the cost of defending claagainst the Corporation and the Indemnitee. The&ation shall not be entitled, without
consent of the Indemnitee, to assume the defenaeyoflaim brought by or in the right of the Coraiion or as to which counsel for the Indemnitedisha
have reasonably made the conclusion provided folanse (ii) above. The Corporation shall not luneed to indemnify the Indemnitee under this
Agreement for any amounts paid in settlement of Rmceeding effected without its written consetlite Torporation shall not settle any Proceedingiin a
manner that would impose any penalty or limitationthe Indemnitee without the Indemnitee’s writtemsent. Neither the Corporation nor the Indemnitee
will unreasonably withhold or delay their consemainy proposed settlement.

9. Advancement of ExpenseSubject to the provisions of Section 10, in therg that the Corporation does not assume the sefparsuant to Sectior
of any Proceeding of which the Corporation receivatice under this Agreement, any Expenses actaallyreasonably incurred by or on behalf of the
Indemnitee in defending such Proceeding shall e lpathe Corporation in advance of the final disiion of such Proceeding; providedowever, that
the payment of such Expenses incurred by or onlbehthe Indemnitee in advance of the final disgfioa of such Proceeding shall be made only upon
receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of theéedmnitee to repay all amounts so advanced in thetdkiat it shall ultimately be determined that the
Indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified by @@poration as authorized in this Agreement. Suwthertaking shall be accepted without referendbdo
financial ability of the Indemnitee to make repayme\ny advances and undertakings to repay purdoahis Section 9 shall be unsecured and interest-
free.

10. Procedures

(a) In order to obtain indemnificationamvancement of Expenses pursuant to this Agreerenindemnitee shall submit to the Corporation a
written request, including in such request suchudoentation and information as is reasonably avklabthe Indemnitee and is reasonably necessary to
determine whether and to what extent the Indemmdteatitled to indemnification or advancement gpEnses. Any such indemnification or
advancement of Expenses shall be made promptlyinaaaly event within 20 days after receipt by tregration of the written request of the
Indemnitee, unless the Corporation determines wishich 20-day period that the Indemnitee did nagtrttee applicable standard of conduct. Such
determination, and any determination that advafogienses must be repaid to the Corporation, skathéde in each instance (a) by a majority vote of
the directors of the Corporation consisting of paswho are not at that time parties to the Prdogg@disinterested directors”), whether or not a
quorum, (b) by a committee of disinterested directiesignated by a majority vote of disinterestieeodors, whether or not a quorum, (c) if there raoe
disinterested directors, or if the disintereste@ctors so direct, by independent legal counseb(mhy, to the extent permitted by applicable lagv, b
regular legal counsel to the Corporation) in ateritopinion, or (d) by the stockholders of the Gogpion.




(b) The termination of any Proceedingumygment, order, settlement, conviction or uporea f nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall nbt
itself, create a presumption that the Indemniteendit act in good faith and in a manner that tideenitee reasonably believed to be in, or not opgos
to, the best interests of the Corporation, andy wéspect to any criminal Proceeding, had reaserehise to believe that his or her conduct was
unlawful.

(c) The Indemnitee shall cooperate whit person, persons or entity making such determnmatith respect to the Indemnitee’s entitlement to
indemnification, including providing to such persgersons or entity upon reasonable advance regogstocumentation or information which is not
privileged or otherwise protected from disclosund ahich is reasonably available to the Indemniteé reasonably necessary to such determination.
Any Expenses actually and reasonably incurred byridemnitee in so cooperating shall be borne byGbrporation (irrespective of the determinatio
to the Indemnitee’s entitlement to indemnificatiamd the Corporation hereby indemnifies the Indéeertherefrom.

11. RemediesThe right to indemnification or advancement opEmses as provided by this Agreement shall be egdibte by the Indemnitee in any
court of competent jurisdiction if the Corporatidenies such request, in whole or in part, or itlisposition thereof is made within the applicabéeipd
referred to in Section 10. Unless otherwise reguing law, the burden of proving that indemnificatior advancement of Expenses is not appropriaté sha
be on the Corporation. Neither the failure of trergdration to have made a determination prior &obdbmmencement of such action that indemnificagon
proper in the circumstances because the Indeminéteenet the applicable standard of conduct, nactumal determination by the Corporation that the
Indemnitee has not met such applicable standacdrmduct, shall be a defense to the action or cieeatesumption that the Indemnitee has not met the
applicable standard of conduct. The Indemniteelsdises actually and reasonably incurred in cormreetith successfully establishing the Indemnitee’s
right to indemnification, in whole or in part, imasuch Proceeding shall also be indemnified byQbgporation.

12. Partial Indemnificationlf the Indemnitee is entitled under any provisafrthis Agreement to indemnification by the Corgtown for some or a
portion of the Expenses, judgments, fines, persatirtamounts paid in settlement actually and regtsgrincurred by or on behalf of the Indemnitee in
connection with any Proceeding but not, howevarttie total amount thereof, the Corporation shallartheless indemnify the Indemnitee for the porté
such Expenses, judgments, fines, penalties or atag@aid in settlement to which the Indemnitee istledl.

13. _Subrogationin the event of any payment under this AgreentbetCorporation shall be subrogated to the exteatich payment to all of the rights
of recovery of the Indemnitee, who shall execuk@apers required and take all action necessasgdare such rights, including execution of such
documents as are necessary to enable the Corpotatiing suit to enforce such rights.

14. Term of AgreemenfThis Agreement shall continue so long as (a) tmgigee could be subject to any possible Proceeslibject to indemnification
by reason of Indemnitee’s Corporate Status and Baapplicable to Proceedings commenced or coedimfter execution of this Agreement, whether
arising from acts or omissions occurring beforafter such execution or (b) the final terminatidralb Proceedings pending during the period sahfor
clause (a) in respect of which the Indemnitee @tgd rights of indemnification or advancement yfp&ses hereunder and of any proceeding commenced
by the Indemnitee pursuant to Section 11 of thiss&gent relating thereto.

15. Indemnification Hereunder Not ExclusivEhe indemnification and advancement of Expensegigied by this Agreement shall not be deemed
exclusive of any other rights to which the




Indemnitee may be entitled under the Certificatibincorporation, the By-Laws, any other agreemany, vote of stockholders or disinterested direx;tor
the General Corporation Law of Delaware, any other(common or statutory), or otherwise, both aadtion in the Indemniteg’official capacity and as
action in another capacity while holding office fbe Corporation. Nothing contained in this Agreetrghall be deemed to prohibit the Corporation from
purchasing and maintaining insurance, at its expetosprotect itself or the Indemnitee against exgyense, liability or loss incurred by it or thelémnitee

in any such capacity, or arising out of the Indeeeis status as such, whether or not the Indemnitegd be indemnified against such expense, lighdli
loss under this Agreement; provided that the Cation shall not be liable under this Agreement akenany payment of amounts otherwise indemnifiable
hereunder if and to the extent that the Indemriiteeotherwise actually received such payment uaclginsurance policy, contract, agreement or otlsen

16. No Special RightsNothing herein shall confer upon the Indemnitey ght to continue to serve as a director of@roeporation for any period of
time or at any particular rate of compensation.

17. Savings Clauséf this Agreement or any portion thereof shallilvealidated on any ground by any court of compegemsdiction, then the
Corporation shall nevertheless indemnify the Indiégenas to Expenses, judgments, fines, penaltiésiarounts paid in settlement with respect to any
Proceeding to the full extent permitted by any eggtile portion of this Agreement that shall noté&een invalidated and to the fullest extent peetiby
applicable law.

18. CounterpartsThis Agreement may be executed in any numbeooiterparts, each of which shall constitute thgipail.

19. Successors and Assigisis Agreement shall be binding upon the Corpona&nd its successors and assigns and shall iadhe benefit of the
estate, heirs, executors, administrators and patsepresentatives of the Indemnitee.

20. _HeadingsThe headings of the paragraphs of this Agreemeninserted for convenience only and shall naddmmed to constitute part of this
Agreement or to affect the construction thereof.

21. Modification and WaiverThis Agreement may be amended from time to tioneeflect changes in Delaware law or for other oeasNo
supplement, modification or amendment of this Agreet shall be binding unless executed in writingt®y parties hereto. No waiver of any of the
provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed oll sbastitute a waiver of any other provision hdreor shall any such waiver constitute a continuing
waiver.

22. Notices All notices, requests, demands and other comratinits hereunder shall be in writing and shall éerded to have been given (i) when
delivered by hand or (i) if mailed by certified @rgistered mail with postage prepaid, on the tHag after the date on which it is so mailed:

(a) if to the Indemnitee, to: 147 Seminary Drive
Menlo Park, CA 9402

(b) if to the Corporation, to: LogMeln, Inc.
500 Unicorn Park Drive
Woburn, MA 01801
Fax: (781) 998-7792
Attn: General Counst




or to such other address as may have been furnishibd Indemnitee by the Corporation or to thepdaation by the Indemnitee, as the case may be.

23. Applicable Law This Agreement shall be governed by, and condtamel enforced in accordance with, the laws ofState of Delaware. The
Indemnitee may elect to have the right to inderoatfon or reimbursement or advancement of Expeinsepreted on the basis of the applicable law in
effect at the time of the occurrence of the evemvents giving rise to the applicable Proceediaghe extent permitted by law, or on the basithef
applicable law in effect at the time such indenwaifion or reimbursement or advancement of Expeissesught. Such election shall be made, by a natice
writing to the Corporation, at the time indemnifioa or reimbursement or advancement of Expensssuight; provided however, that if no such notice is
given, and if the General Corporation Law of Delesvia amended, or other Delaware law is enactegetmit further indemnification of the directoreen
the Indemnitee shall be indemnified to the fulkestent permitted under the General Corporation Laswso amended, or by such other Delaware lawg as s
enacted.

24. EnforcementThe Corporation expressly confirms and agreesitias entered into this Agreement in order tuite the Indemnitee to continue to
serve as a director of the Corporation, and ackedgés that the Indemnitee is relying upon this Agrent in continuing in such capacity.

25. Entire AgreemenfThis Agreement sets forth the entire agreemethieparties hereto in respect of the subject mattetained herein and
supercedes all prior agreements, whether oral ittenr by any officer, employee or representatizary party hereto in respect of the subject matter
contained herein; and any prior agreement of thiégsahereto in respect of the subject matter éoathherein is hereby terminated and cancelled. For
avoidance of doubt, the parties confirm that thedoing does not apply to or limit the Indemniteéghts under Delaware law or the Corporation’s
Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws.

26._Consent to Suitn the case of any dispute under or in connectiith this Agreement, the Indemnitee may only bréngt against the Corporation in
the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware. [Ademnitee hereby consents to the exclusive jintisth and venue of the courts of the State of
Delaware, and the Indemnitee hereby waives anyndlaé Indemnitee may have at any time as to foramaonveniens with respect to such venue. The
Corporation shall have the right to institute aegdl action arising out of or relating to this Agmeent in any court of competent jurisdiction. Anggment
entered against either of the parties in any pmiogehereunder may be entered and enforced by @y of competent jurisdiction.

[ Remainder of page intentionally left blafk.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto havesed this Agreement to be duly executed as of dlyeadd year first above written.
CORPORATION:
By: /s/ Michael K. Simon

Name: Michael K. Simon
Title: CEO

INDEMNITEE:

s/ Gregory W. Hughes
Gregory W. Hughes




EXHIBIT 10.1€

INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made as of the day of , by and between LogMeln, Inc., a Detawarporation (the “Corporation), and
(th“Indemnitee”), a director of the Corporation.

WHEREAS, it is essential to the Corporatiomdtain and attract as directors the most capabigops available, and
WHEREAS, the increase in corporate litigatsabjects directors to expensive litigation risksd a

WHEREAS, it is now and has always been theesgppolicy of the Corporation to indemnify itseditors, and
WHEREAS, the Corporation desires the Indeneniteserve, or continue to serve, as a directtiefCorporation.
NOW THEREFORE, the Corporation and the Indeéemdo hereby agree as follows:

1. Agreement to Serv@ he Indemnitee agrees to serve or continue teses a director of the Corporation for so longhasindemnitee is duly elected
or appointed or until such time as the Indemniggelérs a resignation in writing.

2. Definitions As used in this Agreement:

(a) The term “Proceeding” shall includw @éhreatened, pending or completed action, sthitration, alternative dispute resolution proceeyli
administrative hearing or other proceeding, whebveught by or in the right of the Corporation dnerwise and whether of a civil, criminal,
administrative or investigative nature, and anyegppherefrom.

(b) The term “Corporate Status” shall méze status of a person who is or was, or hasddrebecome, a director of the Corporation, arigas
serving, or has agreed to serve, at the requebedEorporation, as a director, officer, fiducigogrtner, trustee, member, employee or agent of ar
similar capacity with, another corporation, parghép, joint venture, trust, limited liability comps or other enterprise.

(c) The term “Expenses” shall includethsut limitation, attorneys’ fees, retainers, carosts, transcript costs, fees and expenses oftexfravel
expenses, duplicating costs, printing and bindiogis, telephone charges, postage, delivery sefeéseand other disbursements or expenses of tkes typ
customarily incurred in connection with investigais, judicial or administrative proceedings or aggebut shall not include the amount of judgments,
fines or penalties against Indemnitee or amounitsipasettlement in connection with such matters.

(d) References to “other enterprise” kimmlude employee benefit plans; references toe$i’ shall include any excise tax assessed wifeso
any employee benefit plan; references to “servinearequest of the Corporation” shall include aayice as a director, officer, employee or agént
the Corporation which imposes duties on, or invslservices by, such director, officer, employeeagent with respect to an employee benefit plan, it
participants, or beneficiaries; and a person whedin good faith and in a manner such person




reasonably believed to be in the interests of dréigipants and beneficiaries of an employee bepéih shall be deemed to have acted in a manmgr “n
opposed to the best interests of the Corporatisiregerred to in this Agreement.

3. _Indemnity of IndemniteeSubject to Sections 6, 8 and 10, the Corporatiail indemnify the Indemnitee in connection witty &roceeding as to
which the Indemnitee is, was or is threatened tmbde a party (or is otherwise involved) by reasbiime Indemnitee’s Corporate Status, to the fulles
extent permitted by law (as such may be amendex fioe to time). In furtherance of the foregoinglamthout limiting the generality thereof:

(a)_Indemnification in Thir@arty ProceedingsThe Corporation shall indemnify the Indemnite@atordance with the provisions of this Section 3
(a) if the Indemnitee was or is a party to or tkeead to be made a party to or otherwise involweahy Proceeding (other than a Proceeding by threin
right of the Corporation to procure a judgmenttinfavor or a Proceeding referred to in Sectiorl®w) by reason of the Indemnitee’s Corporate Statu
or by reason of any action alleged to have beesnt@k omitted in connection therewith, againsExibenses, judgments, fines, penalties and amounts
paid in settlement actually and reasonably inculmedr on behalf of the Indemnitee in connectiothvgiuch Proceeding, if the Indemnitee acted in good
faith and in a manner which the Indemnitee reaslyrtadlieved to be in, or not opposed to, the betgrests of the Corporation (which may include
negligent acts) and, with respect to any crimirralcBeding, had no reasonable cause to believéithat her conduct was unlawful.

(b)_Indemnification in Proceedings byirothe Right of the CorporationThe Corporation shall indemnify the Indemnite@atordance with the
provisions of this Section 3(b) if the Indemniteasior is a party to or threatened to be made & padr otherwise involved in any Proceeding byror
the right of the Corporation to procure a judgmierits favor by reason of the Indemnitee’s Corpet@tatus or by reason of any action alleged to have
been taken or omitted in connection therewith, egfadll Expenses and, to the extent permitted Wy énounts paid in settlement actually and
reasonably incurred by or on behalf of the Indee®in connection with such Proceeding, if the Indigee acted in good faith and in a manner whict
Indemnitee reasonably believed to be in, or nobspg to, the best interests of the Corporatioreixihat, if applicable law so provides, no
indemnification shall be made under this Sectidy) 8{ respect of any claim, issue, or matter ashach the Indemnitee shall have been adjudged to be
liable to the Corporation, unless, and only togkeent, that the Court of Chancery of Delawareherdourt in which such action or suit was broudatils
determine upon application that, despite the adatatin of such liability but in view of all the cinmstances of the case, the Indemnitee is faidy an
reasonably entitled to indemnity for such Experesethe Court of Chancery or such other court sledim proper.

4. Indemnification of Expenses of SuccesBfutty. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agmeent, to the extent that the Indemnitee has been
successful, on the merits or otherwise, in defafismy Proceeding or in defense of any claim, issumatter therein (other than a Proceeding redeiwen
Section 6), the Indemnitee shall be indemnifiedragjaall Expenses actually and reasonably incubsedr on behalf of the Indemnitee in connection
therewith. Without limiting the foregoing, if anydteeding or any claim, issue or matter therettisposed of, on the merits or otherwise (including
disposition without prejudice), without (i) the dissition being adverse to the Indemnitee, (ii) djudication that the Indemnitee was liable to the
Corporation, (iii) a plea of guilty or nolcontenderdoy the Indemnitee, (iv) an adjudication that thédmnitee did not act in good faith and in a marther
Indemnitee reasonably believed to be in or not epgdo the best interests of the Corporation, ehdith respect to any criminal proceeding, an
adjudication that the Indemnitee had reasonableectu




believe his or her conduct was unlawful, the Indeeenshall be considered for the purposes herelb&te been wholly successful with respect thereto.

5. Indemnification for Expenses of a Witne¥® the extent that the Indemnitee is, by reagaheoIndemnitee’s Corporate Status, a witnessin a
Proceeding to which the Indemnitee is not a palniy,Indemnitee shall be indemnified against all &hges actually and reasonably incurred by or oalbeh
of the Indemnitee in connection therewith.

6. Exceptions to Right of IndemnificatioNotwithstanding anything to the contrary in tAigreement, except as set forth in Section 11, the@ration
shall not indemnify the Indemnitee in connectiottva Proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by litdemnitee unless the initiation thereof was appdoby
the Board of Directors of the Corporation. Notwitireding anything to the contrary in this Agreem#me, Corporation shall not indemnify the Indemnite
the extent the Indemnitee is reimbursed from tleegeds of insurance, and in the event the Corporatiakes any indemnification payments to the
Indemnitee and the Indemnitee is subsequently neisaldl from the proceeds of insurance, the Indemsitall promptly refund such indemnification
payments to the Corporation to the extent of sashriance reimbursement.

7. Contribution in the Event of Joint Liabjli If the indemnification provided for in this Agmeent for any reason other than the statutory litioites of
applicable law or as provided for in this Agreemésteld by a court of competent jurisdiction ®unavailable to an Indemnitee in respect of asgds,
claims, damages, expenses or liabilities in whigh@orporation is jointly liable with such Indenegt as the case may be (or would be jointly ligble
joined), then the Corporation, in lieu of indemiify the Indemnitee thereunder, shall contributdheamount actually and reasonably incurred andl qe
payable by the Indemnitee as a result of such $pst@ims, damages, expenses or liabilities in guoportion as is appropriate to reflect (a) tHatiee
benefits received by the Corporation and the Indezanand (b) the relative fault of the Corporatéord such Indemnitee in connection with the action
inaction that resulted in such losses, claims, dgsaexpenses or liabilities, as well as any atblevant equitable considerations. The relativét fafuthe
Corporation and the Indemnitee shall be determimereference to, among other things, (i) whetheunmtnue or alleged untrue statement of a matea! f
or an omission or alleged omission to state a n#t@ct relates to information supplied by the ganation or the Indemnitee, (ii) the partieslative intent
knowledge, access to information and opportunityaiwect or prevent the circumstances resultinguich losses, claims, damages, expenses or liebjliti
(i) the degree to which the parties’ actions weretivated by intent to gain personal profit or adtage, (iv) the degree to which the parties’ lighis
primary or secondary, and (v) the degree to whiehpartiesconduct is active or passive. The Corporation &dedmdemnitee agree that it would not be
and equitable if contribution pursuant to this &t were determined by pro rata or per capitacallion or by any other method of allocation whikdes
not take account of the equitable consideratiofesned to in this paragraph. No person found gwltjraudulent misrepresentation (within the megrom
Section 11(f) of the Securities Act of 1933, as adesl) shall be entitled to contribution from anygma who was not found guilty of such fraudulent
misrepresentation.

8. Notification and Defense of ClairAs a condition precedent to the Indemnitee’strighbe indemnified, the Indemnitee must notify @arporation
in writing as soon as practicable of any Proceeétngvhich indemnity will or could be sought; praed that failure or delay to provide such noticallsiot
limit the Indemnitee’s right to indemnification leemder except to the extent the Corporation isugiegd by such failure or delay. With respect tg an
Proceeding of which the Corporation is so notifithd, Corporation will be entitled to participatethin at its own expense and/or to assume the skefen
thereof at its own expense, with legal counselarably acceptable to the Indemnitee. After notioenfthe Corporation to the Indemnitee of its etato
to assume such defense, the Corporation shalleialble to the Indemnitee for any legal or othgquanses subsequently




incurred by the Indemnitee in connection with sBcbceeding, other than as provided below in thigiSe 8. The Indemnitee shall have the right to lyp
his or her own counsel in connection with such Peaiing, but the fees and expenses of such courtzetéd after notice from the Corporation of its
assumption of the defense thereof shall be atxperese of the Indemnitee unless (i) the employroénbunsel by the Indemnitee has been authorized by
the Corporation, (ii) counsel to the Indemniteellshave reasonably concluded that there may benflicobof interest or position on any significassue
between the Corporation and the Indemnitee in timelact of the defense of such Proceeding or (ig)Corporation shall not in fact have employed selin
to assume the defense of such Proceeding, in dachich cases the fees and expenses of counstiddndemnitee shall be at the expense of the
Corporation, except as otherwise expressly provimethis Agreement, and provided that Indemniteesnsel shall cooperate reasonably with the
Corporations counsel to minimize the cost of defending claagainst the Corporation and the Indemnitee. The&ation shall not be entitled, without
consent of the Indemnitee, to assume the defenaeyoflaim brought by or in the right of the Coraiion or as to which counsel for the Indemnitedisha
have reasonably made the conclusion provided folanse (ii) above. The Corporation shall not luneed to indemnify the Indemnitee under this
Agreement for any amounts paid in settlement of Rmceeding effected without its written consetlite Torporation shall not settle any Proceedingiin a
manner that would impose any penalty or limitationthe Indemnitee without the Indemnitee’s writtemsent. Neither the Corporation nor the Indemnitee
will unreasonably withhold or delay their consemainy proposed settlement.

9. Advancement of ExpenseSubject to the provisions of Section 10, in therg that the Corporation does not assume the sefparsuant to Sectior
of any Proceeding of which the Corporation receivatice under this Agreement, any Expenses actaallyreasonably incurred by or on behalf of the
Indemnitee in defending such Proceeding shall e lpathe Corporation in advance of the final disiion of such Proceeding; providedowever, that
the payment of such Expenses incurred by or onlbehthe Indemnitee in advance of the final disgfioa of such Proceeding shall be made only upon
receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of theéedmnitee to repay all amounts so advanced in thetdkiat it shall ultimately be determined that the
Indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified by @@poration as authorized in this Agreement. Suwthertaking shall be accepted without referendbdo
financial ability of the Indemnitee to make repayme\ny advances and undertakings to repay purdoahis Section 9 shall be unsecured and interest-
free.

10. Procedures

(a) In order to obtain indemnificationamvancement of Expenses pursuant to this Agreerenindemnitee shall submit to the Corporation a
written request, including in such request suchudoentation and information as is reasonably avklabthe Indemnitee and is reasonably necessary to
determine whether and to what extent the Indemmdteatitled to indemnification or advancement gpEnses. Any such indemnification or
advancement of Expenses shall be made promptlyinaaaly event within 20 days after receipt by tregration of the written request of the
Indemnitee, unless the Corporation determines wishich 20-day period that the Indemnitee did nagtrttee applicable standard of conduct. Such
determination, and any determination that advafogienses must be repaid to the Corporation, skathéde in each instance (a) by a majority vote of
the directors of the Corporation consisting of paswho are not at that time parties to the Prdogg@disinterested directors”), whether or not a
quorum, (b) by a committee of disinterested directiesignated by a majority vote of disinterestieeodors, whether or not a quorum, (c) if there raoe
disinterested directors, or if the disintereste@ctors so direct, by independent legal counseb(mhy, to the extent permitted by applicable lagv, b
regular legal counsel to the Corporation) in ateritopinion, or (d) by the stockholders of the Gogpion.




(b) The termination of any Proceedingumjgment, order, settlement, conviction or uporea f nolo contendere or its equivalent, shal| nbt
itself, create a presumption that the Indemniteendit act in good faith and in a manner that titeennitee reasonably believed to be in, or not opgos
to, the best interests of the Corporation, andy wéspect to any criminal Proceeding, had reaserehise to believe that his or her conduct was
unlawful.

(c) The Indemnitee shall cooperate whita person, persons or entity making such determmatith respect to the Indemnitee’s entitlement to
indemnification, including providing to such persgersons or entity upon reasonable advance regogstocumentation or information which is not
privileged or otherwise protected from disclosund ahich is reasonably available to the Indemniteé reasonably necessary to such determination.
Any Expenses actually and reasonably incurred byridemnitee in so cooperating shall be borne byGbrporation (irrespective of the determinatio
to the Indemnitee’s entitlement to indemnificatiamd the Corporation hereby indemnifies the Indéeertherefrom.

11. RemediesThe right to indemnification or advancement opEmses as provided by this Agreement shall be egdibte by the Indemnitee in any
court of competent jurisdiction if the Corporatidenies such request, in whole or in part, or itlisposition thereof is made within the applicabéeipd
referred to in Section 10. Unless otherwise reguing law, the burden of proving that indemnificatior advancement of Expenses is not appropriaté sha
be on the Corporation. Neither the failure of trergdration to have made a determination prior &obdbmmencement of such action that indemnificagon
proper in the circumstances because the Indeminéteenet the applicable standard of conduct, nactumal determination by the Corporation that the
Indemnitee has not met such applicable standacdrmduct, shall be a defense to the action or cieeatesumption that the Indemnitee has not met the
applicable standard of conduct. The Indemniteelsdises actually and reasonably incurred in cormreetith successfully establishing the Indemnitee’s
right to indemnification, in whole or in part, imasuch Proceeding shall also be indemnified byQbgporation.

12. Partial Indemnificationlf the Indemnitee is entitled under any provisafrthis Agreement to indemnification by the Corgtown for some or a
portion of the Expenses, judgments, fines, persatirtamounts paid in settlement actually and regtsgrincurred by or on behalf of the Indemnitee in
connection with any Proceeding but not, howevarttie total amount thereof, the Corporation shallartheless indemnify the Indemnitee for the porté
such Expenses, judgments, fines, penalties or atag@aid in settlement to which the Indemnitee istledl.

13. _Subrogationin the event of any payment under this AgreentbetCorporation shall be subrogated to the exteatich payment to all of the rights
of recovery of the Indemnitee, who shall execuk@apers required and take all action necessasgdare such rights, including execution of such
documents as are necessary to enable the Corpotatiing suit to enforce such rights.

14. Term of AgreemenfThis Agreement shall continue so long as (a) tmgigee could be subject to any possible Proceeslibject to indemnification
by reason of Indemnitee’s Corporate Status and Baapplicable to Proceedings commenced or coedimfter execution of this Agreement, whether
arising from acts or omissions occurring beforafter such execution or (b) the final terminatidralb Proceedings pending during the period sahfor
clause (a) in respect of which the Indemnitee @tgd rights of indemnification or advancement yfp&ses hereunder and of any proceeding commenced
by the Indemnitee pursuant to Section 11 of thiss&gent relating thereto.

15. Indemnification Hereunder Not ExclusivEhe indemnification and advancement of Expensegigied by this Agreement shall not be deemed
exclusive of any other rights to which the




Indemnitee may be entitled under the Certificatibincorporation, the By-Laws, any other agreemany, vote of stockholders or disinterested direx;tor
the General Corporation Law of Delaware, any other(common or statutory), or otherwise, both aadtion in the Indemniteg’official capacity and as
action in another capacity while holding office fbe Corporation. Nothing contained in this Agreetrghall be deemed to prohibit the Corporation from
purchasing and maintaining insurance, at its expetosprotect itself or the Indemnitee against exgyense, liability or loss incurred by it or thelémnitee

in any such capacity, or arising out of the Indeeeis status as such, whether or not the Indemnitegd be indemnified against such expense, lighdli
loss under this Agreement; provided that the Cation shall not be liable under this Agreement akenany payment of amounts otherwise indemnifiable
hereunder if and to the extent that the Indemriiteeotherwise actually received such payment uaclginsurance policy, contract, agreement or otlsen

16. No Special RightsNothing herein shall confer upon the Indemnitey ght to continue to serve as a director of@roeporation for any period of
time or at any particular rate of compensation.

17. Savings Clauséf this Agreement or any portion thereof shallilvealidated on any ground by any court of compegemsdiction, then the
Corporation shall nevertheless indemnify the Indiégenas to Expenses, judgments, fines, penaltiésiarounts paid in settlement with respect to any
Proceeding to the full extent permitted by any eggtile portion of this Agreement that shall noté&een invalidated and to the fullest extent peetiby
applicable law.

18. CounterpartsThis Agreement may be executed in any numbeooiterparts, each of which shall constitute thgipail.

19. Successors and Assigisis Agreement shall be binding upon the Corpona&nd its successors and assigns and shall iadhe benefit of the
estate, heirs, executors, administrators and patsepresentatives of the Indemnitee.

20. _HeadingsThe headings of the paragraphs of this Agreemeninserted for convenience only and shall naddmmed to constitute part of this
Agreement or to affect the construction thereof.

21. Modification and WaiverThis Agreement may be amended from time to tioneeflect changes in Delaware law or for other oeasNo
supplement, modification or amendment of this Agreet shall be binding unless executed in writingt®y parties hereto. No waiver of any of the
provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed oll sbastitute a waiver of any other provision hdreor shall any such waiver constitute a continuing
waiver.

22. Notices All notices, requests, demands and other comratinits hereunder shall be in writing and shall éerded to have been given (i) when
delivered by hand or (i) if mailed by certified @rgistered mail with postage prepaid, on the tHag after the date on which it is so mailed:

(a) if to the Indemnitee, to:

(b) if to the Corporation, to: LogMeln, Inc.
500 Unicorn Park Drive
Woburn, MA 01801
Fax: (781) 998-7792
Attn: General Counst




or to such other address as may have been furnishibd Indemnitee by the Corporation or to thepdaation by the Indemnitee, as the case may be.

23. Applicable Law This Agreement shall be governed by, and condtamel enforced in accordance with, the laws ofState of Delaware. The
Indemnitee may elect to have the right to inderoatfon or reimbursement or advancement of Expeinsepreted on the basis of the applicable law in
effect at the time of the occurrence of the evemvents giving rise to the applicable Proceediaghe extent permitted by law, or on the basithef
applicable law in effect at the time such indenwaifion or reimbursement or advancement of Expeissesught. Such election shall be made, by a natice
writing to the Corporation, at the time indemnifioa or reimbursement or advancement of Expensssuight; provided however, that if no such notice is
given, and if the General Corporation Law of Delesvia amended, or other Delaware law is enactegetmit further indemnification of the directoreen
the Indemnitee shall be indemnified to the fulkestent permitted under the General Corporation Laswso amended, or by such other Delaware lawg as s
enacted.

24. EnforcementThe Corporation expressly confirms and agreesitias entered into this Agreement in order tuite the Indemnitee to continue to
serve as a director of the Corporation, and ackedgés that the Indemnitee is relying upon this Agrent in continuing in such capacity.

25. Entire AgreemenfThis Agreement sets forth the entire agreemethieparties hereto in respect of the subject mattetained herein and
supercedes all prior agreements, whether oral ittenr by any officer, employee or representatizary party hereto in respect of the subject matter
contained herein; and any prior agreement of thiégsahereto in respect of the subject matter éoathherein is hereby terminated and cancelled. For
avoidance of doubt, the parties confirm that thedoing does not apply to or limit the Indemniteéghts under Delaware law or the Corporation’s
Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws.

26._Consent to Suitn the case of any dispute under or in connectiith this Agreement, the Indemnitee may only bréngt against the Corporation in
the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware. [Ademnitee hereby consents to the exclusive jintisth and venue of the courts of the State of
Delaware, and the Indemnitee hereby waives anyndlaé Indemnitee may have at any time as to foramaonveniens with respect to such venue. The
Corporation shall have the right to institute aegdl action arising out of or relating to this Agmeent in any court of competent jurisdiction. Anggment
entered against either of the parties in any pmiogehereunder may be entered and enforced by @y of competent jurisdiction.

[ Remainder of page intentionally left blafk.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto havesed this Agreement to be duly executed as of dlyeadd year first above written.
CORPORATION:

By:

Name:
Title:

INDEMNITEE:




Exhibit 10.26

LOGMEIN, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED 2009 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

1. Purpose

The purpose of this Amended and Restated 2009 $haektive Plan (the “Plan”) of LogMeln, Inc., a Bware
corporation (the “Company”), is to advance theri@sts of the Company’s stockholders by enhanciagtbhmpany’s ability to
attract, retain and motivate persons who are ergeict make important contributions to the Compamy lay providing such
persons with equity ownership opportunities andgeerance-based incentives that are intended tetalign the interests of
such persons with those of the Company’s stockisldexcept where the context otherwise requiresteéhm “Company” shall
include any of the Company’s present or future peoe subsidiary corporations as defined in Seetié24(e) or (f) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, andegajations promulgated thereunder (the “Code”) amyl other business
venture (including, without limitation, joint venmior limited liability company) in which the Compahas a controlling
interest, as determined by the Board of Directéith® Company (the “Board”).

2. Eligibility
All of the Company’s employees, officers, directasnsultants and advisors are eligible to be gdnptions, stock

appreciation rights (“SARs"), restricted stock,trizted stock units and other stock-based awaralsh(ean “Award”) under the
Plan. Each person who receives an Award underldrei® deemed a “Participant”.

3. Administration and Delegation

(a) Administration by Board of Directors The Plan will be administered by the Board. Board shall have authority to
grant Awards and to adopt, amend and repeal sutim&lrative rules, guidelines and practices ratato the Plan as it shall
deem advisable. The Board may construe and intettpeeerms of the Plan and any Award agreemergseshinto under the
Plan. The Board may correct any defect, supplyanission or reconcile any inconsistency in the RPlaany Award in the
manner and to the extent it shall deem expedieoaity the Plan into effect and it shall be theesanid final judge of such
expediency. All decisions by the Board shall be enisxthe Board'’s sole discretion and shall be farad binding on all persons
having or claiming any interest in the Plan orirty &ward. No director or person acting pursuarthsauthority delegated by
the Board shall be liable for any action or deteation relating to or under the Plan made in gauidh f

(b) Appointment of CommitteesTo the extent permitted by applicable law, tteaBl may delegate any or all of its
powers under the Plan to one or more committessifocommittees of the Board (a “Committee”). Alleefnces in the Plan to
the “Board” shall mean the Board or a CommitteéhefBoard or the officers referred to in Sectioo) 3¢ the extent that the
Board’s powers or authority under the Plan havenltedegated to such Committee or officers.

(c) Delegation to Officers To the extent permitted by applicable law, tteaBl may delegate to one or more officers of
the Company the power to grant Awards (subjechtolianitations under the Plan) to employees oragffs of the Company or
any of its present or future subsidiary corporaiand to exercise such other powers under theaRldme Board may determi
provided that the Board shall fix the terms of #wards to be granted by such officers (including éxercise price of such
Awards, which may include a formula by which theese price will be determined) and the maximumhbaer of shares
subject to Awards that the officers may grant; jted further, however, that no officer shall berawized to grant Awards to
any “executive officer” of the Company (as defingdRule 3b-7 under the Securities Exchange Act984] as amended (the
“Exchange Act”)) or to any " “officer” “of the Cormamy (as defined by Rule 16a-1 under the Exchange Ac
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4. Stock Available for Awards

(a) Number of Shares Subject to adjustment under Section 10, Awardg be made under the Plan for up to the number
of shares of common stock, $0.01 par value pemsloithe Company (the “Common Stock”) that is egadhe sum of:

(1) 3,323,996 shares of Common Stock; plus

(2) such additional number of shares of CommonSascis equal to the number of shares of Commock&tobject
to awards granted under the Company’s 2007 Stamniive Plan or the Company’s 2004 Equity IncenBlen which
awards expire, terminate or are otherwise surreu@anceled, forfeited or repurchased by the Cospatheir original
issuance price pursuant to a contractual repuratigise

If any Award expires or is terminated, surrendesedanceled without having been fully exercisedoifeited in whole or
in part (including as the result of shares of ComrStock subject to such Award being repurchaseithé®yompany at the
original issuance price pursuant to a contractgalirchase right), is settled in cash or otherwéselts in any Common Stock
not being issued, the unused Common Stock coveraddh Award shall again be available for the gadmiwards under the
Plan. Further, shares of Common Stock deliverdti€eby actual delivery or attestation) to the Campby a Participant to
exercise an Award or to satisfy any applicablevtitRholding obligation (including shares retainedr the Award creating the
tax obligation) shall be added to the number ofeshaf Common Stock available for the grant of Adgannder the Plan. Sha
issued under the Plan may consist in whole or ih@faauthorized but unissued shares or treasuayesh

(b) Section 162(m) Per-Participant LimitSubject to adjustment under Section 10, the maximumber of shares of
Common Stock with respect to which Awards may lkented to any Participant under the Plan shall 88Q1000 per calendar
year. For purposes of the foregoing limit, the camabon of an Option in tandem with an SAR shalltteated as a single
Award. The per Participant limit described in tBisction 4(b) shall be construed and applied candistwith Section 162(m)
of the Code or any successor provision thereto tl@degulations thereunder (“Section 162(m)”).

(c) Substitute Awards In connection with a merger or consolidatioranfentity with the Company or the acquisition by
the Company of property or stock of an entity, Buard may grant Awards in substitution for any op$ or other stock or
stock-based awards granted by such entity or dratdfthereof. Substitute Awards may be grantedwech terms as the Board
deems appropriate in the circumstances, notwithgtgrany limitations on Awards contained in therRI8ubstitute Awards
shall not count against the overall share limitfsgth in Section 4(a).

5. Stock Options

(a) General. The Board may grant options to purchase ComntockSeach, an “Option”) and determine the number o
shares of Common Stock to be covered by each Qptierexercise price of each
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Option and the conditions and limitations applieatal the exercise of each Option, including condgirelating to applicable
federal or state securities laws, as it considecgssary or advisable. Options may only be graamatbn-statutory stock
options and may not be granted as “incentive stqutions”, as defined in Section 422 of the Code.

(b) Exercise Price The Board shall establish the exercise priceach Option and specify the exercise price in the
applicable option agreement. The exercise prick bhanot less than 100% of the Fair Market Valag defined below) on the
date the Option is granted; provided that if theBloapproves the grant of an Option with an exerpigce to be determined on
a future date, the exercise price shall be nottlems 100% of the Fair Market Value on such futilaee.

(c) Duration of Options Each Option shall be exercisable at such timessabject to such terms and conditions as the
Board may specify in the applicable option agreemen

(d) Exercise of Option Options may be exercised by delivery to the Camnypof a written notice of exercise signed by the
proper person or by any other form of notice (idahg electronic notice) approved by the Board tbgetvith payment in full
as specified in Section 5¢f) for the number of shares for which the Optiopxsrcised. Shares of Common Stock subject t
Option will be delivered by the Company as sooprasticable following exercise.

(e) Payment Upon ExerciseCommon Stock purchased upon the exercise of aim©granted under the Plan shall be
paid for as follows:

(1) in cash or by check, payable to the order efGompany;

(2) except as may otherwise be provided in theiegiple option agreement, by (i) delivery of anwweable and
unconditional undertaking by a creditworthy brokedeliver promptly to the Company sufficient furtdspay the exercis
price and any required tax withholding, or (ii) idely by the Participant to the Company of a copyrrevocable and
unconditional instructions to a creditworthy brokedeliver promptly to the Company cash or a chedkicient to pay th
exercise price and any required tax withholding;

(3) to the extent provided for in the applicabld¢iop agreement or approved by the Board, in ite siidcretion, by
delivery (either by actual delivery or attestatiofishares of Common Stock owned by the Particigahted at their fair
market value as determined by (or in a manner agordy) the Board (“Fair Market Value”), providaylguch method of
payment is then permitted under applicable lay s(ich Common Stock, if acquired directly from @empany, was
owned by the Participant for such minimum periodimf, if any, as may be established by the Boauiitsidiscretion and
(iii) such Common Stock is not subject to any repasse, forfeiture, unfulfilled vesting or other dam requirements;

(4) to the extent permitted by applicable law amaviled for in the applicable option agreementppraved by the
Board, in its sole discretion, by (i) delivery opeomissory note of the Participant to the Compamyerms determined by
the Board, or (ii) payment of such other lawful simieration as the Board may determine; or
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(5) by any combination of the above permitted foohpayment.

6. Director Options.

(a) Initial Grant . Upon the commencement of service on the Boaranyyindividual who is not then an employee of the
Company or any subsidiary of the Company, the Camgaall grant to such person an Option to purcle@s@00 shares of
Common Stock (subject to adjustment under Sectin 1

(b) Biennial Grant. On the date of each annual meeting of stockinsldethe Company, the Company shall grant to each
member of the Board of Directors of the Companywvip is both serving as a director of the Compamymediately prior to an
immediately following such annual meeting, (ii) wisanot then an employee of the Company or anysasubsidiaries and
(iif) who did not receive an Option under this $ewct6(b) in connection with the prior years’ annoseting, an Option to
purchase 30,000 shares of Common Stock (subjetjtstment under Section 10); provided, howevet, ahdirector shall not
be eligible to receive an option grant under theést®n 6(b) until such director has served contiralyp on the Board for at least
eighteen (18) months.

(c) Terms of Director Options Options granted under this Section 6 shallgyehan exercise price equal to the closing
sale price (for the primary trading session) of @@mmon Stock on the national securities exchamgetich the Common
Stock is then traded on the day of grant (or ifdage of grant is not a trading day on such excbatig trading day
immediately prior to the date of grant) or if ther@mon Stock is not then traded on a national seesiexchange, the fair
market value of the Common Stock on such date @srdaed by the Board, (ii) vest in equal quarténigrements over two
years from the date of grant provided that theviddial continues serving on the Board, provided tfmadditional vesting shi
take place after the Participant ceases to sermedagctor and further provided that the Board meovide for accelerated
vesting in the case of death, disability, changeointrol, attainment of mandatory retirement ageetirement following at least
10 years of service, (iii) expire on the earliefl6fyears from the date of grant or three monthevfing cessation of service on
the Board and (iv) contain such other terms andlitimms as the Board shall determine.

(d) Board Discretion. The Board retains the specific authority to friime to time increase or decrease the number of
shares subject to Options granted under this Se6étand to issue SARs, Restricted Stock Award€tber Stock-Based
Awards in lieu of some or all of the Options othemvissuable under this Section 6.

7. Stock Appreciation Rights

(a) General. The Board may grant Awards consisting of SARitlarg the holder, upon exercise, to receive armant of
Common Stock or cash or a combination thereof ($oich to be determined by the Board) determinedtiole or in part by
reference to appreciation, from and after the dagrant, in the fair market value of a share ofBwon Stock over the exercise
price established pursuant to Section 7(c). The datof which such appreciation is determined $leathe exercise date.

(b) Grants. SARs may be granted in tandem with, or indepetigef, Options granted under the Plan.

(1) Tandem Awards When SARs are expressly granted in tandem wjittioBs, (i) the SAR will be exercisable only at
such time or times, and to the extent, that thateel Option is exercisable (except to the extesigiated by the Board in
connection with a Reorganization Event) and wilelsercisable in accordance with the procedure redudor exercise of the
related Option; (ii) the SAR will terminate and lomger be exercisable upon the termination or egeraf the related Option,
except to the extent designated by the Board imection with a Reorganization Event and exceptah®AR granted with
respect to less than the full number of sharesrealviy an Option will not be reduced until the nembf shares as to which t
related Option has been exercised or has termirategeds the number of shares not covered by tiRg 88 the Option will
terminate and no longer be exercisable upon thecisesof the related SAR; and (iv) the SAR willtbensferable only with the
related Option.
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(2) Independent SARSA SAR not expressly granted in tandem with ani@pwill become exercisable at such time or
times, and on such conditions, as the Board magifyde the SAR Award.

(c) Exercise Price The Board shall establish the exercise priceach SAR and specify it in the applicable SAR
agreement. The exercise price shall not be less1B8% of the Fair Market Value on the date the $S&\&anted; provided th
if the Board approves the grant of a SAR with aereise price to be determined on a future dateexieecise price shall be not
less than 100% of the Fair Market Value on sucbriutlate.

(d) Duration of SARs Each SAR shall be exercisable at such timessabjct to such terms and conditions as the Board
may specify in the applicable SAR agreement.

(e) Exercise of SARs SARs may be exercised by delivery to the Compdraywritten notice of exercise signed by the
proper person or by any other form of notice (idahg electronic notice) approved by the Board, thgewith any other
documents required by the Board.

8. Restricted Stock; Restricted Stock Units

(a) General. The Board may grant Awards entitling recipigiotacquire shares of Common Stock (“Restricted I8}pc
subject to the right of the Company to repurchdiser part of such shares at their issue pricetbeostated or formula price (or
to require forfeiture of such shares if issuedataost) from the recipient in the event that candi specified by the Board in
the applicable Award are not satisfied prior to ¢hnel of the applicable restriction period or pesiedtablished by the Board for
such Award. Instead of granting Awards for RestdcStock, the Board may grant Awards entitlingréngpient to receive
shares of Common Stock or cash to be delivereaeatime such Award vests (“Restricted Stock Uni{&gstricted Stock and
Restricted Stock Units are each referred to haasia “Restricted Stock Award”).

(b) Terms and Conditions for All Restricted Stock Award he Board shall determine the terms and conttf a
Restricted Stock Award, including the conditions¥esting and repurchase (or forfeiture) and teaesprice, if any.

(c) Additional Provisions Relating to Restricted Stock

(1) Dividends. Unless otherwise provided in the applicable Advagreement, any dividends (whether paid in casbks
or property) declared and paid by the Company vétipect to shares of Restricted Stock (“Accruedd@ivds”)shall be paid t
the Participant only if and when such shares bedoegefrom the restrictions on transferability dodeitability that apply to
such shares. Each payment of Accrued Dividendsbeilinade no later than the end of the calendarige@hich the dividends
are paid to tockholders of that class of stockfdater, the 15th day of the third month followitige lapsing of the restrictions
on transferability and the forfeitability provisiemapplicable to the underlying shares of RestriGtatk.

(2) Stock Certificates The Company may require that any stock certdéisassued in respect of shares of Restricted ¢
shall be deposited in escrow by the Participaigetioer with a stock power endorsed in blank, with@€ompany (or its
designee). At the expiration of the applicableriesbon periods, the Company (or such designeel) deéver the certificates no
longer subject to such restrictions to the Pardiotpor if the Participant has died, to the beneficdesignated, in a manner
determined by the Board, by a Participant to rec@mounts due or exercise rights of the Participatite event of the
Participant’s death (the “Designated Beneficiaryfi)the absence of an effective designation byrédiaant, “Designated
Beneficiary” shall mean the Participant’s estate.
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(d) Additional Provisions Relating to Restricted Stblrts .

(1) Settlement Upon the vesting of and/or lapsing of any otfestrictions (i.e., settlement) with respect toreac
Restricted Stock Unit, the Participant shall betlemt to receive from the Company one share of Comi&tock or an amount
cash equal to the Fair Market Value of one sha@ahmon Stock, as provided in the applicable Avagteement. The Board
may, in its discretion, provide that settlemenReftricted Stock Units shall be deferred, on a ratorgl basis or at the election
of the Participant.

(2) Voting Rights A Participant shall have no voting rights widspect to any Restricted Stock Units.

(3) Dividend Equivalents To the extent provided by the Board, in its stiferetion, a grant of Restricted Stock Units
may provide Participants with the right to recereamount equal to any dividends or other distidimst declared and paid on
an equal number of outstanding shares of Commark$t®ividend Equivalents”)Dividend Equivalents may be paid currei
or credited to an account for the Participants, imagettled in cash and/or shares of Common Stodkray be subject to the
same restrictions on transfer and forfeitabilityttaes Restricted Stock Units with respect to whieldpas determined by the
Board in its sole discretion, subject in each ¢asmich terms and conditions as the Board shalbésh, in each case to be set
forth in the applicable Award agreement.

9. Other StockBased Awards

Other Awards of shares of Common Stock, and othveards that are valued in whole or in part by refeesto, or are
otherwise based on, shares of Common Stock or ptioperty, may be granted hereunder to Participdotther Stock-Based
Awards”), including without limitation Awards erltitg recipients to receive shares of Common Stodbet delivered in the
future. Such Other Stock-Based Awards shall alsava@lable as a form of payment in the settleméwtler Awards granted
under the Plan or as payment in lieu of compensatiavhich a Participant is otherwise entitled. €tBtock-Based Awards
may be paid in shares of Common Stock or castheaBoard shall determine. Subject to the provisimfitbe Plan, the Board
shall determine the terms and conditions of eat¢teOBtock-Based Award, including any purchase @maicable thereto.

10. Adjustments for Changes in Common Stock and Ce@ittier Events

(a) Changes in Capitalization In the event of any stock split, reverse stqak,sstock dividend, recapitalization,
combination of shares, reclassification of shaspi-off or other similar change in capitalizatimnevent, or any dividend or
distribution to holders of Common Stock other tlaanordinary cash dividend, (i) the number and atds®curities available
under this Plan, (ii) the number and class of séearand exercise price per share of each outstgr@ption and each Option
issuable under Section 6, (iv) the share- and lparesprovisions and the exercise price of each $ARhe number of shares
subject to and the repurchase price per sharecubjeach outstanding Restricted Stock Award, (@)dhe share- and per-
share-related provisions and the purchase prieayif of each outstanding Other Stock-Based Awglrdll be equitably
adjusted by the Company (or substituted Awards beagnade, if applicable) in the manner determinethbyBoard. Without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, in theemt the Company effects a split of the Common Skyckneans of a stock
dividend and the exercise price of and the numbsehares subject to an outstanding Option are tstjuss of the date of the
distribution of the dividend (rather than as of teeord date for such dividend), then an optionke exercises an Option
between the record date and the distribution datsuch stock dividend shall be entitled to recedrethe distribution date, the
stock dividend with respect to the shares of Com@imtk acquired upon such Option exercise, nottétiding the fact that
such shares were not outstanding as of the clobasifiess on the record date for such stock didden

(b) Reorganization Events

(1) Definition. A “Reorganization Event” shall mean: (a) any gegror consolidation of the Company with or into
another entity as a result of which all of the Commn$tock of the Company is converted into or exgeadrfor the right to
receive cash, securities or other property or icebed, (b) any exchange of all of
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the Common Stock of the Company for cash, secsritieother property pursuant to a share exchaagsdction or (c) any
liquidation or dissolution of the Company.

(2) Consequences of a Reorganization Event on Awardsr@tan Restricted Stock Awardsn connection with a
Reorganization Event, the Board may take any omeare of the following actions as to all or any éory portion of)
outstanding Awards other than Restricted Stock Alwam such terms as the Board determines: (i) deotviat Awards shall be
assumed, or substantially equivalent Awards sheaBubstituted, by the acquiring or succeeding aatjm (or an affiliate
thereof), (ii) upon written notice to a Participaptovide that the Participant’s unexercised Awawikterminate immediately
prior to the consummation of such ReorganizatioarEwunless exercised by the Participant withinec#ied period following
the date of such notice, (iii) provide that outslialg Awards shall become exercisable, realizabileletiverable, or restrictions
applicable to an Award shall lapse, in whole opat prior to or upon such Reorganization Eveny,ii the event of a
Reorganization Event under the terms of which hsldé Common Stock will receive upon consummattweréof a cash
payment for each share surrendered in the ReomaomzEvent (the “Acquisition Price”), make or pide for a cash payment
to a Participant equal to the excess, if any, 9ftf® Acquisition Price times the number of shae€ommon Stock subject to
the Participant’s Awards (to the extent the exerpiice does not exceed the Acquisition Price) ¢Bgthe aggregate exercise
price of all such outstanding Awards and any apiplie tax withholdings, in exchange for the termovabf such Awards,

(v) provide that, in connection with a liquidationdissolution of the Company, Awards shall conwetia the right to receive
liquidation proceeds (if applicable, net of the reige price thereof and any applicable tax withirgld) and (vi) any
combination of the foregoing. In taking any of #itions permitted under this Section 10(b), therBahall not be obligated t
the Plan to treat all Awards, all Awards held byaxticipant, or all Awards of the same type, ideaity.

For purposes of clause (i) above, an Option slelidnsidered assumed if, following consummatiothefReorganization
Event, the Option confers the right to purchaseefich share of Common Stock subject to the Ojtiwnediately prior to the
consummation of the Reorganization Event, the camation (whether cash, securities or other prgpegceived as a result of
the Reorganization Event by holders of Common Sfockach share of Common Stock held immediatelyrpio the
consummation of the Reorganization Event (and lifiéis were offered a choice of consideration, yipe tof consideration
chosen by the holders of a majority of the outsitagmghares of Common Stock); provided, howevet, iftthe consideration
received as a result of the Reorganization Evenbisolely common stock of the acquiring or sudaeg corporation (or an
affiliate thereof), the Company may, with the cartsaf the acquiring or succeeding corporation, fevor the consideration
be received upon the exercise of Options to cossisly of common stock of the acquiring or sucéegdorporation (or an
affiliate thereof) equivalent in value (as deteradrby the Board) to the per share consideratiogived by holders of
outstanding shares of Common Stock as a resuficoReorganization Event.

(3) Consequences of a Reorganization Event on Resti8iteck Awards Upon the occurrence of a Reorganization Event
other than a liquidation or dissolution of the Ca@mp, the repurchase and other rights of the Compadgr each outstanding
Restricted Stock Award shall inure to the bendfihe Company’s successor and shall, unless thedBigtermines otherwise,
apply to the cash, securities or other propertyciviihe Common Stock was converted into or exchaf@ggursuant to such
Reorganization Event in the same manner and teahee extent as they applied to the Common Stodkauio such Restricte
Stock Award. Upon the occurrence of a Reorganindfieent involving the liquidation or dissolution thie Company, except to
the extent specifically provided to the contraryhie instrument evidencing any Restricted Stock Alwa any other agreement
between a Participant and the Company, all re&gristand conditions on all Restricted Stock Awatas outstanding shall
automatically be deemed terminated or satisfied.

11. General Provisions Applicable to Awards

(a) Transferability of Awards Except as the Board may otherwise determinegarighe in an Award, Awards shall not be
sold, assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwisarabered by the person to whom they are granithere/oluntarily or by
operation of law, except by will or the laws of dest and distribution or pursuant to a qualifiedhéstic relations order, and,
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during the life of the Participant, shall be exsatile only by the Participant. References to addaaint, to the extent relevant
the context, shall include references to authorizzdsferees.

(b) Documentation Each Award shall be evidenced in such form ¢emit electronic or otherwise) as the Board shall
determine. Each Award may contain terms and canttin addition to those set forth in the Plan.

(c) Board Discretion. Except as otherwise provided by the Plan, eaghrd may be made alone or in addition or in
relation to any other Award. The terms of each Alaeed not be identical, and the Board need nat Rarticipants uniformly

(d) Termination of Status The Board shall determine the effect on an Awddrthe disability, death, termination or other
cessation of employment, authorized leave of alissenother change in the employment or other stitasParticipant and the
extent to which, and the period during which, tiaetieipant, or the Participant’s legal represertgtconservator, guardian or
Designated Beneficiary, may exercise rights underAward.

(e) Withholding. The Participant must satisfy all applicable fedlestate, and local or other income and employtrteen
withholding obligations before the Company will ider stock certificates or otherwise recognize omshig of Common Stock
under an Award. The Company may decide to satiefytithholding obligations through additional withting on salary or
wages. If the Company elects not to or cannot withfrom other compensation, the Participant mast fne Company the full
amount, if any, required for withholding or havbraker tender to the Company cash equal to theheitting obligations.
Payment of withholding obligations is due before @ompany will issue any shares on exercise oaselérom forfeiture of an
Award or, if the Company so requires, at the same &s is payment of the exercise price unlesS€tmapany determines
otherwise. If provided for in an Award or approvgdthe Board in its sole discretion, a Participaaty satisfy such tax
obligations in whole or in part by delivery (eithgy actual delivery or attestation) of shares om@wn Stock, including shares
retained from the Award creating the tax obligatiealued at their Fair Market Value; provided, hoae except as otherwise
provided by the Board, that the total tax withholglivhere stock is being used to satisfy such tdigations cannot exceed the
Company’s minimum statutory withholding obligatiofimsed on minimum statutory withholding ratesfémteral and state tax
purposes, including payroll taxes, that are applie#o such supplemental taxable income). Shared tessatisfy tax
withholding requirements cannot be subject to apurchase, forfeiture, unfulfilled vesting or otlsamilar requirements.

() Amendment of Award

(1) The Board may amend, modify or terminate angtamding Award, including but not limited to, stihging therefor
another Award of the same or a different type, eémahging the date of exercise or realization. Tagi&pant’s consent to such
action shall be required unless (i) the Board aeitees that the action, taking into account anyteelaction, would not
materially and adversely affect the Participanghts under the Plan or (ii) the change is permittader Section 10 hereof.

(2) The Board may, without stockholder approvaleachany outstanding Award granted under the Plgmdeide an
exercise price per share that is lower than the-therent exercise price per share of such outgstgnward. The Board may
also, without stockholder approval, cancel any tamiding award (whether or not granted under the)Riad grant in
substitution therefor new Awards under the Plareciog the same or a different number of sharesosfiion Stock and
having an exercise price per share lower thanttée-turrent exercise price per share of the cattelvard.

(9) Conditions on Delivery of StockThe Company will not be obligated to deliver afmares of Common Stock pursuant
to the Plan or to remove restrictions from sharesipusly delivered under the Plan until (i) alhctitions of the Award have
been met or removed to the satisfaction of the Gomp(ii) in the opinion of the Company’s couns®l other legal matters in
connection with the issuance and delivery of su@ress have been satisfied, including any applicadbarrities laws and any
applicable stock exchange or stock market rulesregdlations, and (iii) the Participant has exedwted delivered to the
Company such representations or agreements athpay may consider appropriate to satisfy theirements of any
applicable laws, rules or regulations.
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(h) Acceleration. The Board may at any time provide that any Awglrdll become immediately exercisable in full or in
part, free of some or all restrictions or condifipar otherwise realizable in full or in part, ke tase may be.

(i) Performance Awards.

(1) Grants. Restricted Stock Awards and Other Stock-Basedrdsvander the Plan may be made subject to the
achievement of performance goals pursuant to thési& 11(i) (“Performance Awards”).

(2) Committee. Grants of Performance Awards to any @a/&mployee (as defined below) intended to qualgfy
“performance-based compensation” under Sectionmp@Performance-Based Compensation”) shall be nuadie by a
Committee (or a subcommittee of a Committee) cosagkisolely of two or more directors eligible tovgeon a committee
making Awards qualifying as “performance-based cengation” under Section 162(m). In the case of fuehrds granted to
Covered Employees, references to the Board oiQommittee shall be treated as referring to such iGiti@e (or
subcommittee). “Covered Employee” shall mean amggrewho is, or whom the Committee, in its disanetidetermines may
be, a “covered employee” under Section 162(m)(3hefCode.

(3) Performance MeasuresFor any Award that is intended to qualify as Berfance-Based Compensation, the
Committee shall specify that the degree of grantuegting and/or payout shall be subject to théeargment of one or more
objective performance measures established by éhen@ttee, which shall be based on the relativebsohite attainment of
specified levels of one or any combination of thkofving, which may be determined pursuant to galyaccepted accountir
principles (“GAAP”) or on a non-GAAP basis, as deimed by the Committee: net income, earnings leetorafter
discontinued operations, interest, taxes, deplieciand/oramortization, operating profit before or after distnued operatior
and/or taxes, sales, sales growth, earnings graagh flow or cash position, gross margins, staadepmarket share, return on
sales, assets, equity or investment, improvemefibaficial ratings, achievement of balance sheatayme statement
objectives or total stockholder return. Such goady reflect absolute entity or business unit penfmce or a relative
comparison to the performance of a peer group tifienor other external measure of the selectefbpaance criteria and me
be absolute in their terms or measured against @lationship to other companies comparably, sirtyilor otherwise situated.
The Committee may specify that such performancesorea shall be adjusted to exclude any one or widiig extraordinary
items, (ii) gains or losses on the dispositiondis€ontinued operations, (iii) the cumulative effecf changes in accounting
principles, (iv) the writedown of any asset, (‘)dtuation in foreign currency exchange rates, @fdcharges for restructuring
and rationalization programs. Such performance oreas (i) may vary by Participant and may be dédferfor different
Awards; (i) may be particular to a Participantloe department, branch, line of business, subsidiaother unit in which the
Participant works and may cover such period as Ibeagpecified by the Committee; and (iii) shall belsy the Committee
within the time period prescribed by, and shalkotfise comply with the requirements of, Section(t§2 Awards that are not
intended to qualify as Performance-Based Compensaiay be based on these or such other performmeasures as the
Board may determine.

(4) Adjustments. Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan, widspect to any Performance Award that is intended to
qualify as Performance-Based Compensation, the Gtieenmay adjust downwards, but not upwards, tisé ca number of
shares payable pursuant to such Award, and the Git@ermay not waive the achievement of the appleaerformance
measures except in the case of the death or digatfithe Participant or a change in control o thompany.

(5) Other. The Committee shall have the power to impose stioér restrictions on Performance Awards as it ohegm
necessary or appropriate to ensure that such Aveatiify all requirements for Performance-Based @amsation.

12. Miscellaneous

(a) No Right To Employment or Other Statullo person shall have any claim or right to benged an Award, and the
grant of an Award shall not be construed as gidrRarticipant the right to continued employmenramy other relationship wi
the Company. The Company expressly reserves theatgany
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time to dismiss or otherwise terminate its relagkuip with a Participant free from any liability ciaim under the Plan, except
expressly provided in the applicable Award.

(b) No Rights As StockholderSubject to the provisions of the applicable Advaro Participant or Designated Benefici
shall have any rights as a stockholder with resfmeany shares of Common Stock to be distributeti veispect to an Award
until becoming the record holder of such shares.

(c) Effective Date and Term of PlanThe Plan shall become effective on the date lictwit is adopted by the Board. No
Awards shall be granted under the Plan after tipira&tion of 10 years from the earlier of (i) theelan which the Plan was
adopted by the Board or (ii) the date the Plan ayggoved by the Company’s stockholders, but Awardsiously granted may
extend beyond that date.

(d) Amendment of Plan The Board may amend, suspend or terminate #ire dtlany portion thereof at any time provi
that (i) to the extent required by Section 162(n@) Award granted to a Participant that is intentedomply with Section 162
(m) after the date of such amendment shall becorecisable, realizable or vested, as applicab&ith Award, unless and
until such amendment shall have been approveddZtdmpany’s stockholders if required by Section(f§qincluding the
vote required under Section 162(m)); and (ii) nceadment that would require stockholder approvakurtide rules of the
NASDAQ Stock Market may be made effective unless$ amtil such amendment shall have been approvedeboZompan’'s
stockholders. Unless otherwise specified in theradmeent, any amendment to the Plan adopted in aacoedwith this
Section 12(d) shall apply to, and be binding onftbklers of, all Awards outstanding under the Riathe time the amendment
is adopted, provided the Board determines that auséndment does not materially and adversely afffiectights of
Participants under the Plan.

(e) Provisions for Foreign Participants The Board may modify Awards granted to Partinisavho are foreign nationals
or employed outside the United States or establigiplans or procedures under the Plan to recogiifizeences in laws, rules,
regulations or customs of such foreign jurisdictiovith respect to tax, securities, currency, emgdolgenefit or other matters.

(f) Compliance with Code Section 4094xcept as provided in individual Award agreersénttially or by amendment,
if and to the extent (i) any portion of any paymemmmpensation or other benefit provided to a Biadint pursuant to the Plan
in connection with his or her employment terminatemnstitutes “nonqualified deferred compensatieithin the meaning of
Section 409A of the Code and (ii) the Participara ispecified employee as defined in Section 4042 @)(i) of the Code, in
each case as determined by the Company in accaadtitits procedures, by which determinationsRaeticipant (through
accepting the Award) agrees that he or she is hauah portion of the payment, compensation orrdikeefit shall not be pa
before the day that is six months plus one day #iedate of “separation from service” (as deteadiunder Section 409A of
the Code) (the “New Payment Date”), except as 8eetDIA of the Code may then permit. The aggregitey payments that
otherwise would have been paid to the Participaning the period between the date of separatiom gervice and the New
Payment Date shall be paid to the Participantlimg sum on such New Payment Date, and any rentapagments will be
paid on their original schedule. The Company maiersepresentations or warranty and shall haveatmlity to the Participant
or any other person if any provisions of or payragobmpensation or other benefits under the Planletermined to constitute
nonqualified deferred compensation subject to $actD9A of the Code but do not to satisfy the ctods of that section.

(9) Governing Law The provisions of the Plan and all Awards maeleetinder shall be governed by and interpreted in
accordance with the laws of the State of Delawaxeluding choice-ofaw principles of the law of such state that wordduire
the application of the laws of a jurisdiction otlilean such state.

A-10



Exhibit 10.3:

SUMMARY OF 2011 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The Company’s 2011 executive compensatioapasoved by the Compensation Committee of the BoaRirectors and the full Board of Directors, is
substantially consistent with 2010 executive conspéipn and consists of cash bonuses and equitptines. With the guidance of a compensation
consultant, executive compensation was derived fiord-party compensation survey data for comparabimpanies and executive positions and is based
upon performance targets and payments tied tocepexge of base pay. The key elements of execotivgensation are as follows:

Bonus Incentive Compensation:

Annual cash incentive bonuses are intendedtopensate for the achievement of Company strategarational and financial goals and/or individual
performance objectives. Amounts payable are disraty and typically calculated as a percentaghefpplicable executive’s base salary, with higher
ranked executives typically being compensatedragilaer percentage of base salary. Individual objestare tied to the particular area of expertisthe
employee and their performance in attaining thdgeatives relative to external forces, internabrgses utilized and overall individual effort. The
Compensation Committee works with the Chief Exemu®fficer to develop and approve the performarmgfor each executive and the Company as a
whole. The goals established by the Compensationmitiee and the Board of Directors are based ofCtmapanys historical operating results and groy
rates, as well as expected future results, andesigned to require significant effort and operagicsuccess on the part of the executives and ¢inep@ny.
These bonus awards are in two levels based ondhg@&ny achieving certain specified operating metiitcluding revenue and operating profit. The
applicable bonus payable will be paid following tteampletion of 2011.

The following table sets forth the 2011 salangl bonus, assuming achievement of 100% of tigetdased on the foregoing criteria, for each ef th
Company’s named executive officers (as definedeéml402(a)(3) of Regulation S-K):

2011 Cash Bonus

Base (Assuming Achievemen
Name of Executive Officer Salary of 100% of Target)
Michael K. Simor $350,00( $350,00(
James F. Kellihe $260,00( $140,00(
Kevin K. Harrison $215,00( $175,00(
Marton B. Anka $250,00( $125,00(
Michael J. Donahu $225,00( $ 56,25(

Equity Incentive Compensation:

The Company’s equity award program is the prinvehicle for offering long-term incentives te &xecutives. In determining these awards, the
Compensation Committee considers a number of feciiocluding the Company’s overall performance,applicable executive’s overall performance and
contribution to the Company’s overall performartbe, size of awards granted to other executivessanibr employees, the size of the available optinol
and the recommendations of management. The follpwption grants to executives were granted undeCibmpany’s 2009 Stock Incentive Plan and have
an exercise price of $40.07 per share, the clgsiftg of the Company’s common stock on February2DZ1. The stock option grants to each executive
officer vest in four equal installments over a fyear period commencing on the first anniversarthefdate of grant:

2011 Stock
Name Option Grants
Michael K. Simor 100,00(
James F. Kellihe 60,00(
Kevin K. Harrison —
Marton B. Anka 25,00(

Michael J. Donahu 12,50(



Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Incorporation
3LI Securities Corporatio Massachusett

3AM Labs Kift. Hungary

LogMeln Europe B.V The Netherland
RemotelyAnywhere, Inc Delaware

LogMeln Australia Pty. Ltd Australia

LogMeln UK, Ltd. United Kingdom
LogMeln Brazil Ltda Brazil



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference insteggion statement Nos. 333-162644, 333-1656683334169884 on Form S-8 of our reports dated
February 28, 2011, relating to the financial staata of LogMeln, Inc. and subsidiaries and theatffeness of LogMeln, Inc.’s internal control over
financial reporting, appearing in this Annual Repmr Form 10-K of LogMeln, Inc. for the year end2dcember 31, 2010.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 28, 2011



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT T O
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-144), AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michael K. Simon, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on FA®K of LogMeln, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesaontain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary to ma&e th
statements made, in light of the circumstances uwtiich such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stateisy and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material respetis
financial condition, results of operations and csts of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officerdal are responsible for establishing and maint@jrdisclosure controls and procedures (as defimed i
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdniat control over financial reporting (as defined&Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procadorecaused such disclosure controls and procedorige designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registtancluding its consolidated subsidiaries, is midewn to us by others within those entities, partrly
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed;

(b) Designed such internal control over financegarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our supermisio
to provide reasonable assurance regarding théiléleof financial reporting and the preparatiohfimancial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iplies;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presantads report our conclusions about the effectesno
the disclosure controls and procedures, as ofrideoéthe period covered by this report based ah swaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the registrant’s most reciscif
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartettie case of an annual report) that has materiffibgt@d, or is reasonably likely to materially affethe
registrant’s internal control over financial repog; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officarcal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiatuof internal control over financial reportirtg,the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee efrigistrant’s board of directors (or persons periog the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbwtrer financial reporting which are reasonablelik
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability toae; process, summarize and report financial infdrom; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmnifiole in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: February 28, 2011

/s/ Michael K. Simoi
Michael K. Simon
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT T O
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-144), AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, James F. Kelliher, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on FA®K of LogMeln, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary to ma&e th
statements made, in light of the circumstances uwtiich such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stateisy and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material respetis
financial condition, results of operations and clsts of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officerdal are responsible for establishing and maint@irdisclosure controls and procedures (as defimed i
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdniat control over financial reporting (as defined&Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procadorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoiige designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registtancluding its consolidated subsidiaries, is midewn to us by others within those entities, partrly
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed;

(b) Designed such internal control over financegarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our supermisio
to provide reasonable assurance regarding théiléleof financial reporting and the preparatiohfimancial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iplies;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presantads report our conclusions about the effectesno
the disclosure controls and procedures, as ofrideoéthe period covered by this report based ah swaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the registrant’s most reciscif
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartettie case of an annual report) that has materiffibgt@d, or is reasonably likely to materially affethe
registrant’s internal control over financial repog; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officarcal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiatuof internal control over financial reportirtg,the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee efrigistrant’s board of directors (or persons periog the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbwtrer financial reporting which are reasonablelik
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability toae; process, summarize and report financial infdrom; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmnifiole in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: February 28, 2011

/sl James F. Kellihe
James F. Kellihel
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on ForaKL for the fiscal year ending December 31, 201QafMeln, Inc. (the “Company”), as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dat@hg@he “Report”),l, Michael K. Simon, President and Chief Execut®ficer of the Company, certift
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipnt$o Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act @2@ my knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgjeaAct of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faiphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the Company.
Dated: February 28, 2011

/s/  Michael K. Simol
Michael K. Simon
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on ForaKL for the fiscal year ending December 31, 201QafMeln, Inc. (the “Company”), as filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on the datehg@he “Report”), |, James F. Kelliher, Chief Fir@al Officer of the Company, certify, pursuantl®
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se@€i6rof the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, to my kisolge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgjeaAct of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faiphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the Company.
Dated: February 28, 2011

/sl James F. Kellihe
James F. Kellihel
Chief Financial Officer
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LogMeln provides SaaS-based remote access, support and collaboration
solutions to quickly, simply and securely connect millions of internet-enabled
devices across the globe — computers, smartphones, digital displays
and iPad™ tablets. Designed for consumers, mobile professionals and IT
organizations, LogMeln’s solutions empower over 11 million active users to
connect more than 125 million devices.
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